EDGAROnline

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORP

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/09/15 for the Period Ending 12/31/14

Address 4400 POST OAK PARKWAY
SUITE 2200
HOUSTON, TX 77027
Telephone (713) 292-5400
CIK 0001551901
Symbol SCM
Industry  Misc. Financial Services
Sector Financial
Fiscal Year 12/31

Powere 4 &y EDGAROnline

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2015, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

™ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 1-35730

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Maryland 46-0937320
(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2200
Houston, TX 77027
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(713) 292-5400

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share New York Stock Exchange
6.50% Notes due 2019 New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢iie Act:
None




Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405ed8dturities Act. YeEl
No ™

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. Yes
O NoM

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant &5)filed all reports required to be filed by Sectk3 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdid months (or for such shorter period that thgi®eant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject tb §iling requirements for the past 90 days. ¥&s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpok&eb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8&B2 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod that the registrant was required to sulamdt post such files). Ydd
NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of Registraktiswledge, in definitive proxy or information statents incorporated by
reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any ameent to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See definition of “aecated filer,” “large accelerated filer” and “snalreporting company” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer |
Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reporting Company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢8s0 No ™M

The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s comstock held by non-affiliates of the RegistrambaJune 30, 2014
was: $181,316,099.

There were 12,479,962 shares of the Registranittsraan stock outstanding as of March 4, 2015.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Sta@nt relating to the registrant's 2015 Annual Megtf Stockholders, to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days following the end of the Companfjscal year, are
incorporated by reference in Part lll of this AnhRaport on Form 10-K as indicated herein.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |
ITEM 1.
ITEM 1A.
ITEM 1B.
ITEM 2.
ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.

PART Il
ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.
ITEM 7.

ITEM 7A.

ITEM 8.
ITEM 9.

ITEM 9A.
ITEM 9B.
PART Il
ITEM 10.
ITEM 11.
ITEM 12.

ITEM 13.

ITEM 14.
PART IV

ITEM 15.
SIGNATURES

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BUSINESS

RISK FACTORS

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
PROPERTIES

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET
RISK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT REGIERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
OTHER INFORMATION

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNEE
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page

28
56
56
56
56

57
60

61

75

76

117
117
11¢€

12C
12z




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |
Item 1. Business

Except as otherwise indicated, the terms “we,” “Ugur,” and the “Company” refer to Stellus Capitalnvestment
Corporation; and “Stellus Capital Management” regeto our investment adviser and administrator,|8¢eCapital
Management, LLC.

General

We are an externally managed, closed-end, nonsifieet management investment company that haseelestd qualified
to be regulated as a business development compaigy the Investment Company Act of 1940, or thed@B.ct.” We
originate and invest primarily in private middlesrket companies (typically those with $5.0 millian$50.0 million of
EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depresiatind amortization)) through first lien, secorghliunitranche and
mezzanine debt financing, with corresponding eqeitynvestments. Unitranche debt is typically stuued as first lien loans
with certain risk characteristics of mezzanine dbt#zzanine debt includes senior unsecured anddimnated loans.

Our investment activities are managed by our ingest adviser, Stellus Capital Management, LLC,Stellus Capital
Management,” an investment advisory firm led by &b0. Ladd and other senior investment profes$sonsle source
investments primarily through the extensive netwafrkelationships that the principals of Stellup@a Management have
developed with financial sponsor firms, financiatitutions, middle-market companies, managemeamhseand other
professional intermediaries. The companies in whietinvest are typically highly leveraged, andmast cases, our
investments in such companies will not be rateddtjonal rating agencies. If such investments wated, we believe that they
would likely receive a rating which is often refedrto as “junk.”

Our investment objective is to maximize the totlirn to our stockholders in the form of currertome and capital
appreciation by:

e accessing the extensive origination channelstthe¢ been developed and established by the S@dipsal
Management investment team that include long-stendilationships with private equity firms, commatbanks,
investment banks and other financial services firms

e investing in what we believe to be companies witbhng business fundamentals, generally withincoue middle-
market company focus;

« focusing on a variety of industry sectors, inghgdbusiness services, energy, general industrialernment services,
healthcare, software and specialty finance;

« focusing primarily on directly originated tranfiaas;

e applying the disciplined underwriting standardattthe Stellus Capital Management investment teasrdeveloped
over their extensive investing careers; and

e  capitalizing upon the experience and resourceélseoBtellus Capital Management investment teamdnitor our
investments.

In addition, we received exemptive relief from 8EC to co-invest with investment funds managedtkiius Capital
Management where doing so is consistent with okgstment strategy as well as applicable law (indgithe terms and
conditions of the exemptive order issued by the SBE@der the terms of the relief permitting us teicvest with other funds
managed by Stellus Capital Management, a “requirajbrity” (as defined in Section 57(0) of the 194€) of our independent
directors must make certain conclusions in connaatiith a co-investment transaction, includingttid terms of the proposed
transaction, including the consideration to be paid reasonable and fair to us and our stockh®laisd do not involve
overreaching of us or our stockholders on the glaany person concerned and (2) the transactioarnisistent with the interests
of our stockholders and is consistent with our gtrrent objectives and strategies. We intend taeest, subject to the
conditions included in the exemptive order we reeeifrom the SEC, with a private credit fund marmblgg Stellus Capital
Management that has an investment strategy thdemical to our investment strategy. We beliewa Such co-investments
may afford us additional investment opportunitied an ability to achieve greater diversification.
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As a business development company, we are requgiresmply with regulatory requirements, includingitations on our
use of debt. We are permitted to, and expect ttimomto, finance our investments through borrowintgowever, as a BDC,
we are only generally allowed to borrow amountshgihat our asset coverage, as defined in the 1@40efjuals at least 200%
after such borrowing. The amount of leverage thatewploy will depend on our assessment of markaditions and other
factors at the time of any proposed borrowing, sagthe maturity, covenant package and rate steiofithe proposed
borrowings, our ability to raise funds through tbsuance of our securities and the risks of suctoluings within the context
of our investment outlook. Ultimately, we only intéto use leverage if the expected returns fromolpang to make
investments will exceed the cost of such borrowings

We have elected and qualified to be treated foer@dncome tax purposes as a regulated investooempany, or “RIC,”
under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue CodtheoCode. As a RIC, we generally will not have#&y corporate-level
federal income taxes on any net ordinary incomeagital gains that we distribute to our stockhaddéwe meet certain source-
of-income, distribution and asset diversificatiequirements.

Our principal executive office is currently locataid4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2200, Houston71027, and our
telephone number is (713) 292-5400. We maintairebsite on the Internet atww.stelluscapital.coninformation contained
on our website is not incorporated by reference this annual report on Form 10-K and you shouldcoasider information
contained on our website to be part of this anne@brt on Form 10-K.

Portfolio Composition

As of December 31, 2014, we had $316.0 milliorfgatvalue) in portfolio investments under managam®ur portfolio
was comprised of 54 investments in 32 companieaf Acember 31, 2014, our portfolio included apgprately 24% of first
lien debt, 32% of second lien debt, 41% of mezzadiebt and 3% of equity investments at fair vahseof December 31,
2014, $135.8 million of our debt investments at fa@lue were at fixed interest rates, which repnese approximately 44% of
our total portfolio of debt investments at fairwal As of December 31, 2014, $170.5 million of debt investments at fair
value were at floating interest rates, which repnésd approximately 56% of our total portfolio @hd investments at fair
value. The weighted average yield on all of ourtdieestments as of December 31, 2014, was appairign10.9%, of which
approximately 10.3% was current cash interest.Wéighted average yield of our debt investment®igine same as a return
on investment for our stockholders but, rathegtesd to a portion of our investment portfolio asdalculated before the
payment of all of our and our subsidiaries’ feed arpenses. The weighted average yield was compstad the effective
interest rates for all of our debt investments,clihiepresents the interest rate on our debt invadtnestated as an interest rate
payable annually in arrears and is computed inowdash and payment in kind, or PIK interest, alb ageaccretion of original
issue discount. There can be no assurance thaietighted average yield will remain at their curriaveel.

Our investments generally range in size from $3ionilto $30 million, and we may also selectivelyést in larger
positions, and we generally expect that the sizeuofpositions will increase in proportion to theesof our capital base.
Pending such investments, we may reduce our odisigiindebtedness or invest in cash, cash equitslenS. government
securities and other high-quality debt investmeavrits a maturity of one year or less. In the futiwe, may adjust
opportunistically the percentage of our assets imel@rious types of loans, our principal loan smgrand the industries to
which we have greatest exposure, based on markditmms, the credit cycle, available financing ana desired risk/return
profile.

Stellus Capital Management

Stellus Capital Management manages our investnuginttaes and is responsible for analyzing investtn@pportunities,
conducting research and performing due diligencpaiantial investments, negotiating and structudnginvestments,
originating prospective investments and monitoong investments and portfolio companies on an argbasis. Stellus
Capital Management is an investment advisory fethby the former head, Robert T. Ladd, and ceganior investment
professionals of the direct capital business dEDShaw & Co., L.P. and its associated investmaemd$ and affiliated entities
(collectively, the “D. E. Shaw group”), which spaat of the D. E. Shaw group in January 2012. The
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Stellus Capital Management investment team wasresiple for helping the D. E. Shaw group buildntsldle-market direct
investment business until it spun out in Januard22@he senior investment professionals of Stellapital Management have
an average of over 25 years of investing, corpdm#mce, restructuring, consulting and accounérgerience and have
worked together at several companies, includingxhE. Shaw group. The Stellus Capital Managenmargstment team has a
wide range of experience in middle-market investingluding originating, structuring and managiongrs and debt securities
through market cycles. The Stellus Capital Managdrnmyestment team continues to provide investraertsory services to
the D. E. Shaw group with respect to an approxim&277 million investment portfolio (as of Decemlt3d, 2014) in middle-
market companies pursuant to sub-advisory arrangesme

In addition to serving as our investment adviset tre sub-advisor to the D. E. Shaw group as nalede, Stellus Capital
Management currently manages a private credit thatlhas an investment strategy that is ident@altr investment strategy
and energy private equity funds. We received exampelief from the SEC to co-invest with investrhuamds managed by
Stellus Capital Management (other than the D. BvwSfroup funds) where doing so is consistent withiovestment strategy
as well as applicable law (including the terms eodditions of the exemptive order issued by the SE& believe that such
co-investments may afford us additional investnamgortunities and an ability to achieve greateedification. We will not
co-invest with the energy private equity fundsttesenergy private equity funds focus on predontlgaquity-related
investments, and we focus on predominantly cred#ted investments.

Stellus Capital Management is headquartered in tdau3exas, and also maintains an office in the Mfaigon, D.C. area.

Market Opportunity

We originate and invest primarily in private midaf@rket companies through first lien, second ligrifranche and
mezzanine debt financing, often times with a cquoesling equity investment. We believe the environttier investing in
middle-market companies is attractive for severabons, including:

Robust Demand for Debt Capital We believe that private equity firms have sigrafit committed but uncalled capital, a
large portion of which is still available for inesent in the United States. We expect the largeusanof uninvested capital
commitments will drive buyout activity over the neseveral years, which should, in turn, createilepdpportunities for us. In
addition to increased buyout activity, a high votuof senior secured and high yield debt was ortgohan the calendar years
2004 through 2007 and will come due in the neantand, accordingly, we believe that new financipgartunities will
increase as many companies seek to refinancenttebiedness.

Reduced Availability of Capital for Middle-Market @mpanies. We believe there are fewer providers of, and degstal
available for financing to middle-market compan&scompared to the time period prior to the reeenhomic downturn. We
believe that, as a result of that downturn, mangricing providers have chosen to focus on largeidicorporate loans and
managing capital markets transactions rather thagihg to middle-market businesses. In additionpaleeve recent regulatory
changes, including the adoption of the Dodd-Fraokakd the introduction of new international capdiad liquidity
requirements under the Basel Il Accords, or “BdBglhave caused banks to curtail their lendiogriddle-market-companies.
As a result, we believe that less competition faiflilitate higher quality deal flow and allow foremter selectivity throughout
the investment process.

Attractive Deal Pricing and Structures.We believe that the pricing of middle-market diglvestments is higher, and the
terms of such investments are more conservativapaced to larger liquid, public debt financingseda the more limited
universe of lenders as well as the highly negdliature of these financings. These transactiorstte offer stronger covenant
packages, higher interest rates, lower leveragedeand better call protection compared to largemfcings. In addition,
middle-market loans typically offer other invespoptections such as default penalties, lien pratecthange of control
provisions and information rights for lenders.
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Specialized Lending RequirementsLending to middle-market companies requires iptdeliligence, credit expertise,
restructuring experience and active portfolio mamagnt. We believe that several factors render nuaBy financial institutions
ill-suited to lend to middle-market companies. Erample, based on the experience of Stellus Cagaabhgement's
investment team, lending to middle-market compaimdbe United States (a) is generally more labtegrisive than lending to
larger companies due to the smaller size of eagtsiment and the fragmented nature of the infoonaivailable with respect
to such companies, (b) requires specialized digedite and underwriting capabilities, and (c) miap aequire more extensive
ongoing monitoring by the lender. We believe thtatpugh Stellus Capital Management, we have thememce and expertise
to meet these specialized lending requirements.

Competitive Strengths
We believe that the following competitive strengivilt allow us to achieve positive returns for anvestors:

Experienced Investment TeamThrough our investment adviser, Stellus Capitah&gement, we have access to the
experience and expertise of the Stellus Capitaldgdament investment team, including its senior itnaeat professionals who
have an average of over 25 years of investing,aratp finance, restructuring, consulting and actingrexperience and have
worked together at several companies. The Stelfyst@ Management investment team has a wide rahgeperience in
middle-market investing, including originating,stturing and managing loans and debt securitieutfir market cycles. We
believe the members of Stellus Capital Managemamiasstment team are proven and experienced, witmsive capabilities
in leveraged credit investing, having participatethese markets for the predominant portion oirtbareers. We believe that
the experience and demonstrated ability of thdu&t&apital Management investment team to comptatesactions enhances
the quantity and quality of investment opportuitivailable to us.

Established, Rigorous Investment and Monitoring Riess. The Stellus Capital Management investment teasn ha
developed an extensive review and credit analysisgss. Each investment that is reviewed by St€lhgtal Management is
brought through a structured, multi-stage apprpvatess. In addition, Stellus Capital Managemekgdan active approach in
monitoring all investments, including reviews afdncial performance on at least a quarterly bagisegular discussions with
management. Stellus Capital Management’s investarethimonitoring process and the depth and expeiehits investment
team should allow it to conduct the type of duégdihce and monitoring that enables it to identif@d @valuate risks and
opportunities.

Demonstrated Ability to Structure Investments Criealy. Stellus Capital Management has the expertiseabitity to
structure investments across all levels of a coyigasapital structure. While at the D. E. Shaw grotine Stellus Capital
Management investment team invested approximatel Killion across the entire capital structurd @8 middle-market
companies. These investments included securedrss@tured debt and related equity securities. Fumibre, we believe that
current market conditions will allow us to strucattractively priced debt investments and mayalis to incorporate other
return-enhancing mechanisms such as commitmentdegal issue discounts, early redemption prensupayment-in-kind,
or “PIK,” interest or some form of equity securitie

Resources of Stellus Capital Management Platfornwe have access to the resources and capabhilft@®llus Capital
Management, which has 18 investment professiomalkiding Messrs. Ladd, Dean D’Angelo, Joshua TviBand Todd A.
Overbergen, who are supported by five managingttire, one principal, three vice presidents andanalysts. These
individuals have developed long-term relationshijith middle-market companies, management teamandial sponsors,
lending institutions and deal intermediaries bytng flexible financing throughout the capitahstture. We believe that
these relationships provide us with a competitidlgamtage in identifying investment opportunitieour target market. We also
expect to benefit from Stellus Capital Managemedtis diligence, credit analysis, origination armh$action execution
experience and capabilities, including the suppovided with respect to those functions by Mr. Wddd Huskinson, who
serves as our chief financial officer and chief ptiance officer, and his staff of five additionaldnand back-office
professionals.
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Investment Strategy

The Stellus Capital Management investment team @ysn opportunistic and flexible investing apptoammbined with
strong risk management processes, which we beldlgield a highly diversified portfolio across mpanies, industries, and
investment types. We seek direct origination oppaties of first lien, second lien, unitranche anezzanine debt financing,
often times with modest corresponding equity inwesits, in middle-market companies. We believe lthgtnesses in this size
range often have limited access to public finangiatkets, and will benefit from Stellus Capital Mgement’s reliable lending
partnership. Many financing providers have choseiotus on large corporate clients and managingataparkets transactions
rather than lending to middle-market businesseghBy many financial institutions and traditiotethders are faced with
constrained balance sheets and are requiring existrrowers to reduce leverage.

With an average of over 25 years of investing, orafe finance, restructuring, consulting and actiagrexperience, the
senior investment team of Stellus Capital Managéras demonstrated investment expertise througheutalance sheet and
in a variety of situations, including financial spgor buyouts, growth capital, debt refinancingsafee sheet recapitalizations,
rescue financings, distressed opportunities, agdisition financings. Our investment philosophy éragizes capital
preservation through superior credit selection msidmitigation. We expect our portfolio to providewnside protection
through conservative cash flow and asset coveremggnrements, priority in the capital structure &fdrmation requirements.
We also anticipate benefiting from equity partitipa through warrants and other equity instrumeirisctured as part of our
investments. This flexible approach enables Stéllagital Management to respond to market conditéarsoffer customized
lending solutions.

Stellus Capital Management invests across a widgeraf industries with deep expertise in selecticads including, but
not limited to, business services, energy, genedaistrial, government services, healthcare softveend specialty finance. Our
typical transactions include providing financing feveraged buyouts, acquisitions, recapitalizajagmowth opportunities,
rescue financings, distressed or turnaround sitnatand bridge loans. We seek to maintain a diedlgportfolio of
investments as a method to manage risk and cagitafi specific sector trends.

Our objective is to act as the lead or largeststein transactions, generally investing betwegmllion and $30 million
per transaction. We expect the average investnadirly period to be between two and four yearseddpmg upon portfolio
company objectives and conditions in the capitalkeizs.

We focus on middle-market companies with betweemifton and $50 million of EBITDA in a variety ahdustry sectors
with positive long-term dynamics and dependabld ¢asvs. We seek businesses with management teattmsl@monstrated
track records and economic incentives in strongchéses and sustainable competitive advantagesdejtendable and
predictable cash flows.

We employ leverage prudently and within the limias of the applicable laws and regulations forifiess development
companies. Any decision on our part to use levevatieglepend upon our assessment of the attractisgof available
investment opportunities in relation to the costd perceived risks of such leverage.

Transaction Sourcing

As access to investment opportunities is highlgtrehship-driven, the senior investment team ahéminvestment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management spendiderable time developing and maintaining costadth key deal
sources, including private equity firms, investmianks and senior lenders. The senior investmant tad other investment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management haem laetively investing in the middle-market for fhest decade and have
focused on extensive calling and marketing effaidsspeaking engagements, sponsorships, industriteand referrals to
broaden their relationship network. Existing relaships are constantly cultivated through traneaetiwork and other personal
contacts.
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In addition to financial sponsors, Stellus Caplianagement has developed a network of other deatss, including:
* management teams and entrepreneurs;

e portfolio companies of private equity firms;

< other investment firms that have similar stratego Stellus Capital Management and are seekigvestors;

« placement agents and investment banks repregdintancial sponsors and issuers;

e corporate operating advisers and other finarazlalsers; and

e consultants, attorneys and other service prosittemiddle-market companies and financial sponsors

We believe that Stellus Capital Management’s bioetavork of deal origination contacts will afford with a continuous
source of investment opportunities.

These origination relationships provide accesonbt to potential investment opportunities but alsanarket intelligence
on trends across the credit markets. Since inaep#itellus Capital Management has completed fimgntansactions with
more than 100 equity sponsors and completed maittiphncing transactions with 23 of those equityrsors.

We believe that, over the past decade, the semiestment team and other investment professiofi@setius Capital
Management have built a reputation as a thoughtfdldisciplined provider of capital to middle-markempanies and a
preferred financing source for private equity sprasand management teams. We believe these fapterstellus Capital
Management a competitive advantage in sourcingsinvent opportunities, which are put to use forlmemefit.

Investment Structuring

Stellus Capital Management believes that each tmar#t has unique characteristics that must be deresil, understood
and analyzed. Stellus Capital Management structovestment terms based on the business, the edite, the outlook for
the industry in which a potential portfolio compamperates, the competitive landscape, the produdsrvices which the
company sells and the management team and ownexfstiip company, among other factors. Stellus @apanagement
relies upon the analysis conducted and informagathered through the investment process to evalnateppropriate structure
for our investments.

We invest primarily in the debt securities of miglgtharket companies. Our investments typically carhygh level of cash
pay interest and may incorporate other return-ecihngmrmechanisms such as commitment fees, origisaki discounts, early
redemption premiums, PIK interest and some forraqufity participation, including preferred stockpmaoon stock, warrants
and other forms of equity participation. We expéet a typical debt investment in which we invedt have a term at
origination of between five and seven years. Wesekm hold most of our investments to maturityegrayment, but we may
sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidityent occurs, such as a sale, recapitalizatiavoesening of the credit quality
of the portfolio company.

Stellus Capital Management negotiates covenarasrinection with debt investments that provide potide for us but
allow appropriate flexibility for the portfolio copany. Such covenants may include affirmative arghtiee covenants, default
penalties, lien protection and change of control/jmions. Stellus Capital Management requires cetmgmsive information
rights including access to management, financakstents and budgets and, in some cases, membensthip board of
directors or board of directors observation riglidditionally, Stellus Capital Management generadlguires financial
covenants and terms that restrict an issuer’s Lilsverage and limitations on asset sales andaapipenditures.
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Secured Debt

Secured debt, including first lien, second lien andranche financing, has liens on the assetsebbrrower that serve as
collateral in support of the repayment of such fan

First Lien Debt. First lien debt is structured with first-prigriiens on the assets of the borrower that seneobateral in
support of the repayment of such loans. Firstlii@ms may provide for moderate loan amortizatiothenearly years of the
loan, with the majority of the amortization defefnentil loan maturity.

Second Lien Debt Second lien debt is structured as junior, setloans, with second priority liens on an issuassets.
These loans typically provide for moderate loan dization in the initial years of the loan, withetimajority of the amortization
deferred until loan maturity.

Unitranche Debt Unitranche debt typically is structured as firsh loans with certain risk characteristics ofarenine
debt. Unitranche debt typically provides for modedaan amortization in the initial years of thétevith the majority of the
principal payment deferred until loan maturity. &runitranche debt generally allows the borrowen#édke a large lump sum
payment of principal at the end of the loan tetmayé is a risk of loss if the borrower is unabl@ay the lump sum or refinance
the amount owed at maturity. In some cases, webwithe sole lender, or we together with our af@ls will be the sole lender,
of unitranche debt, which can provide us with miafeience interacting with a borrower in terms aémitoring and, if
necessary, remediation in the event of underpedaoo®.

Mezzanine Debt

Mezzanine debt, including senior unsecured andrsirieited loans, is not be secured by any collaterdlis effectively
subordinated to the borrower’s secured indebtedftedhe extent of the collateral securing suctebiddness), including
pursuant to one or more intercreditor agreemeratiswie enter into with holders of a borrower’s seuwiebt.

Senior Unsecured LoansSenior unsecured loans are structured as Ibahsank senior in right of payment to any of the
borrower’s unsecured indebtedness that is contfigtsubordinated to such loans. These loans giyne@ravide for fixed
interest rates and amortize evenly over the terthefoan. Senior unsecured loans are generaby@stile than subordinated
loans due to their priority over subordinated loans

Subordinated Loans Subordinated loans are structured as unsecsmedydinated loans that provide for relatively high
fixed interest rates that provide us with signifitaurrent interest income. These loans typicadlyehinterest-only payments
(often representing a combination of cash pay dKdrRerest) in the early years, with amortizatioinprincipal deferred to
maturity. Subordinated loans generally allow thertwer to make a large lump sum payment of principashe end of the loan
term, and there is a risk of loss if the borrovgeumable to pay the lump sum or refinance the atmmuad at maturity.
Subordinated loans are generally more volatile #erured loans and senior unsecured loans andnwalyé a greater risk of
loss of principal as compared to other types afiso&ubordinated loans often include a PIK featwtaech effectively operates
as negative amortization of loan principal, therginyeasing credit risk exposure over the lifeta toan.

Equity Securities

In connection with some of our debt investmentsnves also invest in preferred or common stock oeivee nominally
priced warrants or options to buy an equity inteireshe portfolio company. As a result, as a pwitf company appreciates in
value, we may achieve additional investment reftam this equity interest. We may structure suchitygnvestments and
warrants to include provisions protecting our riggas a minority-interest holder, as well as a “putyright to sell such
securities back to the issuer, upon the occurrehspecified events. In many cases, we may aldoteegbtain registration
rights in connection with these equity interestliclt may include demand and “piggyback” registmatiights.

Investment Process

Through the resources of Stellus Capital Managememtave access to significant research resousgpsyienced
investment professionals, internal information syst and a credit analysis framework and investpetess. Stellus Capital
Management has designed a highly involved andantie investment
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management process, which is the core of its milind the basis for what we believe is a stroragktrecord of investment
returns. The investment process seeks to selegtlode investments which it believes have the rattsictive risk/reward
characteristics. The process involves several $eveteview and is coordinated in an effort to idfgrrisks in potential
investments. Stellus Capital Management appliesxitertise to screen our investment opportunitesescribed below. This
rigorous process, combined with our broad origoratiapabilities, has allowed the Stellus Capitahbtgement team to be
prudent in selecting opportunities in which to makeinvestment.

All potential investment opportunities undergo aitial informal review by Stellus Capital Managertisrinvestment
professionals. Each potential investment oppornjuthiat an investment professional determines mensstment consideration
is presented and evaluated at a weekly meetindniochaStellus Capital Management's investment pisitesals discuss the
merits and risks of a potential investment oppadtyuas well as the due diligence process and thengrand structure. If
Stellus Capital Management’s investment profesdsobelieve an investment opportunity merits furtteniew, the deal team
prepares and presents to the investment commadterifial review a prescreen memorandum that gahedescribes the
potential transaction and includes a descriptiothefrisks, due diligence process and proposedtateiand pricing for the
proposed investment opportunity.

Prior to making an investment, Stellus Capital Mgamaent conducts rigorous diligence on each invastimgportunity. In
connection with its due diligence on a potentigeistment opportunity, Stellus Capital Managemeilizes its internal
diligence resources which include its internallyeleped credit analytical framework, subscriptibmshird party research
resources, discussions with industry experts, matanformation sharing systems and the analyggalertise of its investment
professionals. Stellus Capital Management typicalyews the company’s historical financials; inayslrivers and outlook,
competitive threats, customer concentration, agsetrage, projected financials and credit metntanagement background
checks; and, if applicable, the track record amdlifing capabilities of the private equity sponsor.

Upon review of the prescreen memorandum, if thestment committee determines to proceed with thieweof an
investment opportunity, the deal team continuediligence and deal structuring plans, and prepamedit approval
memorandum for review by the investment committé® credit approval memorandum, updates the preseremorandum
with more deal specific detail, including an updat¢he diligence process and any changes in thetste and pricing of the
proposed investment. Upon unanimous approval byntrestment committee of the proposed investmepresented in the
credit approval memorandum, the Chief Investmeffic&f reviews any amendments before finalizing eloding negotiations
with the prospective portfolio company.

Investment Committee

Each new investment opportunity is unanimously apgd by Stellus Capital Management’s investmentrodtee. Follow-
on investments in existing portfolio companies iegjthe investment committee’s approval beyond tiihined when the
initial investment in the company was made. Thegpse of Stellus Capital Management'’s investmentroittee is to evaluate
and approve all of our investments, subject airaks to the oversight and approval of our boardigctors. The investment
committee process is intended to bring the divergperience and perspectives of the committee’s reesrtb the analysis and
consideration of each investment. The investmemirgittee consists of Messrs. Robert T. Ladd, Dealnigélo, Joshua T.
Davis, Todd A. Overbergen and W. Todd Huskinsore ifivestment committee serves to provide investro@nsistency and
adherence to our core investment philosophy anidipsl The investment committee also determinesagpiate investment
sizing and suggests ongoing monitoring requirements

In addition to reviewing investments, investmeninoaittee meetings serve as a forum to discuss orimits and outlooks.
Potential transactions and deal flow are reviewed cegular basis. Members of the investment teanercouraged to share
information and views on credits with the investinesmmittee early in their analysis. We believes fhiocess improves the
quality of the analysis and assists the deal te@mipers to work more efficiently.
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Each transaction is presented to the investmentttiee in a formal written report. All of our nemiestments require
unanimous approval by the investment committeehBaember of the investment committee performs daimole for other
accounts managed by Stellus Capital Managemenertain instances, including in connection withimeestments under our
exemptive order, our board of directors may aldemiaine that its approval is required prior to thaking of an investment.

Monitoring Investments

In most cases, we do not have board influence pegfolio companies. In some instances, Stellusit@allanagement’s
investment professionals may obtain board repraientor observation rights in conjunction with avestments. Stellus
Capital Management takes an active approach intoramg all investments, including reviews of fingalgerformance on at
least a quarterly basis and regular discussiorts wiénagement. The monitoring process begins witittsiring terms and
conditions, which require the timely delivery aratess to critical financial and business informatia portfolio companies.

Specifically, Stellus Capital Management’s monitgrsystem consists of the following activities:

Regular Investment Committee Updateasey portfolio company developments are discussazh week as part of the
standard investment committee agenda.

Written Reports The deal teams provide written updates as apipteffor key events that impact portfolio company
performance or valuation. In addition, deal teammviole written updates following each portfolio coamy board meeting.

Quarterly Full Portfolio Review Our Chief Investment Officer and Chief Compliar@fficer perform a quarterly
comprehensive review of every portfolio companyhvtite deal teams. This process includes a writtefopnance and
valuation update, and credit-specific discussiorach of our portfolio companies. In addition, puanst to our valuation policy,
quarterly valuations are reviewed by our indepehttard party valuation firm.

As part of the monitoring process, Stellus Captahagement also tracks developments in the braaderetplace. Stellus
Capital Management'’s investment professionals laawealth of information on the competitive landsgapdustry trends,
relative valuation metrics, and analyses that Bssibie execution of our investment strategy.dditon, Stellus Capital
Management's extensive communications with brokesdealers allows its investment professionatadaitor market and
industry trends that could affect portfolio invesimts. Stellus Capital Management may provide ongsirategic, financial and
operational guidance to some portfolio companiteeeidirectly or by recommending its investmentfessionals or other
experienced representatives to participate on dlaedbof directors. Stellus Capital Management nad@mstan extensive network
of strategic and operational advisers to call ufporindustry expertise or to supplement existinghagement teams.

Asset Quality

In addition to various risk management and monigtools, Stellus Capital Management uses an imegst ranking
system to characterize and monitor the credit fgrafind expected level of returns on each investmmemtr portfolio. This
investment ranking system uses a five-level nunséde. The following is a description of the cdiudis associated with each
investment category:

Investment Category 1 is used for investmentsat@aperforming above expectations, and whose reskain favorable
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment.

Investment Category 2 is used for investmentsat@aperforming within expectations and whose rigksain neutral
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment. All new loans are initially rdt@.

Investment Category 3 is used for investmentsat@aperforming below expectations and that requleser monitoring, but
where no loss of return or principal is expectenttfdlio companies with a rating of 3 may be outompliance with financial
covenants.
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Investment Category 4 is used for investmentsat@aperforming substantially below expectationswhdse risks have
increased substantially since the original invesitm€&hese investments are often in work out. Inmesits with a rating of 4 are
those for which some loss of contractual returnrimiboss of principal is expected.

Investment Category 5 is used for investmentsat@aperforming substantially below expectationswahdse risks have
increased substantially since the original invesitm€&hese investments are almost always in worklauestments with a rating
of 5 are those for which some loss of return amacjpal is expected.

In the event that Stellus Capital Management detersthat an investment is underperforming, onuirstances suggest
that the risk associated with a particular investhntas significantly increased, Stellus Capital Bgament will increase its
monitoring intensity and prepare regular updatestfe investment committee, summarizing currentajeg results and
material impending events and suggesting recomntead#ons. While the investment ranking system fifies the relative risk
for each investment, the ranking alone does ndatdiche scope and/or frequency of any monitotiag is performed. The
frequency of Stellus Capital Management’'s moniiaf an investment is determined by a number dbfa¢including, but not
limited to, the trends in the financial performaméé¢he portfolio company, the investment structamel the type of collateral
securing the investment.

Determination of Net Asset Value and Portfolio Valtion Process

The net asset value per share of our outstandimgstof common stock is determined quarterly bydaig the value of
total assets minus liabilities by the total numbieshares outstanding.

In calculating the value of our total assets, itwent transactions will be recorded on the trade.dRealized gains or
losses will be computed using the specific idecdiion method. Investments for which market quotetiare readily available
are valued at such market quotations. Debt andyegecurities that are not publicly traded or whowseket price is not readily
available are valued at fair value as determinegbiod faith by our board of directors based onirthbet of our management and
audit committee. In addition, our board of direstogtains one or more independent valuation fiomgvtiew each quarter, the
valuation of each portfolio investment for whicimarket quotation is not available. We also haveptathAccounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codificate Bair Value Measurements and Disclosures “ASC 820.” This
accounting statement requires us to assume thaotti®lio investment is assumed to be sold inghiecipal market to market
participants, or in the absence of a principal ragrthe most advantageous market, which may beathgtical market. Market
participants are defined as buyers and selledseiptincipal or most advantageous market thatratependent, knowledgeable,
and willing and able to transact. In accordancé W8C 820, the market in which we can exit pordfativestments with the
greatest volume and level activity is consideredmincipal market.

A readily available market value is not expecteetist for most of the investments in our portfpbmd we value these
portfolio investments at fair value as determinedaod faith by our board of directors under odu&ton policy and process.
The types of factors that our board of directory tad&e into account in determining the fair vald®or investments generally
include, as appropriate, comparisons of finan@tbs portfolio company to peer companies thapaltgic, the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolanmgpany’s ability to make payments and its earnamgs$ discounted cash flow,
the markets in which the portfolio company doedress, and other relevant factors.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcwe consider the
pricing indicated by the external event to corraberour valuation. Due to the inherent uncertaifitgetermining the fair value
of investments that do not have a readily availaiéeket value, the fair value of the investmenty atiffer materially from the
values that would have been used had a readilyadaimarket value existed for such investmentsaddition, changes in the
market environment and other events that may oweerr the life of the investments may cause thegairdosses ultimately
realized on these investments to be different filoenvaluations currently assigned.
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With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available, our board of divestundertakes a multi-
step valuation process each quarter, as descrided/b

e our quarterly valuation process begins with gaatifolio company or investment being initially ueld by the
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managrgmesponsible for the portfolio investment;

e preliminary valuation conclusions are then docoteé and discussed with our senior management tidsSCapital
Management;

e the audit committee of our board of directormtheviews these preliminary valuations;
e each quarter, the valuation for each portfolieestment is reviewed by an independent valuation; fand

- the board of directors then discusses the valoatand determines the fair value of each invedtmesur portfolio in
good faith, based on the input of Stellus Capitahslgement, the independent valuation firm and tld& aommittee.

In following these approaches, the types of factioas are taken into account in fair value pricing investments include,
as relevant, but are not limited to:

e available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction cvaiges;
e applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

« call protection provisions;

« information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

» the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits earnings and discounted cash flows and th&etaim which it
does business;

» comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatiies are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a

« the principal market and enterprise values.

Realization of Investments

The potential exit scenarios of a portfolio compalgy an important role in evaluating investmertisiens. As such,
Stellus Capital Management formulates specific stxdtegies at the time of investment. Our del#rddtion provides for
increased potential exit opportunities, includiaythe sale of investments in the private markbjsthe refinancing of
investments held, often due to maturity or recéipdions, and (c) other liquidity events includitite sale or merger of the
portfolio company. Since we seek to maintain a deilgntation in our investments, we expect to nee@iterest income over
the course of the investment period, resulting sigaificant return on invested capital well in adee of final exit.

Derivatives

We may utilize hedging techniques such as inteetstswaps to mitigate potential interest rate oislour indebtedness.
Such interest rate swaps would principally be usqutotect us against higher costs on our indelgesinesulting from increases
in both short-term and long-term interest rates.alée may use various hedging and other risk managestrategies to seek to
manage various risks, including changes in currexcphange rates and market interest rates. Sudingestrategies would be
utilized to seek to protect the value of our pditfinvestments, for example, against possible esbvehanges in the market
value of securities held in our portfolio.
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Managerial Assistance

As a business development company, we offer, arat provide upon request, managerial assistancertpartfolio
companies. This assistance could involve monitotfirggoperations of our portfolio companies, pgptiting in board and
management meetings, consulting with and advisifigeos of portfolio companies and providing otleeganizational and
financial guidance. Stellus Capital Managementoafiiliate of Stellus Capital Management providesh managerial
assistance on our behalf to portfolio companiesréguest this assistance. We may receive feabdse services and will
reimburse Stellus Capital Management or an aféilftStellus Capital Management for its allocatestg in providing such
assistance, subject to the review by our boardrettbrs, including our independent directors.

Competition

Our primary competitors in providing financing taddle-market companies include public and privateds, other business
development companies, commercial and investmarksh@ommercial financing companies and, to therexthey provide an
alternative form of financing, private equity anedge funds. Many of our competitors are substdnteiger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mimkeresources than we do. For example, we beBewee competitors may
have access to funding sources that are not alaiialvs. In addition, some of our competitors rhaye higher risk tolerances
or different risk assessments, which could alloanitto consider a wider variety of investments astdldish more relationships
than us. Furthermore, many of our competitors atesnbject to the regulatory restrictions that18d0 Act imposes on us as a
business development company or to the distribwtimoh other requirements we must satisfy to mairgaimgualification as a
RIC.

We use the expertise of the investment professsaofabtellus Capital Management to which we hawesg to assess
investment risks and determine appropriate priimgur investments in portfolio companies. In diddi, we believe that the
relationships of the investment professionals efl& Capital Management enable us to learn alamgt,compete effectively
for, financing opportunities with attractive midetiearket companies in the industries in which weegty

Employees

We do not have any direct employees, and our dalajoinvestment operations are managed by Stethpétat
Management. We have a chief executive officer ardigent and a chief financial officer and chiefngdiance officer. To the
extent necessary, our board of directors may liditianal personnel going forward. Our officers araployees of Stellus
Capital Management and our allocable portion ofcist of our chief financial officer and chief coliapce officer and their
respective staffs is paid by us pursuant to theigidimation agreement that we have entered inth ®tellus Capital
Management.

Management Agreements

Stellus Capital Management serves as our investatviser and is registered as an investment aduisdegr the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, or the “Advisers Act.” In atidn, Stellus Capital Management serves as ourigidtrator.

Investment Advisory Agreement

Subject to the overall supervision of our boardioéctors and in accordance with the 1940 Act,|@&eCapital Management
manages our day-to-day operations and providesimeant advisory services to us. Under the terntseofnvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management:

« determines the composition of our portfolio, ttegure and timing of the changes to our portfolid the manner of
implementing such changes;

« identifies, evaluates and negotiates the streatfithe investments we make;
e executes, closes, services and monitors the timezds we make;
« determines the securities and other assets thauwchase, retain or sell;

« performs due diligence on prospective portfobonpanies; and
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e provides us with such other investment advismrgearch and related services as we may, fromtartime, reasonably
require for the investment of our funds.

Pursuant to the investment advisory agreement,ave hgreed to pay Stellus Capital Management foféevestment
advisory and management services consisting ottwmaponents — a base management fee and an incégivEhe cost of
both the base management fee and the incentivarédaorne by our stockholders.

Management Fee

The base management fee is calculated at an arateadf 1.75% of our gross assets, including agaethased with
borrowed funds or other forms of leverage (incladimeferred stock, public and private debt issugnderivative instruments,
repurchase agreements and other similar instrunoesisangements) and excluding cash and cashagqote. For services
rendered under the investment advisory agreenfenpase management fee is payable quarterly iararr€he base
management fee is calculated based on the aveahge of our gross assets, excluding cash and cpstadents, at the end of
the two most recently completed calendar quarBase management fees for any partial month or euaré appropriately pro-
rated.

Incentive Fee

We pay Stellus Capital Management an incentivelfesentive fees are calculated as below and paypldeterly in arrears.
The incentive fee, which provides Stellus Capita@mdgement with a share of the income that it géeefar us, has two
components, ordinary income and capital gainsutatied as follows:

The ordinary income component is calculated anébpl@yquarterly in arrears based on our pre-inceriée net investment
income for the immediately preceding calendar guasubject to a total return requirement, andrdafef non-cash amounts,
and is 20.0% of the amount, if any, by which ow-prcentive fee net investment income, expressedrate of return on the
value of our net assets attributable to our comstook, for the immediately preceding calendar grasgxceeds a 2.0% (which
is 8.0% annualized) hurdle rate and a “catch-up¥jsion measured as of the end of each calendateyuelnder this
provision, in any calendar quarter, Stellus Capitahagement receives no incentive fee until ousipcentive fee net
investment income equals the hurdle rate of 2.0%tHen receives, as a “catch-up,” 100% of ouripcentive fee net
investment income with respect to that portionwdtspre-incentive fee net investment income, if,dhgt exceeds the hurdle
rate but is less than 2.5%.

The effect of the “catch-up” provision is that, fadi to the total return provision discussed beldyre-incentive fee net
investment income exceeds 2.5% in any calendatep&tellus Capital Management receives 20.0%uopoe-incentive fee
net investment income as if a hurdle rate did ppiya For this purpose, pre-incentive fee net itwest income means interest
income, dividend income and any other income (idiclg any other fees, such as commitment, originasitructuring,
diligence, managerial assistance and consultingdeether fees that we receive from portfolio camips) accrued during the
calendar quarter, minus our operating expensefhéoguarter (including the base management feeresgs payable under the
administration agreement (as described below)aarydnterest expense and any distributions paidnynissued and
outstanding preferred stock, but excluding thenitive fee). Pre-incentive fee net investment incametudes, in the case of
investments with a deferred interest feature (aschriginal issue discount, debt instruments wit iBterest and zero coupon
securities), accrued income that we have not y&tived in cash. The foregoing incentive fee is aciijo a total return
requirement, which provides that no incentive feesispect of the Company’s pre-incentive fee natstment income will be
payable except to the extent 20.0% of the cumudaiit increase in net assets resulting from opermtiver the then current
and 11 preceding quarters exceeds the cumulatbemnfive fees accrued and/or paid for the 11 pracegliarters. In other
words, any ordinary income incentive fee that iggtde in a calendar quarter will be limited to tesser of (i) 20.0% of the
amount by which our pre-incentive fee net investniiecome for such calendar quarter exceeds the Ail¥tle, subject to the
“catch-up” provision, and (ii) (x) 20.0% of the cutative net increase in net assets resulting frpsrations for the then current
and 11 preceding calendar quartaiaus(y) the cumulative incentive fees accrued and/dd fr the 11 preceding calendar
quarters.

For the foregoing purpose, the “cumulative netéase in net assets resulting from operations"@sthount, if positive, of
the sum of pre-incentive fee net investment incamaljzed gains and losses and
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unrealized appreciation and depreciation of the @amy for the then current and 11 preceding calegdarters. In addition, the
portion of such incentive fee that is attributatl@leferred interest (such as PIK interest or Giid)be paid to Stellus Capital
Management, without any interest thereon, onlyni to the extent we actually receive such interesash, and any accrual
thereof will be reversed if and to the extent simtlrest is reversed in connection with any writeo similar treatment of the
investment giving rise to any deferred interestaaic Any reversal of such amounts would reducdanmeetme for the quarter by
the net amount of the reversal (after taking irdcoant the reversal of incentive fees payable)vamdld result in a reduction
and possible elimination of the incentive feesdiach quarter. There is no accumulation of amounthe hurdle rate from
quarter to quarter, and accordingly there is nwkck of amounts previously paid if subsequent gusiare below the
quarterly hurdle, and there is no delay of paynifgmtior quarters are below the quarterly hurdieli8s Capital Management
has agreed to permanently waive any interest adauneghe portion of the incentive fee attributalol@eferred interest (such as
PIK interest or OID).

Pre-incentive fee net investment income does rabade any realized capital gains, realized capisdes or unrealized
capital appreciation or depreciation. Because @fsthucture of the incentive fee, it is possiblgt the may pay an incentive fee
in a quarter where we incur a loss, subject taated return requirement. For example, if we reegive-incentive fee net
investment income in excess of the quarterly mimmwrdle rate, we will pay the applicable incentige even if we have
incurred a loss in that quarter due to realizedwréalized capital losses. Our net investmentrirecased to calculate this
component of the incentive fee is also includethemamount of our gross assets used to calculate. % base management
fee. These calculations are appropriately prorfaedny period of less than three months and aeljLfsr any share issuances
or repurchases during the current quarter.

The following is a graphical representation of tiagculation of the income-related portion of thedntive fee:

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on Net Investment Irame
Pre-Incentive Fee Net Investment Income
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net dsye

0 2.0% 2.5%

| | |
| | | >

4+— 0% —p4— 100% >« 20% >

Percentage of Pre-incentive Fee Net Investment Inow®
Allocated to Income-Related Portion of Incentive Fe

The capital gains component of the incentive fedeigrmined and payable in arrears as of the epddf calendar year (or
upon termination of the investment advisory agre@nes of the termination date), is equal to 20d#%ur cumulative
aggregate realized capital gains from inceptionugh the end of that calendar year, computed netiodggregate cumulative
realized capital losses and our aggregate cumalativealized capital depreciation through the drslich year, less the
aggregate amount of any previously paid capitaigaicentive fees. If such amount is negative, tienapital gains incentive
fee will be payable for such year. Additionallytie investment advisory agreement is terminatesf agdate that is not a
calendar year end, the termination date will bat&e as though it were a calendar year end forgseipof calculating and
paying the capital gains incentive fee.
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Examples of Quarterly Incentive Fee Calculation
Example 1: Income Related Portion of Incentive Febefore Total Return Requirement Calculation:

Alternative 1
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenagd, etc.) = 1.25%
Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsghs 0.6125%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income does noe@x hurdle rate, therefore there is no incomdeglmcentive fee.

Alternative 2
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenaxd, etc.) = 2.9%
Hurdle rate?) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian, feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsghs 2.2625%

Incentive = 100% x Pre-incentive fee net investment incoraejést to “catch-up”§®
fee = 100% x (2.2625% — 2.0%)
=0.2625%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedbuhdle rate, but does not fully satisfy the “catgdt provision, therefore
the income related portion of the incentive fe@.26525%.

Alternative 3
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenaxd, etc.) = 3.5%

Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian, feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsghs 2.8625%

Incentive fee = 100% x Pre-incentive fee net investt income (subject to “catch-ug®

Incentive fee = 100% x “catch-up” + (20.0% x (Pnedntive Fee Net Investment Income — 2.5%))

“Catch- =2.5% —2.0%

up” =0.5%
Incentive = (100% x 0.5%) + (20.0% x (2.8625% — 2.5%))
fee =0.5% + (20.0% x 0.3625%)

=0.5% + 0.0725%

=0.5725%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedbuhdle rate, and fully satisfies the “catch-updyision, therefore the
income related portion of the incentive fee is @%%.

(1) Represents 8.0% annualized hurdle rate.

(2) Represents 1.75% annualized base management fee
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(3) The “catch-up” provision is intended to provi@itellus Capital Management with an incentive fe200% on all pre-
incentive fee net investment income as if a huralie did not apply when our net investment incoweeeds 2.5% in any
fiscal quarter.

Example 2: Income Portion of Incentive Fee with Tal Return Requirement Calculation:

Alternative 1:
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividengsd, etc.) = 3.5%

Hurdle rate® = 2.0%

Management fe® = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exg3®@rs2.8625%

Cumulative incentive compensation accrued and/mt foa preceding 11 calendar quarters = $9,000,000

20.0% of cumulative net increase in net assetdtiegudrom operations over current and precedingalendar quarters =
$8,000,000

Although our pre-incentive fee net investment inecemceeds the hurdle rate of 2.0% (as shown in#teve 3 of
Example 1 above), no incentive fee is payable bex@0.0% of the cumulative net increase in netssssulting from
operations over the then current and 11 precedifendar quarters did not exceed the cumulativenigcand capital gains
incentive fees accrued and/or paid for the precetiincalendar quarters.

Alternative 2:
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividengsd, etc.) = 3.5%

Hurdle rate® = 2.0%

Management fe® = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exg3@rs2.8625%

Cumulative incentive compensation accrued and/mt foa preceding 11 calendar quarters = $9,000,000
20.0% of cumulative net increase in net assetdtieguirom operations over current and preceding

11 calendar quarters = $10,000,000

Because our pre-incentive fee net investment incexseeds the hurdle rate of 2.0% and because 26f.@9é¢ cumulative
net increase in net assets resulting from opemtioer the then current and 11 preceding calendatters exceeds the
cumulative income and capital gains incentive Es@sued and/or paid for the preceding 11 calendarters, an incentive fee
would be payable, as shown in Alternative 3 of Egkari above.

(1) Represents 8.0% annualized hurdle rate.

(2) Represents 1.75% annualized base management fee
Example 3: Capital Gains Portion of Incentive Fee(}:

Alternative 1:
Assumptions

Year 1: $2.0 million investment made in CompanglAvestment A”), and $3.0 million investment maideCompany B
(“Investment B”)

Year 2: Investment A sold for $5.0 million andrfaiarket value (“FMV”) of Investment B determinemtie $3.5 million

Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $ilion
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Year 4: Investment B sold for $3.25 million
The capital gains portion of the incentive fee vaoloé:
Year 1. None

Year 2: Capital gains incentive fee of $0.6 miilie- ($3.0 million realized capital gains on saldrofestment A multiplied
by 20.0%)

Year 3: None — $0.4 million (20.0% multiplied $3(0 million cumulative capital gains less $1.0limil cumulative
capital depreciation)) less $0.6 million (previaapital gains fee paid in Year 2)

Year 4: Capital gains incentive fee of $50,000 8-:65 million ($3.25 million cumulative realized ¢&gb gains multiplied
by 20.0%) less $0.6 million (capital gains inceatfee taken in Year 2)

Alternative 2
Assumptions

Year 1: $2.0 million investment made in Compang‘lavestment A”), $5.25 million investment made@ompany B
(“Investment B”) and $4.5 million investment madeGompany C (“Investment C”)

Year 2: Investment A sold for $4.5 million, FMV bfvestment B determined to be $4.75 million and6f Investment C
determined to be $4.5 million

Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $Bilion and Investment C sold for $5.5 million
Year 4: FMV of Investment B determined to be $&i0ion

Year 5: Investment B sold for $4.0 million

The capital gains incentive fee, if any, would be:

Year 1: None

Year 2: $0.4 million capital gains incentive fee268.0% multiplied by $2.0 million ($2.5 million rized capital gains on
Investment A less $0.5 million unrealized capitapreciation on Investment B)

Year 3: $0.25 million capital gains incentive f®e— $0.65 million (20.0% multiplied by $3.25 millig¢$3.5 million
cumulative realized capital gains less $0.25 millimrealized capital depreciation)) less $0.4 onillcapital gains incentive
fee received in Year 2

Year 4: $0.05 million capital gains incentive fee$0.7 million ($3.50 million cumulative realizedmital gains multiplied
by 20.0%) less $0.65 million cumulative capitalrgaincentive fee paid in Year 2 and Year 3

Year 5: None — $0.45 million (20.0% multiplied $£.25 million (cumulative realized capital gains$@t5 million less
realized capital losses of $1.25 million)) less7h@illion cumulative capital gains incentive feacpm Year 2, Year 3 and
Year 4

* The hypothetical amounts of returns shown areetias a percentage of our total net assets anthasso leverage. There is

no guarantee that positive returns will be realized actual returns may vary from those shownimakample.

(1) As illustrated in Year 3 of Alternative 1 aboveaiportfolio company were to be wound up on a d#ter than its fiscal ye
end of any year, it may have paid aggregate cagdiials incentive fees that are more than the anafusuch fees that wou
be payable if such portfolio company had been wayman its fiscal year end of such year.

(2) As noted above, it is possible that the cunivgaiggregate capital gains fee received by St€lmtal Management ($0.70
million) is effectively greater than $0.45 millig@0.0% of cumulative aggregate realized capitaigéss net realized
capital losses or net unrealized depreciation &gilion)).
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Payment of Our Expenses

All investment professionals of Stellus Capital Mgament, when and to the extent engaged in prayidirestment
advisory and management services to us, and thpermsation and routine overhead expenses of persaitomable to these
services to us, are provided and paid for by Stellapital Management and not by us. We bear adiratht-of-pocket costs and
expenses of our operations and transactions, imgudithout limitation, those relating to:

e organization and offering;
» calculating our net asset value (including thet@nd expenses of any independent valuation firm);

« fees and expenses payable to third parties,dimduagents, consultants or other advisors, in todng financial and
legal affairs for us and in monitoring our investiteeand performing due diligence on our prospegiivefolio
companies or otherwise relating to, or associati#ful, wvaluating and making investments;

e interest payable on debt, if any, incurred t@fioe our investments and expenses related to wssfatportfolio
acquisition efforts;

« offerings of our common stock and other secusijtie
« base management and incentive fees;

< administration fees and expenses, if any, payatdier the administration agreement (includingallacable portion of
Stellus Capital Management’s overhead in perfornitmgbligations under the administration agreemiestuding rent
and the allocable portion of the cost of our cleimipliance officer, chief financial officer and theespective staffs);

< transfer agent, dividend agent and custodial &&ekexpenses;

e U.S. federal and state registration fees;

< all costs of registration and listing our shasasany securities exchange;

» U.S. federal, state and local taxes;

e independent directors’ fees and expenses;

e costs of preparing and filing reports or othecwnents required by the SEC or other regulators;
e costs of any reports, proxy statements or otbéces to stockholders, including printing costs;

e costs and fees associated with any fidelity baliv@ctors and officers/errors and omissions ligbihsurance, and any
other insurance premiums;

« direct costs and expenses of administration, inofugrinting, mailing, long distance telephone, yiog, secretarial an
other staff, independent auditors and outside legsts;

e proxy voting expenses; and
» all other expenses incurred by us or Stellus @hManagement in connection with administering lousiness.

Duration and Termination

Unless terminated earlier as described below,thestment advisory agreement will continue in dffeca period of two
years from its effective date. It will remain irfeft from year to year thereafter if approved atigiusy our board of directors or
by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majpof our outstanding voting securities, and, imeitcase, if also approved by a
majority of our directors who are not “interestastgpns.” The investment advisory agreement autcaibtiterminates in the
event of its assignment, as defined in the 1940 \cStellus Capital Management and may be terméhhy either party
without penalty upon 60 days’ written notice to tither. The holders of a majority of our outstagdioting securities may also
terminate the investment advisory agreement witpeuglty upon 60 days’ written notice. See Item ‘Risk Factors — Risks
Relating to our Business and Structure.” We areddpnt upon key
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personnel of Stellus Capital Management for owrisuccess. If Stellus Capital Management welaswany of its key
personnel, our ability to achieve our investmernéctive could be significantly harmed.

Indemnification

The investment advisory agreement provides thdiuSt€apital Management and its officers, manageagners, agents,
employees, controlling persons and members, anatygy person or entity affiliated with it, are iletd to indemnification
from us for any damages, liabilities, costs ande@ses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees andiataoeasonably paid in
settlement) arising from the rendering of Stellapital Management's services under the investmgvisary agreement or
otherwise as our investment adviser. Our obligatiioprovide indemnification under the investmentiadry agreement,
however, is limited by the 1940 Act and Investm@ompany Act Release No. 11330, which, among otfirgs, prohibit us
from indemnifying any director, officer or otherdinidual from any liability resulting directly frorthe willful misconduct, bad
faith, gross negligence in the performance of dutiereckless disregard of applicable obligatiams @uties of the directors,
officers or other individuals and require us tofeeth reasonable and fair means for determiningtiver indemnification shall
be made.

Board Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement

Our board of directors, including a majority of andependent directors, approved the investmerisadvagreement at its
first meeting, held on September 24, 2012, andaygat the annual continuation of the investmentsatyi agreement on
October 14, 2014. In its consideration of the itvest advisory agreement, the board of directazaged on information it had
received relating to, among other things: (a) thire, quality and extent of the advisory and ofsevices to be provided to us
by our investment adviser; (b) comparative dat waspect to advisory fees or similar expenses Ipaisther business
development companies with similar investment dbjes; (c) our projected operating expenses anéresgratio compared to
business development companies with similar investrobjectives; (d) any existing and potential searof indirect income to
our investment adviser from its relationships withand the profitability of those relationshipg;ifgormation about the
services to be performed and the personnel penfaysuich services under the investment advisoryeageat; (f) the
organizational capability and financial conditioioair investment adviser; and (g) various othetdi

Based on the information reviewed and the discuassithe board of directors, including a majoritytted non-interested
directors, concluded that the investment managefaerntates and terms are reasonable in relatitmeteervices to be provided
and approved the investment advisory agreemengiag in the best interests of our stockholders.

Administration Agreement

Under the administration agreement, Stellus Capiehagement furnishes us with office facilities awglipment and will
provide us with clerical, bookkeeping, recordkegpamd other administrative services at such faslitStellus Capital
Management also performs, or oversees the perfamnafiy our required administrative services, whittude being
responsible for the financial and other records weaare required to maintain and preparing regortaur stockholders and
reports and other materials filed with the SECadidition, Stellus Capital Management assists wetarmining and publishing
our net asset value, oversees the preparationlargddf our tax returns and the printing and disg®ation of reports and other
materials to our stockholders, and generally ow=rske payment of our expenses and the perforndragiministrative and
professional services rendered to us by othersetlté administration agreement, Stellus Capitah&dd@ment also provides
managerial assistance on our behalf to those fiorfompanies that have accepted our offer to pi®euch assistance.

Payments under the administration agreement ar@ &man amount based upon our allocable portiohjést to the review
of our board of directors) of Stellus Capital Maeaggnt's overhead in performing its obligations urttie administration
agreement, including rent, the fees and expensesiased with performing compliance functions and alocable portion of
the cost of our chief financial officer and chiehepliance officer and their respective staffs. didition, if requested to provide
significant managerial assistance to our portfobmpanies, Stellus Capital Management will be paicdditional amount
based on the services provided, which shall noteck¢he amount we receive from such portfolio cangsafor
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providing this assistance. The administration agie® has an initial term of two years and may Inewed with the approval
of our board of directors. The administration agreat may be terminated by either party without figngon 60 days’ written
notice to the other party. To the extent that 8seCapital Management outsources any of its funstiave will pay the fees
associated with such functions on a direct badiisout any incremental profit to Stellus Capital Mgement. Stockholder
approval is not required to amend the administnagigreement.

Indemnification

The administration agreement provides that Stéllagital Management, its affiliates and their resipec officers,
managers, partners, agents, employees, contr@érgpns and members, and any other person or effiligted with it, are
entitled to indemnification from us for any damadesilities, costs and expenses (including reabtmattorneys’ fees and
amounts reasonably paid in settlement) arising fife@rendering of Stellus Capital Management’sises/under the
administration agreement or otherwise as our aditnator. Our obligation to provide indemnificationder the administration
agreement, however, is limited by the 1940 Act bavestment Company Act Release No. 11330, whiclorepother things,
prohibit us from indemnifying any director, officer other individual from any liability resultingrdctly from the willful
misconduct, bad faith, gross negligence in thegserénce of duties or reckless disregard of applécabligations and duties of
the directors, officers or other individuals anduiee us to set forth reasonable and fair meandditermining whether
indemnification shall be made.

License Agreement

We have entered into a license agreement withuSt€hpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freenise to use the name “Stellus Capital.” Underabieement, we have a right
to use the “Stellus Capital” name for so long adl@& Capital Management or one of its affiliatesiains our investment
adviser. Other than with respect to this limitexbtise, we have no legal right to the “Stellus Gédipitame. This license
agreement will remain in effect for so long asitheestment advisory agreement with Stellus Capitahagement is in effect.

Exchange Act Reports

We maintain a website aww.stelluscapital.conThe information on our website is not incorporabgdeference in this
annual report on Form 10-K.

We make available on or through our website cergiorts and amendments to those reports thatevevith or furnish to
the SEC in accordance with the Securities Exch&ug®f 1934, or the “Exchange Act.” These include annual reports on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q andaurrent reports on Form 8-K. We make this infation available on our
website free of charge as soon as reasonably pabtdi after we electronically file the informatiaith, or furnish it to, the
SEC.

Regulation as a Business Development Company

We are a business development company under tHeA&4The 1940 Act contains prohibitions and rieftins relating to
transactions between business development compamiktheir affiliates (including any investment esdvs), principal
underwriters and affiliates of those affiliatesumderwriters and requires that a majority of thedors be persons other than
“interested persons,” as that term is defined @1B40 Act. In addition, the 1940 Act provides thhatmay not change the
nature of our business so as to cease to bevathitdraw our election as, a business developmemipemy unless approved by
a majority of our outstanding voting securities.
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Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a business development compeayynot acquire any asset other than assets ¢fpkdisted in
section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, which are refer@ds “qualifying assets,” unless, at the time ttguésition is made, qualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the companylsaggats. The principal categories of qualifyingeds relevant to our business
are the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not ifnaghany public offering from the issuer of suchug@tes, which issuer
(subject to certain limited exceptions) is an &ligiportfolio company, or from any person who ishas been during the
preceding 13 months, an affiliated person of agitdi portfolio company, or from any other perssubject to such ruls
as may be prescribed by the SEC. Under the 194@rictthe rules thereunder, “eligible portfolio canfes”include (1,
private domestic operating companies, (2) publiméstic operating companies whose securities arbsted on a
national securities exchange (e.g., the New YodclSExchange), and (3) public domestic operatingmanies having
market capitalization of less than $250 millionbRudomestic operating companies whose secuidtiegjuoted on the
over-the-counter bulletin board or through Pink&he LC are not listed on a national securitieshexge and therefore
are eligible portfolio companies.

(2) Securities of any eligible portfolio companyiatwe control.

(3) Securities purchased in a private transactiomfa U.S. issuer that is not an investment comparisom an affiliated
person of the issuer, or in transactions incidersiutch a private transaction, if the issuer isankiuptcy and subject to
reorganization or if the issuer, immediately ptimthe purchase of its securities, was unable tet it& obligations as
they came due without material assistance other¢baventional lending or financing arrangements.

(4) Securities of an eligible portfolio company gliased from any person in a private transactitimeife is no ready market
for such securities and we already own 60% of titstanding equity of the eligible portfolio company

(5) Securities received in exchange for or disteébuwon or with respect to securities described apor pursuant to the
exercise of warrants or rights relating to suchusées.

(6) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government sexsuat high-quality debt securities that maturerie year or less from the
date of investment.

The regulations defining qualifying assets may geaover time. We may adjust our investment focusessied to comply
with and/or take advantage of any regulatory, lagjiee, administrative or judicial actions in ttasea.

Managerial Assistance to Portfolio Companies

Business development companies generally must tufferake available to the issuer of the securgdigsificant managerial
assistance, except in circumstances where eithére(business development company controls sscieiif securities or (i)
the business development company purchases suatfiti®scn conjunction with one or more other p@&rsacting together and
one of the other persons in the group makes avaitalrth managerial assistance. Making availableagenal assistance means
any arrangement whereby the business developmergaity, through its directors, officers, employeeagents, offers to
provide, and, if accepted, does so provide, sigaifi guidance and counsel concerning the manageopmarations or business
objectives and policies of a portfolio company.liBs&eCapital Management will provide such manadexrssistance on our
behalf to portfolio companies that request thisstasce.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of qualifyingesssas described above, our investments may tarfisiash, cash
equivalents, U.S. government securities, repurchgssements and high-quality debt investmentsrttzdtire in one year or less
from the date of investment, which we refer to)exdively, as temporary investments, so that 70%usfassets are qualifying
assets or temporary investments. Typically, we iwvitest in U.S. Treasury bills or in repurchasesagnents, so long as the
agreements are fully
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collateralized by cash or securities issued byulg& government or its agencies. A repurchase ageeinvolves the purchase
by an investor, such as us, of a specified secantythe simultaneous agreement by the selleiptarcbase it at an agreed-upon
future date and at a price that is greater thaptinehase price by an amount that reflects an dewpen interest rate. There is
no percentage restriction on the proportion ofassets that may be invested in such repurchaseragntés. However, if more
than 25% of our total assets constitute repurchgesgements from a single counterparty, we wouldwexdt the diversification
tests in order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. fedémabme tax purposes. Accordingly, we do not intemdnter into repurchase
agreements with a single counterparty in excessigfimit. Stellus Capital Management will monitive creditworthiness of

the counterparties with which we enter into repasghagreement transactions.

Senior Securities

We are permitted, under specified conditions, saésmultiple classes of indebtedness and one afatsck senior to our
common stock if our asset coverage, as definelderi940 Act, is at least equal to 200% immediaaéiigr each such issuance.
In addition, while any senior securities remainstariding, we may be prohibited from making anyritigtion to our
stockholders or repurchasing our securities oreshanless we meet the applicable asset coverage aathe time of the
distribution or repurchase. We may also borrow am®up to 5% of the value of our total assetsdamgorary or emergency
purposes without regard to asset coverage. Fascaision of the risks associated with leverageltsgelA. “Risk Factors —

Risks Relating to our Business and Structure —uReigns governing our operation as a businessldgrent company will
affect our ability to, and the way in which we,smiadditional capital. As a business developmemipeamy, the necessity of
raising additional capital may expose us to rigksluding the typical risks associated with leverdg

Common Stock

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumesomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however,
sell our common stock at a price below the curneitasset value of the common stock if our boamdireictors determines that
such sale is in our best interests and that omakholders, and our stockholders approve sueh Bahny such case, the price
at which our securities are to be issued and salg mot be less than a price which, in the detertiinaf our board of
directors, closely approximates the market valuguch securities (less any distributing commissiodiscount). A proposal,
approved by our stockholders at our 2014 AnnualtMgef Stockholders, authorizes us to sell sharpsal to up to 25% of our
outstanding common stock below the then currentisgét value per share of our common stock in ongoee offerings for the
period ending on the earlier of the one year ansany of the date of the Company’s 2014 Annual lteedf Stockholders and
the date of the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting otiholders, which is expected to be held in Jurk52We would need
similar future approval from our stockholders tsuie shares below the then current net asset vatughpre any time after the
expiration of the current approval. We may also enaghts offerings to our stockholders at pricesghare less than the net
asset value per share, subject to applicable remeints of the 1940 Act.

Codes of Ethics

We and Stellus Capital Management have each adaptede of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 unded8#0 Act that
establishes procedures for personal investmentsestidcts certain personal securities transactiBessonnel subject to each
such code may invest in securities for their peabarvestment accounts, including securities thay tme purchased or held by
us, so long as such investments are made in acumgdeith such code’s requirements. You may readcapg our code of
ethics at the SEC’s Public Reference Room in Wagbim D.C. You may obtain information on the operabf the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at (202) 551-809addition, each code of ethics is availableltnEDGAR Database on
the SEC’s website atww.sec.govwou may also obtain copies of each code of etlaiitsr paying a duplicating fee, by
electronic request at the following e-mail addrgssilicinfo@sec.goyor by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Sectiben F
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

We have delegated our proxy voting responsibibtptellus Capital Management. The proxy votinggies and procedures
of Stellus Capital Management are set out belove. diiidelines will be reviewed periodically by StsliCapital Management
and our directors who are not “interested persaamsgl, accordingly, are subject to change.
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Introduction. As an investment adviser registered under thaskds Act, Stellus Capital Management has a falycduty
to act solely in our best interests. As part o thity, Stellus Capital Management recognizesitimatist vote our securities in a
timely manner free of conflicts of interest andumr best interests.

Stellus Capital Management'’s policies and proceslfoevoting proxies for its investment advisorienlts are intended to
comply with Section 206 of, and Rule 206(4)-6 undee Advisers Act.

Proxy Policies Stellus Capital Management votes proxies redatinour portfolio securities in what it perceiteshe the
best interest of our stockholders. Stellus Captahagement reviews on a case-by-case basis egebsaicubmitted to a
stockholder vote to determine its effect on thefpbo securities we hold. In most cases Stellupi@hManagement will vote
in favor of proposals that Stellus Capital Managenielieves are likely to increase the value ofgibgfolio securities we hold.
Although Stellus Capital Management will generalbte against proposals that may have a negatieetedh our portfolio
securities, Stellus Capital Management may votetdich a proposal if there exist compelling longrteeasons to do so.

Stellus Capital Management has established a protigg committee and adopted proxy voting guidedined related
procedures. The proxy voting committee establighesy voting guidelines and procedures, overseegternal proxy voting
process, and reviews proxy voting issues. To enbateStellus Capital Management’s vote is nottfasluct of a conflict of
interest, Stellus Capital Management requires(thiadnyone involved in the decision-making proadisslose to our Chief
Compliance Officer any potential conflict that hesbe is aware of and any contact that he or skdéad with any interested
party regarding a proxy vote; and (2) employeeslived in the decision-making process or vote adstriaiion are prohibited
from revealing how Stellus Capital Management idteto vote on a proposal in order to reduce amyrgited influence from
interested parties. Where conflicts of interest layresent, Stellus Capital Management will dselsuch conflicts to us,
including our independent directors and may reqgestance from us on how to vote such proxies.

Proxy Voting Records You may obtain information about how Stellus fagManagement voted proxies by making a
written request for proxy voting information toeBtis Capital Investment Corporation, Attentiornvéstor Relations, 4400 Post
Oak Parkway, Suite 500, Houston, TX 77027, or Bingaus collect at (713) 292-5414. The SEC alsonta@ns a website at
www.sec.gothat contains this information.

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of stackholders and to safeguarding their nonpublisgeal information.
The following information is provided to help yoaderstand what personal information we collect, aprotect that
information and why, in certain cases, we may sirdoemation with select other parties.

Generally, we do not receive any nonpublic persarfalmation relating to our stockholders, althowgtain nonpublic
personal information of our stockholders may becawailable to us. We do not disclose any nonpyi#isonal information
about our stockholders or former stockholders tmar, except as permitted by law or as is necessamder to service
stockholder accounts (for example, to a transfenagr third-party administrator).

We restrict access to nonpublic personal infornmagibout our stockholders to employees of Stellyst@aManagement
and its affiliates with a legitimate business nfdhe information. We intend to maintain physjaectronic and procedural
safeguards designed to protect the nonpublic patsaformation of our stockholders.

Other

We are required to provide and maintain a boncegdiy a reputable fidelity insurance company tdquious against
larceny and embezzlement. Furthermore, as a bssilea®lopment company, we are prohibited from ptotg any director or
officer against any liability to us or our stocktlets arising from willful misfeasance, bad faithogs negligence or reckless
disregard of the duties involved in the conducswth person’s office.
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We and Stellus Capital Management are each reqtaradopt and implement written policies and praced reasonably
designed to prevent violation of relevant fedeegisities laws, review these policies and proceslarmually for their
adequacy and the effectiveness of their implemiemaaind designate a chief compliance officer todsponsible for
administering the policies and procedures.

We may also be prohibited under the 1940 Act fraravkingly participating in certain transactions withr affiliates
without the prior approval of our board of directevho are not interested persons and, in some,qas@sapproval by the
SEC. The SEC has interpreted the business devetldprompany prohibition on transactions with affiis to prohibit all “joint
transactions” between entities that share a comma@stment adviser. The staff of the SEC has gdanteaction relief
permitting purchases of a single class of privapdficed securities provided that the adviser natgsgtino term other than price
and certain other conditions are met. In additwa received exemptive relief from the SEC to cceestwvith investment funds
managed by Stellus Capital Management (other thabt E. Shaw group funds, as defined below) whemeg so is consistent
with our investment strategy as well as applicddle (including the terms and conditions of the eptiwe order issued by the
SEC). Under the terms of the relief permitting ago-invest with other funds managed by Stellusit@@aplanagement, a
“required majority” (as defined in Section 57(o)tbé 1940 Act) of our independent directors muskenzertain conclusions in
connection with a co-investment transaction, intlgd1) the terms of the proposed transactionpiticlg the consideration to
be paid, are reasonable and fair to us and ouklsddders and do not involve overreaching of uswrsiockholders on the part
of any person concerned and (2) the transactioarisistent with the interests of our stockholdei ia consistent with our
investment objectives and strategies. We intermbtmvest, subject to the conditions included i& &xemptive order we
received from the SEC, with a private credit funanaged by Stellus Capital Management that hasvastiment strategy that is
identical to our investment strategy. We beliewa 8uch co-investments may afford us additionadstment opportunities and
an ability to achieve greater diversification.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 imposes a wide tyaderegulatory requirements on publicly held camjgs and their
insiders. Many of these requirements affect us.@xample:

e pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Exchange Artpancipal executive officer and principal finaalcofficer must
certify the accuracy of the financial statementstaimed in our periodic reports;

e pursuant to Iltem 307 under Regulatioi Saur periodic reports must disclose our conclnsiabout the effectiveness
our disclosure controls and procedures;

e pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Actn@mnagement must prepare an annual report reggitdi
assessment of our internal control over finan@gbrting; and

e pursuant to Iltem 308 of Regulation S-K and Rue-15 under the Exchange Act, our periodic reporist disclose
whether there were significant changes in our mgtkcontrols over financial reporting or in othactors that could
significantly affect these controls subsequenhtodate of their evaluation, including any corneetactions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses

Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company

As a business development company, we have elaottdualified to be treated as a RIC under Subehdpiof the Code.
As a RIC, we generally do not have to pay corpelatel U.S. federal income taxes on any income weadistribute to our
stockholders as dividends. To maintain our qualtfan as a RIC, we must, among other things, merdio source-of-income
and asset diversification requirements (as desttiedow). In addition, we must distribute to owrcitholders, for each taxable
year, at least 90% of our “investment company texaitome,” which is generally our ordinary incoplas the excess of our
realized net short-term capital gains over ourizedlnet long-term capital losses (the “Annual Blisttion Requirement”).
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For any taxable year in which we:
e qualify as a RIC; and
« satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement;

we will not be subject to U.S. federal income taxtloe portion of our income we distribute (or aeeghed to distribute) to
stockholders. We will be subject to U.S. federabime tax at the regular corporate rates on anyneoor capital gains not
distributed (or deemed distributed) to our stockkos.

We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. fatlekcise tax on our undistributed income unlesslistibute in a
timely manner an amount at least equal to the suf@)®8% of our net ordinary income for each cdbamyear, (b) 98.2% of
our capital gain net income for the one-year peending October 31 in that calendar year and (g)imecome realized, but not
distributed, in the preceding year and on whichpaiel no U.S. federal income tax, or the Excise Aasidance Requirement.
For this purpose, however, any net ordinary incomeapital gain net income retained by us thatlgect to corporate income
tax for the tax year ending in that calendar yeilrb@ considered to have been distributed by et (or earlier if estimated
taxes are paid). We currently intend to make sigfficdistributions each taxable year to satisfyEeise Tax Avoidance
Requirement.

In order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal inatax purposes, we must, among other things:
e continue to qualify as a business developmentpamy under the 1940 Act at all times during eadr;ye

< derive in each taxable year at least 90% of sasgincome from dividends, interest, payments vatpect to certain
securities loans, gains from the sale of stocktieerosecurities, or other income derived with resp@ our business of
investing in such stock or securities, and netimealerived from interests in “qualified publiclated
partnerships” (which generally are partnerships &éhe traded on an established securities markeadable on a
secondary market, other than partnerships tharel80% of their income from interest, dividends afttter permitted
RIC income), or the 90% Income Test; and

« diversify our holdings so that at the end of equhbrter of the taxable year:

» atleast 50% of the value of our assets consfatash, cash equivalents, U.S. government seesirigiecurities of
other RICs, and other securities if such other Stes of any one issuer do not represent more 89arof the value
of our assets or more than 10% of the outstanditiny securities of the issuer; and

* no more than 25% of the value of our assetsviested in the securities, other than U.S. govertisecurities or
securities of other RICs, of one issuer or of twaonore issuers that are controlled, as determimelgiuapplicable
tax rules, by us and that are engaged in the sasiendar or related trades or businesses or irsdwirities of one
or more qualified publicly traded partnershipsttar Diversification Tests.

We may invest in partnerships, including qualifgdlicly traded partnerships, which may resultim being subject to
state, local or foreign income, franchise or witldiry liabilities.

We may be required to recognize taxable incoméraumstances in which we do not receive cash. kample, if we hold
debt obligations that are treated under applicebleules as having original issue discount (swectebt instruments with PIK
interest or, in certain cases, with increasingregerates or issued with warrants), we must ireindncome each year a portion
of the original issue discount that accrues overlife of the obligation, regardless of whethercespresenting such income is
received by us in the same taxable year. Becauserainal issue discount accrued will be include@ur investment company
taxable income for the year of accrual, we mayeugiired to make a distribution to our stockholdersrder to satisfy the
Annual Distribution Requirement, even though wd wiit have received any corresponding cash amdéuné are not able to
obtain sufficient cash from other sources to satisf
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the Annual Distribution Requirement, we may faihtaintain our qualification as a RIC and becomgexilio corporate-level
U.S. federal income taxes on all of our taxabl@me without the benefit of the dividends-paid deituc

Although we do not presently expect to do so, veeaarthorized to borrow funds and to sell assetsdar to satisfy (i) the
Annual Distribution Requirements and to otherwimi@ate our liability for U.S. federal income apscise taxes and/or (ii)
the Diversification Tests. However, under the 1840 we are not permitted in certain circumstartoesake distributions to
our stockholders while our debt obligations andeotenior securities are outstanding unless cetdaset coverage” tests are
met. See Item 1A. “Regulation as a Business Devetoph Company — Senior Securities.” Moreover, oulitgtio dispose of
assets to meet the Annual Distribution RequiremtbstExcise Tax Avoidance Requirement or the Difieedion Test may be
limited by (a) the illiquid nature of our portfolend/or (b) other requirements relating to our djigations as a RIC, including
the Diversification Tests. If we dispose of as$etsrder to meet the Annual Distribution Requireméime Excise Tax
Avoidance Requirement or the Diversification Tests,may make such dispositions at times that, faonmvestment
standpoint, are not advantageous.

In addition, we have formed and operate a SBICididyy, and are partially dependent on the SBIGsglilry for cash
distributions to enable us to meet the RIC distidourequirements. The SBIC subsidiary may be kahipy the Small Business
Investment Act of 1958, and SBA regulations gouwagrSBICs, from making certain distributions to hattmay be necessary to
maintain our status as a RIC. We may have to reguesiver of the SBA’s restrictions for the SBI@bsidiary to make certain
distributions to maintain our RIC status. We carassture you that the SBA will grant such waiveth# SBIC subsidiary is
unable to obtain a waiver, compliance with the SBgulations may cause us to fail to maintain owlifjoation as a RIC,
which would result in us becoming subject to cogpedevel federal income tax.

Certain of our investment practices may be sulifespecial and complex U.S. federal income tax igions that may,
among other things, (a) treat dividends that watkebrwise constitute qualified dividend income as-qualified dividend
income, (b) treat dividends that would otherwiseelgible for the corporate dividends received d#itun as ineligible for such
treatment, (c) disallow, suspend or otherwise litmét allowance of certain losses or deductionsgg¢dyert lower-taxed long
term capital gain into higher-taxed short-term tamain or ordinary income, (e) convert an ordynlass or a deduction into a
capital loss (the deductibility of which is mormlted), (f) cause us to recognize income or gathait a corresponding receipt
of cash, (g) adversely affect the time as to whparahase or sale of stock or securities is degmedcur, (h) adversely alter
the characterization of certain complex finanaiahsactions and (i) produce income that will notbelifying income for
purposes of the 90% Income Test. We intend to ropoifir transactions and may make certain tax elestio mitigate the
effect of these provisions and prevent our disdjgation as a RIC.

Gain or loss realized by us from warrants acquingds as well as any loss attributable to the lapseich warrants
generally will be treated as capital gain or I&sch capital gain or loss generally will be longrter short term, depending on
how long we held a particular warrant. Some ofitlteme and fees that we may recognize will nosgathe 90% Income
Test. In order to ensure that such income anddeewot disqualify us as a RIC for a failure to sigtthe 90% Income Test, we
may hold assets that generate such income anddgreervices that generate such fees indirectiytfirmne or more entities
treated as corporations for U.S. federal incomeptaposes. Such corporations will be required 5. federal corporate
income tax on their earnings, which ultimately w#luce our return on such income and fees.

If we are unable to qualify for treatment as a Ri@d if certain remedial provisions are not avddatve would be subject
to tax on all of our taxable income at regular cogpe rates. We would not be able to deduct digiohs to stockholders, nor
would they be required to be made. Distributionsluding distributions of net long-term capital maivould generally be
taxable to our stockholders as ordinary dividermbime to the extent of our current and accumulaéendirgs and profits.
Subject to certain limitations under the Code, ooape stockholders would be eligible to claim adiwnds received deduction
with respect to such distributions, non-corporabeleholders would be able to treat such dividermbime as “qualified dividend
income,” which is subject to reduced rates of Wefleral income tax. Distributions in excess of cunrent and accumulated
earnings and profits would be treated first agt@arneof capital to the extent of the
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stockholder’s tax basis, and any remaining distiiims would be treated as a capital gain. If wettagualify as a RIC for a
period greater than two taxable years, to requakfia RIC in a subsequent year we may be subjeetitdar corporate tax on
any net built-in gains with respect to certain of assets iie. , the excess of the aggregate gains, includingsitehincome,
over aggregate losses that would have been realithdespect to such assets if we had been ligedjahat we elect to
recognize on requalification or when recognizedrdkie next ten years (or shorter applicable peridtg remainder of this
discussion assumes that we will maintain our gigatiion as a RIC and will satisfy the Annual Distriion Requirement.

Our Status as an Emerging Growth Company

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetth@nJumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 201#edOBS Act. As
an emerging growth company, we may take advanthgpezified reduced disclosure and other requirésigsat are otherwise
applicable generally to public companies. Theseceasquirements include an exemption from certia@nicial disclosure and
governance requirements and relaxed restrictionth@sale of securities. The JOBS Act providesestdlsclosure provisions
for emerging growth companies, including, amongpthings, removing the requirement that emergitogvth companies
comply with Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 404(b) aardititestation of internal control over financiaporting. Section 107(b) of
the JOBS Act also permits an emerging growth congsaio elect an extended transition period for dging with new or
revised accounting standards that have differdatt¥e dates for public and private companieslsuith time as these new or
revised standards are made applicable to all grivapanies. We have elected to take advantade @xtended transition
period for complying with new or revised accountsigndards, which may make it more difficult fovésstors and securities
analysts to evaluate us since our financial statésmaay not be comparable to companies that comittypublic company
effective dates. We will remain an emerging groedimpany until the earlier of (a) the last day & fiscal year (i) following
the fifth anniversary of the completion of our iaitpublic offering (IPO), (ii) in which we haveta annual gross revenue of at
least $1.0 billion, or (iii) in which we are deemtedbe a large accelerated filer, which means theket value of our common
stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $7@0an as of the prior June 30, and (b) the date on which we have issued
more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt dgrthe prior three-year period.

The New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Relations

The New York Stock Exchange has adopted corporatergance regulations that listed companies muspbowith. We
are in compliance with such corporate governarstimgj standards applicable to business developomenpanies.

Regulation as a Small Business Investment Company

Our wholly-owned subsidiary’s SBIC license allow$oi obtain leverage by issuing SBA-guaranteed defves, subject to
customary procedures. SBA-guaranteed debenturemarescourse, interest only debentures with istgpayable semi-
annually and have a ten-year maturity. The prina@paount of SBA-guaranteed debentures is not redui be paid prior to
maturity but may be prepaid at any time withoutadgn The interest rate of SBA-guaranteed debentisréixed at the time of
issuance at a market-driven spread over U.S. Trg&$otes with ten-year maturities.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of privedeity capital to eligible small businesses. UrfBBA regulations,
SBICs may make loans to eligible small businessdsravest in the equity securities of small busgess Under present SBA
regulations, eligible small businesses includenesses that have a tangible net worth not exce&diig million and have
average annual fully taxed net income not excee@ithg million for the two most recent fiscal yedrsaddition, an SBIC must
devote 25% of its investment activity to “smalledncerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller conceong that has a net worth
not exceeding $6 million and has average annubl faked net income not exceeding $2 million fog ttvo most recent fiscal
years. SBA regulations also provide alternative siandard criteria to determine eligibility, whidépend on the industry in
which the business is engaged and are based orfastiols as the number of employees and gross. gedesrding to SBA
regulations, SBICs may make long-term loans to binainesses, invest in the equity securities ohdwsinesses and provide
them with consulting and advisory services.
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SBA regulations currently limit the amount that®BIC subsidiary may borrow to a maximum of $150ioml when it has
at least $75 million in regulatory capital. Affited SBICs are permitted to issue up to a combinaximmum amount of $225
million when they have at least $112.5 million @gulatory capital. As of December 31, 2014, ourGBuibsidiary had $32.5
million in regulatory capital and $16.25 million 8BA-guaranteed debentures outstanding, which appated their fair value.

We have received exemptive relief from the SECeomit us to exclude the debt of our SBIC subsidmguaranteed by the
SBA from the definition of senior securities in th@0% asset coverage test under the 1940 Act.alloiws us increased
flexibility under the 200% asset coverage test éynptting us to borrow up to $225 million more thaa would otherwise be
able to absent the receipt of this exemptive relief

The SBA restricts the ability of SBICs to repurahéiseir capital stock. SBA regulations also incluglgtrictions on a
“change of control” or transfer of an SBIC and neguhat SBICs invest idle funds in accordance V@BA regulations. In
addition, our SBIC subsidiary may also be limitedts ability to make distributions to us if it doaot have sufficient capital, in
accordance with SBA regulations.

Our SBIC subsidiary is subject to regulation andrsight by the SBA, including requirements withpest to maintaining
certain minimum financial ratios and other covesaRteceipt of an SBIC license does not assureotira®BIC subsidiary will
receive SBA guaranteed debenture funding, whidemendent upon our SBIC subsidiary continuing tontlmmpliance with
SBA regulations and policies. The SBA, as a credwdl have a superior claim to our SBIC subsigliarassets over our
stockholders in the event we liquidate our SBICsadiary or the SBA exercises its remedies undeStRA-guaranteed
debentures issued by our SBIC subsidiary upon antexf default.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves a number gh#icant risks. Before you invest in our secustigou should be aware of
various risks, including those described below. ¥loould carefully consider these risk factors, tbge with all of the other
information included in this annual report on Foft@-K, before you decide whether to make an invegtmeur securities.
The risks set out below are the principal riskswrgspect to an investment in our securities gdheaad with respect to a
business development company with investment dlgiecinvestment policies, capital structures ading markets similar to
ours. However, they may not be the only risks we.fadditional risks and uncertainties not presghtiown to us or not
presently deemed material by us may also impairoparations and performance. If any of the folloyv@vents occur, our
business, financial condition, results of operasi@md cash flows could be materially and advera#fgcted. In such case, our
net asset value and the trading price of our semsricould decline, and you may lose all or paryadfir investment.

Risks Relating to our Business and Structure

We have a limited operating history as a business@lopment company and Stellus Capital Managemeas himited
experience managing a business development compang, as a result, we may not be able to operatelmusiness
successfully or generate sufficient revenue to makesustain distributions to our stockholders.

We were formed in May 2012 and prior to the compfebf our initial public offering in November 20,1&e did not
operate as a business development company anchgdalified to be treated as a RIC, and StellysitabManagement had
never managed a business development companyressik of our limited operating history, we havaited operating results
under these regulatory frameworks that can demaesto you either their effect on our businessuwratility to manage our
business under these frameworks. We are subjdice tbusiness risks and uncertainties associatédraéently formed
businesses, including the risk that we will notiaeh our investment objective and that the valugoofr investment could
decline substantially.

The 1940 Act and the Code impose numerous contgrainthe operations of business development coiepand RICs
that do not apply to other investment vehicles ngadaby Stellus Capital Management. Business dexwsdopcompanies are
required, for example, to invest at least 70% efrttotal assets primarily in securities of U.Svate or thinly traded public
companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. governseentities and other high-quality debt instrumeinés mature in one year or
less from the date of investment. Moreover, quagifon for taxation as a RIC requires satisfactibeource-of-income, asset
diversification and distribution requirements. Wel &tellus Capital Management have limited expegesperating or advising
under these constraints, which may hinder ourtglii take advantage of attractive investment oppities and to achieve our
investment objective.

We are dependent upon key personnel of Stellus Gapilanagement for our future success. If Stellusafital Management
were to lose any of its key personnel, our abitibyachieve our investment objective could be sigriftly harmed.

We depend on the diligence, skill and network ofibess contacts of the investment professionaBtaifus Capital
Management to achieve our investment objectivaluSt€apital Management's team of investment pisifasals evaluates,
negotiates, structures, closes and monitors owsinvents in accordance with the terms of our imvest advisory agreement.
We can offer no assurance, however, that Stellpit&aanagement’s investment professionals wilitotmue to provide
investment advice to us.

Stellus Capital Management'’s investment commitidech provides oversight over our investment atitgi is provided to
us by Stellus Capital Management under the investimévisory agreement. Stellus Capital Managemémesstment
committee consists of five members, including Mesksadd, D’Angelo and Davis, each a member of @ard of directors, Mr.
Overbergen, an investment professional of Stellagit@l Management, and Mr. Huskinson, our chiedificial officer and chief
compliance officer and the chief financial offiadrStellus Capital Management. The loss of any memob Stellus Capital
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Management’s investment committee would limit oitity to achieve our investment objective and @perour business. This
could have a material adverse effect on our firelremndition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our business model depends to a significant extepon strong referral relationships. Any inabilityfdstellus Capital
Management to maintain or develop these relatiorshior the failure of these relationships to generanvestment
opportunities, could adversely affect our business.

We depend upon Stellus Capital Management to maiitsarelationships with private equity sponsqgrscement agents,
investment banks, management groups and othercfadanstitutions, and we rely to a significant ext upon these
relationships to provide us with potential investrinepportunities. If Stellus Capital Managemenisf& maintain such
relationships, or to develop new relationships wither sources of investment opportunities, we moli be able to grow our
investment portfolio. In addition, individuals witthom Stellus Capital Management has relationsiiipsiot obligated to
provide us with investment opportunities, and we afier no assurance that these relationshipsgsitierate investment
opportunities for us in the future.

Our financial condition, results of operations anchsh flows will depend on our ability to manage dousiness effectively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectivelwi#gpend on our ability to manage our businesstarmgow our
investments and earnings. This will depend, in,tamStellus Capital Management's ability to idBntinvest in and monitor
portfolio companies that meet our investment datefhe achievement of our investment objectiva @ost-effective basis will
depend upon Stellus Capital Management’s execuafiaur investment process, its ability to providenpetent, attentive and
efficient services to us and, to a lesser extantaocess to financing on acceptable terms. St€lfystal Management’s
investment professionals will have substantial oesbilities in connection with the management thieo investment funds,
accounts and investment vehicles. The personr@latius Capital Management may be called upondwige managerial
assistance to our portfolio companies. These dietivinay distract them from sourcing new investnogortunities for us or
slow our rate of investment. Any failure to manage business and our future growth effectively dduhve a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, resolt operations and cash flows.

There are significant potential conflicts of intest that could negatively affect our investment rats.

The members of Stellus Capital Management’s investrnommittee serve, or may serve, as officergctirs, members, or
principals of entities that operate in the sama mlated line of business as we do, or of investriwnds, accounts, or
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital idameent. Similarly, Stellus Capital Management mayehother clients
with similar, different or competing investment etfives. In serving in these multiple capacitiagytmay have obligations to
other clients or investors in those entities, thiéliment of which may not be in the best intesest us or our stockholders. For
example, Stellus Capital Management currently masagprivate credit fund that has an investmeategyy that is identical to
our investment strategy, and with which we intemdd-invest. Stellus Capital Management also pewisub-advisory services
to the D. E. Shaw group with respect to a privatestment fund and a strategy of a private multitsgy investment fund to
which the D. E. Shaw group serves as investmerisadthat have an investment strategy similar toilmeestment strategy.

In addition, there may be times when Stellus Capinagement, members of its investment committats mther
investment professionals have interests that diféen those of our stockholders, giving rise taoaftict of interest. In
particular, a private investment fund for whichlbi® Capital Management provides investment adyiservices hold minority
equity interests in certain of the portfolio comiann which we hold debt investments. As a reSitk|lus Capital
Management, members of its investment committéts ather investment professionals may face casflié interest in
connection with making business decisions for thps#olio companies to the extent that such denssiaffect the debt and
equity holders in these portfolio companies diffelg In addition, Stellus Capital Management magef conflicts of interests
in connection with making investment or other diexis, including granting loan waivers or concessjan our behalf with
respect to these portfolio companies given that #igo provide investment advisory services toizape
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investment fund that holds the equity interestth@se portfolio companies. Although our investnaahtiser will endeavor to
handle these investment and other decisions iir arid equitable manner, we and the holders o$lta@es of our common
stock could be adversely affected by these ded@sidioreover, given the subjective nature of theesiment and other
decisions made by our investment adviser on oualbele are unable to monitor these potential dotsflof interest between us
and our investment adviser; however, our boardrettbrs, including the independent directors, @exa conflicts of interest in
connection with its review of the performance of mvestment adviser.

The senior investment team and other investmentfpssionals of Stellus Capital Management may, fréime to time,
possess material non-public information, limitinguo investment discretion.

The senior investment team and other investmerigégsmnals of Stellus Capital Management, includitegnbers of Stellus
Capital Management'’s investment committee, mayesasvdirectors of, or in a similar capacity witbrtfolio companies in
which we invest, the securities of which are pusgthor sold on our behalf. In the event that matednpublic information is
obtained with respect to such companies, or werhecgubject to trading restrictions under the irdktrading policies of those
companies or as a result of applicable law or &iprs, we could be prohibited for a period of tifrem purchasing or selling
the securities of such companies, and this prabibihay have an adverse effect on us.

The incentive fee structure we have with Stelluspital Management may create incentives that are fity aligned with the
interests of our stockholders.

In the course of our investing activities, we pagnagement and incentive fees to Stellus Capitaldgdament. We have
entered into an investment advisory agreement 8ii¢ius Capital Management that provides for a rgameent fee based on
the value of our gross assets. Because this teesisd on the value of our gross assets, StellusaCilanagement will benefit
when we incur debt or use leverage. This fee siraanay encourage Stellus Capital Management teecasi to borrow money
to finance additional investments. Under certainwrnstances, the use of borrowed money may inctbadéelihood of
default, which would disfavor our stockholders.

Our board of directors is charged with protecting interests by monitoring how Stellus Capital Mgement addresses
these and other conflicts of interests associaitdits management services and compensation. V@hildoard of directors is
not expected to review or approve each investmecisibn, borrowing or incurrence of leverage, aateipendent directors will
periodically review Stellus Capital Management's/Bes and fees as well as its portfolio managerdeatisions and portfolio
performance. In connection with these reviews,iodependent directors will consider whether ousfaed expenses
(including those related to leverage) remain appatg As a result of this arrangement, Stellusi@éhManagement may from
time to time have interests that differ from tho$eur stockholders, giving rise to a conflict.

Our incentive fee may induce Stellus Capital Managent to make speculative investments.

We pay Stellus Capital Management an incentivébéesed, in part, upon net capital gains realizedurinvestments.
Unlike that portion of the incentive fee based meoime, there is no hurdle rate applicable to thé@oof the incentive fee
based on net capital gains. Additionally, underitioentive fee structure, Stellus Capital Managemeay benefit when capital
gains are recognized and, because Stellus Capétablyement will determine when to sell a holding]IG$ Capital
Management will control the timing of the recogmitiof such capital gains. As a result, Stellus @hplanagement may have a
tendency to invest more capital in investments déinatlikely to result in capital gains as compawethcome producing
securities. Such a practice could result in ouesting in more speculative securities than woutgtatise be the case, which
could result in higher investment losses, partidylduring economic downturns.

We may be obligated to pay Stellus Capital Managaehiecentive compensation even if we incur a loggdamay pay more
than 20.0% of our net capital gains because we cahrecover payments made in previous years.

Stellus Capital Management is entitled to incentiempensation for each fiscal quarter in an amequotl to a percentage
of the excess of our investment income for thatigugbefore deducting incentive compensation) atethreshold return for
that quarter and subject to a total return requérgmr he general
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effect of this total return requirement is to pnetvpayment of the foregoing incentive compensatixcept to the extent 20.0%
of the cumulative net increase in net assets iaguitom operations over the then current and Etg@ding calendar quarters
exceeds the cumulative incentive fees accrued apdid for the 11 preceding calendar quarters. Equantly, we may pay an
incentive fee if we incurred losses more than tlyesgs prior to the current calendar quarter e/endh losses have not yet
been recovered in full. Thus, we may be requiregkty Stellus Capital Management incentive compéarséor a fiscal quarter
even if there is a decline in the value of our fmid or we incur a net loss for that quarter. i way an incentive fee of 20.0%
of our realized capital gains (net of all realizeghital losses and unrealized capital depreciatioa cumulative basis) and
thereafter experience additional realized capitséés or unrealized capital depreciation, we willbe able to recover any
portion of the incentive fee previously paid.

The involvement of our interested directors in thialuation process may create conflicts of interest.

We make many of our portfolio investments in therf@f loans and securities that are not publicyléd and for which no
market based price quotation is available. As altesur board of directors determines the faiueabf these loans and
securities in good faith as described elsewhetkignannual report on Form 10-K. In connection wtitat determination,
investment professionals from Stellus Capital Ma&magnt may provide our board of directors with viabres based upon the
most recent portfolio company financial statemeigilable and projected financial results of eastifplio company. While
the valuation for each portfolio investment is evéd by an independent valuation firm quarterlg, ulimate determination of
fair value is made by our board of directors, idahg our interested directors, and not by suchdtharty valuation firm. In
addition, Messrs. Ladd, D’Angelo and Davis, eaclinderested member of our board of directors, hdiset pecuniary interest
in Stellus Capital Management. The participatiofstellus Capital Management's investment profesdiom our valuation
process, and the pecuniary interest in Stellust@lddianagement by certain members of our boardrettbrs, could result in a
conflict of interest as Stellus Capital Managem&ntanagement fee is based, in part, on the valaarafross assets, and
incentive fees are based, in part, on realizedsgail realized and unrealized losses.

There are conflicts related to other arrangementgwStellus Capital Management.

We have entered into a license agreement withuSt€hpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freense to use the name “Stellus Capital.” In addljtiee have entered into an
administration agreement with Stellus Capital Maragnt pursuant to which we are required to payetus Capital
Management our allocable portion of overhead ahdragxpenses incurred by Stellus Capital Manageimegrgrforming its
obligations under such administration agreemert) s1$ rent and our allocable portion of the costurfchief financial officer
and chief compliance officer and his staff. Thidl wieate conflicts of interest that our board o&dtors will monitor. For
example, under the terms of the license agreementyill be unable to preclude Stellus Capital Magragnt from licensing or
transferring the ownership of the “Stellus Capitadime to third parties, some of whom may compesénagus. Consequently,
we will be unable to prevent any damage to goodWat may occur as a result of the activities @fl8¢ Capital Management
or others. Furthermore, in the event the licenseagent is terminated, we will be required to cleaogr name and cease using
“Stellus Capital” as part of our name. Any of thesents could disrupt our recognition in the magdate, damage any
goodwill we may have generated and otherwise hambuosiness.

The investment advisory agreement and the admirmigtm agreement with Stellus Capital Management warot negotiated
on an arm’s length basis and may not be as favomtd us as if they had been negotiated with an diliated third party.

The investment advisory agreement and the admatistr agreement were negotiated between relatdig par
Consequently, their terms, including fees payabiStellus Capital Management, may not be as faletalus as if they had
been negotiated with an unaffiliated third partyatldition, we may choose not to enforce, or t@eef less vigorously, our
rights and remedies under these agreements besbosedesire to maintain our ongoing relationshifh Stellus Capital
Management and its affiliates. Any such decisia@wéver, would breach our fiduciary obligations to etockholders.
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The time and resources that Stellus Capital Managarhdevote to us may be diverted, and we may falcktianal
competition due to the fact that Stellus Capital kiagement and its affiliates are not prohibited froraising money for, or
managing, another entity that makes the same typemvestments that we target.

Stellus Capital Management and some of its aféilatncluding our officers and our non-independgrgctors, are not
prohibited from raising money for, or managing, #ueo investment entity that makes the same typ@svebtments as those we
target. For example, Stellus Capital Managementaotly manages a private credit fund that will hamenvestment strategy
that is identical to our investment strategy anthwihich we intend to co-invest. In addition, pastto sub-advisory
arrangements, Stellus Capital Management providasdiscretionary advisory services to the D. E.vé&geoup related to a
private investment fund and a strategy of a privatdti-strategy investment fund to which the D Shaw group serves as
investment adviser. As a result, the time and nessuthey could devote to us may be diverted. titiath, we may compete
with any such investment entity for the same inmessand investment opportunities.

Our incentive fee arrangements with Stellus Capiddhnagement may vary from those of other investménids, account or
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Mgaaent, which may create an incentive for Stelluspital Management
to devote time and resources to a higher fee-payfingd.

If Stellus Capital Management is paid a higher ganfance-based fee from any of its other fundsaiy imave an incentive
to devote more research and development or othieites, and/or recommend the allocation of invesiht opportunities, to
such higher fee-paying fund. For example, to thereStellus Capital Management’s incentive comagos is not subject to a
hurdle or total return requirement with respecanother fund, it may have an incentive to deveteetand resources to such
other fund.

Stellus Capital Management’s liability is limitednder the investment advisory agreement and we hayeed to indemnify
Stellus Capital Management against certain liabiés, which may lead Stellus Capital Management td & a riskier
manner on our behalf than it would when acting fdts own account.

Under the investment advisory agreement, Stellyst@laManagement has not assumed any responsitalitg other than
to render the services called for under that agesentt will not be responsible for any action afr doard of directors in
following or declining to follow Stellus Capital Magement’s advice or recommendations. Under thesinvent advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management, its offiamembers and personnel, and any person contraltiegntrolled by Stellus
Capital Management will not be liable to us, anlgssdiary of ours, our directors, our stockholdarsuay subsidiary’s
stockholders or partners for acts or omissionsoperéd in accordance with and pursuant to the invest advisory agreement,
except those resulting from acts constituting gresgligence, willful misfeasance, bad faith or ftesk disregard of the duties
that Stellus Capital Management owes to us undemntlrestment advisory agreement. In addition, asgidhe investment
advisory agreement, we have agreed to indemnifjuSt€apital Management and each of its officengalors, members,
managers and employees from and against any ctaitrabilities, including reasonable legal fees atlder expenses
reasonably incurred, arising out of or in connattioth our business and operations or any actikartar omitted on our
behalf pursuant to authority granted by the investhadvisory agreement, except where attributabtgdss negligence, willful
misfeasance, bad faith or reckless disregard df pacson’s duties under the investment advisorgergent. These protections
may lead Stellus Capital Management to act inldenisnanner when acting on our behalf than it woukeen acting for its own
account.

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affates will be restricted, which may limit the spe of investments available
to us.

We are prohibited under the 1940 Act from partitiigin certain transactions with our affiliatestaut the prior approval
of our independent directors and, in some casesSHC. Any person that owns, directly or indirecB% or more of our
outstanding voting securities will be our affilid® purposes of the 1940 Act, and we are genepatiibited from buying or
selling any security from or to such affiliate wotht the prior approval of our independent directdie 1940 Act also prohibits
certain “joint” transactions with certain of oufibtes, which could include concurrent investneeint the same portfolio
company, without prior approval of our independginéctors and, in some cases, of the SEC. We atghgted from buying or
selling any security from or to any person thattoaa us or who owns more than 25% of our voting
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securities or certain of that person’s affiliat@sentering into prohibited joint transactions watlch persons, absent the prior
approval of the SEC. As a result of these restiictj we may be prohibited from buying or selling aacurity (other than any
security of which we are the issuer) from or to aoytfolio company of a private fund managed byl&eCapital Management
or its affiliates without the prior approval of tB&C, which may limit the scope of investment opyaities that would
otherwise be available to us.

We have received exemptive relief from the SECatéonwest with investment funds managed by Stellapitl
Management (other than the D. E. Shaw group fuaslglefined below) where doing so is consistent withinvestment
strategy as well as applicable law (including #rents and conditions of the exemptive order issyetthé® SEC). Under the
terms of the relief permitting us to co-invest witther funds managed by Stellus Capital Manageragingquired majority” (as
defined in Section 57(0) of the 1940 Act) of oudépendent directors must make certain conclusionsrinection with a co-
investment transaction, including that (1) the teiwhthe proposed transaction, including the ca@rsiibn to be paid, are
reasonable and fair to us and our stockholdersdanmbt involve overreaching of us or our stockhmddmn the part of any
person concerned and (2) the transaction is cemsigtith the interests of our stockholders andisscstent with our investment
objectives and strategies.

Our ability to sell or otherwise exit investmentswhich affiliates of Stellus Capital Managementsad have an investment
may be restricted, which may have a materially aceimpact on our ability to manage our investmeptrtfolio.

Pursuant to the 1940 Act, unless and until we vecekemptive relief from the SEC permitting us tosth, we may be
prohibited from exiting our positions in portfolemmpanies in which funds affiliated with Stellusp@tal Management also hold
positions. As of December 31, 2014, our portfobmsisted of 9 assets in 6 portfolio companies drede by the D. E. Shaw
group fund to which the D. E. Shaw group servesasstment adviser and is sub-advised by Stellyst@lavlanagement.
However, the D. E. Shaw group fund has retainedteqestments in all of those portfolio compani&s the extent that our
investments in these portfolio companies need tebiuctured or that we choose to exit these invests in the future, our
ability to do so may be limited if such restructyyior exit also involves an affiliate or the D.Shaw group fund therein
because such a transaction could be consideredtdrgnsaction prohibited by the 1940 Act in thsence of our receipt of
relief from the SEC in connection with such trarigac For example, if the D. E. Shaw group fund evexquired to approve a
restructuring of our investment in one of thesdfptio companies in its capacity as an equity holtiereof and the D. E. Shaw
group fund were deemed to be our affiliate, susiolirement by the D. E. Shaw group fund in the regtring transaction may
constitute a prohibited joint transaction under1Bd0 Act. However, we do not believe that ourigbib restructure or exit
these investments will be significantly hampered tluthe fact that the equity investments retaimethe D. E. Shaw group
fund are minority equity positions and, as a resuis unlikely that the D. E. Shaw group fund Maé or will be required to be
involved in any such restructurings or exits.

We operate in a highly competitive market for intesent opportunities, which could reduce returns anelsult in losses.

A number of entities compete with us to make thpegyof investments that we make. We compete wibhigand private
funds, commercial and investment banks, commeficiahcing companies and, to the extent they proaidalternative form of
financing, private equity and hedge funds. Manguwf competitors are substantially larger and haresiclerably greater
financial, technical and marketing resources tharda. For example, we believe some of our compstittay have access to
funding sources that are not available to us. titexh, some of our competitors may have higheg tiderances or different
risk assessments, which could allow them to consideider variety of investments and establish ntelationships than us.
Furthermore, many of our competitors are not sulifethe regulatory restrictions that the 1940 igposes on us as a business
development company or the source-of-income, algetsification and distribution requirements westsatisfy to maintain
our RIC qualification. The competitive pressuresfa@e may have a material adverse effect on ounéss, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowsaAssult of this competition, we may not be abléake advantage of
attractive investment opportunities from time todi, and we may not be able to identify and makestments that are
consistent with our investment objective.
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With respect to the investments we make, we dseek to compete based primarily on the interessnat offer, and we
believe that some of our competitors may make lodtisinterest rates that are lower than the rateffer. With respect to all
investments, we may lose some investment oppoigsriftwe do not match our competitors’ pricingnte and structure.
However, if we match our competitors’ pricing, terand structure, we may experience decreasedteetshincome, lower
yields and increased risk of credit loss. We map abmpete for investment opportunities with inrrestt funds, accounts and
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital idameent. Although Stellus Capital Management with@dte opportunities
in accordance with its policies and proceduresgalions to such investment funds, accounts arestment vehicles will
reduce the amount and frequency of opportunitiedave to us and may not be in the best interasts and our stockholders.

We will be subject to corporate-level income taxdamay default under our revolving credit facility we are unable to
maintain our qualification as a RIC under Subchapt® of the Code.

To maintain our qualification as a RIC under SulptéaM of the Code, we must meet certain sourceadme, asset
diversification and distribution requirements. Tdistribution requirement for a RIC is satisfiedvé distribute at least 90% of
our net ordinary income and net short-term capgiséhs in excess of net long-term capital lossesnyf, to our stockholders on
an annual basis. Because we incur debt, we wilulsgect to certain asset coverage ratio requiresnamder the 1940 Act and
financial covenants under loan and credit agreesitdiat could, under certain circumstances, restadtom making
distributions necessary to maintain our qualificatas a RIC. If we are unable to obtain cash frtmemsources, we may fail to
maintain our qualification as a RIC and, thus, aysubject to corporate-level income tax. To maindar qualification as a
RIC, we must also meet certain asset diversificatgmuirements at the end of each calendar quédéure to meet these tests
may result in our having to dispose of certain gimeents quickly in order to prevent the loss of gualification as a RIC.
Because most of our investments are in privatbiohttraded public companies, any such disposgioray be made at
disadvantageous prices and may result in subst#gies. No certainty can be provided, that wé satisfy the asset
diversification requirements or the other requirataeecessary to maintain our qualification as@. Rlwe fail to maintain our
qualification as a RIC for any reason and beconbgestito corporate income tax, the resulting caapmincome taxes could
substantially reduce our net assets, the amotntofme available for distributions to our stocktetland the amount of funds
available for new investments. Furthermore, if wittb maintain our qualification as a RIC, we ni@yin default under the
terms of our revolving credit facility with variolsnders (the “Credit Facility”). Such a failure wid have a material adverse
effect on us and our stockholders.

We will need to raise additional capital to growdaise we must distribute most of our income.

We will need additional capital to fund new investrts and grow our portfolio of investments. Wengt¢o access the
capital markets periodically to issue debt or egsécurities or borrow from financial institutiomsorder to obtain such
additional capital. Unfavorable economic conditi@osild increase our funding costs, limit our acdeshe capital markets or
result in a decision by lenders not to extend ¢rediis. A reduction in the availability of new dap could limit our ability to
grow. In addition, we are required to distributdegtst 90% of our net ordinary income and net stesrh capital gains in excess
of net long-term capital losses, if any, to ourcktwmlders to maintain our qualification as a RIG.aresult, these earnings will
not be available to fund new investments. An inighdn our part to access the capital markets ssfa#y could limit our
ability to grow our business and execute our busirstrategy fully and could decrease our earnifigay, which would have
an adverse effect on the value of our shares ofremmstock.

You may not receive distributions, or our distribahs may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a monthly bé&sisur stockholders out of assets legally availéaistribution. We
cannot assure you that we will achieve investmesitlts that will allow us to make a specified lesktash distributions or
year-to-year increases in cash distributions. @ilityto pay distributions might be adversely affed by the impact of one or
more of the risk factors described in this annepbrt on Form 10-K. Due to the asset coverageatgdicable to us under the
1940 Act as a business development company, webmdéiynited in our ability to make distributions.|Aistributions will be
made

35




TABLE OF CONTENTS

at the discretion of our board of directors and délpend on our earnings, financial condition, rteriance of RIC status,
compliance with applicable business developmentpamy, SBA regulations (if applicable) and such ofhetors as our board
of directors may deem relative from time to timee \bAnnot assure you that we will make distributimnsur stockholders in
the future.

We may have difficulty paying our required distritians if we recognize income before, or withoutcedving cash
representing such income.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we includadome certain amounts that we have not yet redeiv cash, such as
the accrual of original issue discount. This mageaif we receive warrants in connection with theking of a loan and in other
circumstances, or through contracted PIK intemgbich represents contractual interest added téothe balance and due at the
end of the loan term. Such original issue discowhich could be significant relative to our oveliallestment activities, and
increases in loan balances as a result of conttd&ité arrangements are included in income beforeageive any
corresponding cash payments. We also may be requireclude in income certain other amounts thatwill not receive in
cash.

Since in certain cases we may recognize incomeadefowithout receiving cash representing suchrnmgove may have
difficulty meeting the requirement to distributel@dst 90% of our net ordinary income and net stesrh capital gains in excess
of net long-term capital losses, if any, to maimtaiir qualification as a RIC. In such a case, wg have to sell some of our
investments at times we would not consider advattag or raise additional debt or equity capitalesiuce new investment
originations to meet these distribution requireraetitwe are not able to obtain such cash fromragberces, we may fail to
maintain our qualification as a RIC and thus bgettio corporate-level income tax.

PIK interest payments we receive will increase @ssets under management and, as a result, will @ase the amount of
base management fees and incentive fees payableshy Stellus Capital Management.

Certain of our debt investments may contain prowisiproviding for the payment of PIK interest. BesmPIK interest
results in an increase in the size of the loanrz@af the underlying loan, the receipt by us ¢ Riterest will have the effect
of increasing our assets under management. AsiHi,lescause the base management fee that we (Bigltos Capital
Management is based on the value of our grosssasietreceipt by us of PIK interest will resuliin increase in the amount of
the base management fee payable by us. In additignsuch increase in a loan balance due to thedpteaf PIK interest will
cause such loan to accrue interest on the higherldalance, which will result in an increase in prg-incentive fee net
investment income and, as a result, an increasedémtive fees that are payable by us to Stellyst@laManagement.

Regulations governing our operation as a businesvelopment company affect our ability to, and thayin which we, raise
additional capital. As a business development compahe necessity of raising additional capital maypose us to risks,
including the typical risks associated with leverag

We may issue debt securities or preferred stockoamarrow money from banks or other financial itagions, which we
refer to collectively as “senior securities,” upth@ maximum amount permitted by the 1940 Act. Wrtde provisions of the
1940 Act, we are permitted as a business developooempany to issue senior securities in amounts that our asset
coverage ratio, as defined in the 1940 Act, eqatlsast 200% of our gross assets less all lisdsiland indebtedness not
represented by senior securities, after each issuainsenior securities. If the value of our asdetdines, we may be unable to
satisfy this test. If that happens, we would noabke to borrow additional funds until we were aol€eomply with the 200%
asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act. Also,aangunts that we use to service our indebtedneskiwot be available for
distributions to our common stockholders. If wausssenior securities, we will be exposed to typiiskis associated with
leverage, including an increased risk of loss.

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumsomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however,
sell our common stock, or warrants, options ortsgb acquire our common stock, at a price belantturrent net asset value
per share of our common stock if our board of doedetermines that such sale is in our bestastsy and if our stockholders
approve such sale. On July 7, 2014, our stockhsidated to allow us to issue common stock at eefsalow net asset value
per share for the period
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ending on the earlier of the one year anniversatii@date of the Company’s 2014 Annual Meetingtfckholders and the
date of the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Staddters, which is expected to be held in June 2@LB.stockholders did
not specify a maximum discount below net assetevatuvhich we are able to issue our common stadttiguegh the number of
shares sold in each offering may not exceed 258u0butstanding common stock immediately priortohssale. In addition,
we cannot issue shares of our common stock belbwsset value unless our board of directors detesrihat it would be in
our and our stockholders’ best interests to d@ades of common stock at prices below net assaevadr share dilute the
interests of existing stockholders, have the efféceducing our net asset value per share andrethyce our market price per
share. In addition, continuous sales of commonksh@tow net asset value may have a negative ingpatdtal returns and
could have a negative impact on the market priceuofshares of common stock. If we raise additidmadis by issuing
common stock, then the percentage ownership oftogkholders at that time will decrease, and yoy engerience dilution.

Because we finance our investments with borrowedney the potential for gain or loss on amounts irsted in us is
magnified and may increase the risk of investingus.

The use of leverage magnifies the potential fon @ailoss on amounts invested. The use of levasagenerally considered
a speculative investment technique and increasesgks associated with investing in our securititwe continue to use
leverage to partially finance our investments tigitobanks, insurance companies and other lendensyifioexperience
increased risks of investing in our common stoanders of these funds have fixed dollar claims wrassets that are superior
to the claims of our common stockholders, and waldvexpect such lenders to seek recovery agaimsasaets in the event of
a default. We, through our SBIC subsidiary, intéméssue debt securities guaranteed by the SB/Asalutlin the capital
markets. Upon any such issuance of debt secuaitidsas a result of its guarantee of the debt sexyrif any, the SBA would
also have fixed dollar claims on the assets ofSRIC subsidiary that are superior to the claimewfcommon stockholders.

Upon the issuance of any debt securities guarartgdide SBA, if we are unable to meet the finanalaigations under the
Notes or the Credit Facility, the SBA, as a cragiteould have a superior claim to the assets ofSRIC subsidiary over our
stockholders in the event we liquidate or the SBEreises its remedies under such debentures aestk of a default by us. In
addition, under the terms of the Credit Facilitg@my borrowing facility or other debt instrumerd way enter into, we are
likely to be required to use the net proceeds gfiamestments that we sell to repay a portion efamount borrowed under
such facility or instrument before applying such pceeds to any other uses. If the value of eset decreases, leveraging
would cause net asset value to decline more shtralyit otherwise would have had we not leveratgeeteby magnifying
losses or eliminating our stake in a leveragedstment. Similarly, any decrease in our revenu@coriine will cause our net
income to decline more sharply than it would haad tve not borrowed. Such a decline would also meggtaffect our ability
to make distributions with respect to our commartkt Our ability to service any debt depends largel our financial
performance and is subject to prevailing econoraiwdions and competitive pressures. Moreoverhasbtase management fee
payable to Stellus Capital Management is payaldedban the value of our gross assets, includinggtlagsets acquired through
the use of leverage, Stellus Capital Managemehhaile a financial incentive to incur leverage, ethinay not be consistent
with our stockholders’ interests. In addition, @ammon stockholders bear the burden of any increaser expenses as a
result of our use of leverage, including interegtemses and any increase in the base managemguayfalele to Stellus Capital
Management.

As a business development company, we generallsegréred to meet a coverage ratio of total agsetistal borrowings
and other senior securities, which include all af borrowings and any preferred stock that we rsayeé in the future, of at
least 200%. If this ratio declines below 200%, wk mot be able to incur additional debt until weable to comply with the
200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act. dthifd have a material adverse effect on our operatiand we may not be
able to make distributions. The amount of leverthge we employ will depend on Stellus Capital Magragnt’'s and our board
of directors’ assessment of market and other facbthe time of any proposed borrowing. We caasstire you that we will
be able to obtain credit at all or on terms acdaptto us.

We have received exemptive relief from the SECeomit us to exclude the debt of our SBIC subsidgugranteed by the
SBA from the definition of senior securities in th@0% asset coverage ratio we are
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required to maintain under the 1940 Act. This fediows us increased flexibility under the 200%etscoverage test by
allowing us to borrow up to $97.5 million more thaa would otherwise be able to borrow absent theip¢ of this exemptive
relief.

In addition, our debt facilities may impose finaa@nd operating covenants that restrict our bgsiaetivities, including
limitations that hinder our ability to finance atidhal loans and investments or to make the distidins required to maintain
our qualification as a RIC under the Code.

Substantially all of our assets are subject to seguinterests under the Credit Facility or claimsf the SBA with respect to
SBA-guaranteed debentures we may issue and, if e&ault on our obligations thereunder, we may suffadverse
consequences, including foreclosure on our assets.

As of December 31, 2014, substantially all of osseds were pledged as collateral under the Creditity or are subject to
a superior claim over the holders of our commouglstr the Notes by the SBA pursuant to the SBA-gneed debentures. If
we default on our obligations under the Credit Rgadr the SBA-guaranteed debentures the lendedsoa the SBA may have
the right to foreclose upon and sell, or otherwigaesfer, the collateral subject to their securitgrests or their superior claim.
In such event, we may be forced to sell our invesit$ito raise funds to repay our outstanding bamgsvin order to avoid
foreclosure and these forced sales may be at timest prices we would not consider advantageouosedwer, such
deleveraging of our company could significantly airpour ability to effectively operate our busingsshe manner in which we
have historically operated. As a result, we cowdddrced to curtail or cease new investment a@wiand lower or eliminate
the dividends that we have historically paid to siackholders.

In addition, if the lenders exercise their righstil the assets pledged under the Credit Facidlitgh sales may be completed
at distressed sale prices, thereby diminishingotergially eliminating the amount of cash availafoleis after repayment of the
amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility.

Because we use debt to finance our investments @iy in the future issue senior securities includimpgeferred stock and
debt securities, if market interest rates weretieriease, our cost of capital could increase, whiobuld reduce our net
investment income.

Because we borrow money to make investments andnrthg future issue senior securities includingf@med stock and
debt securities, our net investment income willefeg) in part, upon the difference between theattehich we borrow funds
and the rate at which we invest those funds. Assalt, we can offer no assurance that a significhange in market interest
rates would not have a material adverse effectusmet investment income in the event we use daefim&nce our investments.
In periods of rising interest rates, our cost ofds would increase, which could reduce our netstment income. We may use
interest rate risk management techniques in amte&fdimit our exposure to interest rate fluctoats. We may utilize
instruments such as forward contracts, currencipoptand interest rate swaps, caps, collars aodsflim seek to hedge against
fluctuations in the relative values of our portfofiositions from changes in currency exchange eatdamarket interest rates to
the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. For examipléhe extent any such instruments were to cornstgenior securities under
the 1940 Act, we would have to and will comply witie asset coverage requirements thereunder perastted in lieu thereof,
place certain assets in a segregated account & saeh instruments in accordance with SEC guidanckiding, for example,
Investment Company Act Release No. IC-10666, alcgiyte. There is otherwise no limit as to our ipilo enter into such
derivative transactions. In addition, a rise in glemeral level of interest rates typically leadhiggher interest rates applicable to
our debt investments. Accordingly, an increaseiarest rates may result in an increase of the atraflour pre-incentive fee
net investment income and, as a result, an inciedaeentive fees payable to Stellus Capital M@magnt. Adverse
developments resulting from changes in interessrat hedging transactions could have a materiadrad effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openast

Provisions in the Credit Facility or any other fute borrowing facility may limit our discretion in perating our business.

The Credit Facility is, and any future borrowingifily may be, backed by all or a portion of ouals and securities on
which the lenders will or, in the case of a futtaeility, may have a security interest. We

38




TABLE OF CONTENTS

may pledge up to 100% of our assets and may greetwity interest in all of our assets under it of any debt instrument
we enter into with lenders. We expect that any sgcunterests we grant will be set forth in a garatee and security agreement
and evidenced by the filing of financing statemdaytshe agent for the lenders. In addition, we expleat the custodian for our
securities serving as collateral for such loan wantlude in its electronic systems notices indigathe existence of such
security interests and, following notice of occure of an event of default, if any, and duringcstinuance, will only accept
transfer instructions with respect to any such stes from the lender or its designee. If we werelefault under the terms of
any debt instrument, the agent for the applicadahelérs would be able to assume control of the grofirdisposition of any or

all of our assets securing such debt, which woalehta material adverse effect on our businessidinhcondition, results of
operations and cash flows.

In addition, any security interests as well as tiggaovenants under the Credit Facility or anyeothorrowing facility may
limit our ability to incur additional liens or debhd may make it difficult for us to restructurerefinance indebtedness at or
prior to maturity or obtain additional debt or eguinancing. For example, under the terms of thed Facility, we have
generally agreed to not incur any additional segtimdebtedness, other than certain indebtedness/éheay incur, in
accordance with the Credit Facility, to allow ugptochase investments in U.S. Treasury Bills. ldittah, we have agreed not
to incur any additional indebtedness that has antyatate prior to the maturity date of the Crdehitcility. Further, if our
borrowing base under the Credit Facility or anyeothorrowing facility were to decrease, we would&guired to secure
additional assets in an amount equal to any bonmgwase deficiency. In the event that all of owets are secured at the time
of such a borrowing base deficiency, we could loygiired to repay advances under the Credit Fadilitgny other borrowing
facility or make deposits to a collection accowittier of which could have a material adverse impaur ability to fund
future investments and to make stockholder distidiis.

In addition, under the Credit Facility or any otherrowing facility, we may be subject to limitat®as to how borrowed
funds may be used, which may include restrictiamg®@ographic and industry concentrations, loan gagment frequency and
status, average life, collateral interests andstment ratings, as well as regulatory restrictiom$everage which may affect the
amount of funding that may be obtained. There nisy lae certain requirements relating to portfolfprmance, including
required minimum portfolio yield and limitations delinquencies and charge-offs, a violation of whgould limit further
advances and, in some cases, result in an evelefadlt. Furthermore, we expect that the termsiefCredit Facility will
contain a covenant requiring us to maintain conmgkawith RIC provisions at all times, subject totam remedial provisions.
Thus, a failure to maintain compliance with RIC\sions could result in an event of default under €redit Facility. An event
of default under the Credit Facility or any otherdowing facility could result in an acceleratedtordy date for all amounts
outstanding thereunder, which could have a matadaérse effect on our business and financial ¢cimmdiThis could reduce
our revenues and, by delaying any cash paymentatido us under the Credit Facility or any othertaing facility until the
lenders have been paid in full, reduce our liqyiditd cash flow and impair our ability to grow duwsiness and maintain our
qualification as a RIC.

We may in the future determine to fund a portion ofir investments with preferred stock, which woutthgnify the potential
for gain or loss and the risks of investing in us the same way as our borrowings.

Preferred stock, which is another form of leverdges the same risks to our common stockholdersrswings because
the dividends on any preferred stock we issue testumulative. Payment of such dividends and repaywf the liquidation
preference of such preferred stock must take preéer over any dividends or other payments to onmeon stockholders, and
preferred stockholders are not subject to any ofeapenses or losses and are not entitled to gEatécin any income or
appreciation in excess of their stated preference.

Adverse developments in the credit markets may impar ability to enter into any other future bornwing facility.

During the economic downturn in the United Stated began in mid-2007, many commercial banks anérdinancial
institutions stopped lending or significantly culed their lending activity. In addition, in an eft to stem losses and reduce
their exposure to segments of the economy deemieel Ihigh risk, some financial institutions limitefinancing and loan
modification transactions and reviewed the termexidting
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facilities to identify bases for accelerating thatority of existing lending facilities. If thesemditions recur (for example, as a
result of a broadening of the current Euro zonditaisis), it may be difficult for us to entertina new borrowing facility,
obtain other financing to finance the growth of muestments, or refinance any outstanding indetetesl on acceptable
economic terms, or at all.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our asts in qualifying assets, we could fail to maintagur qualification as a
business development company or be precluded fromesting according to our current business strategy

As a business development company, we may not@&cguoy assets other than “qualifying assets” upkgsthe time of and
after giving effect to such acquisition, at leaB¥%vof our total assets are qualifying assets.

We believe that most of the investments that we agire in the future will constitute qualifyingsets. However, we
may be precluded from investing in what we beligvbe attractive investments if such investmergsnat qualifying assets for
purposes of the 1940 Act. If we do not invest disight portion of our assets in qualifying assets,could violate the 1940 Act
provisions applicable to business development caoegaAs a result of such violation, specific rulesler the 1940 Act could
prevent us, for example, from making follow-on istreents in existing portfolio companies (which ebrésult in the dilution
of our position).

If we do not maintain our status as a businessldpreent company, we would be subject to regulati®m registered
closed-end investment company under the 1940 Axh Pegistered closed-end investment company, wddwie subject to
substantially more regulatory restrictions under 1840 Act which would significantly decrease opemating flexibility.

Most of our portfolio investments are recorded airfvalue as determined in good faith by our boasfidirectors and, as a
result, there may be uncertainty as to the valueooir portfolio investments.

Most of our portfolio investments will take the foof securities that are not publicly traded. Taie ¥alue of loans,
securities and other investments that are not glytiiaded may not be readily determinable, and/alae these investments at
fair value as determined in good faith by our baafrdirectors, including to reflect significant ewe affecting the value of our
investments. Most, if not all, of our investmeragher than cash and cash equivalents) are clatsifie.evel 3 under ASC
Topic 820. This means that our portfolio valuatians based on unobservable inputs and our own @sisuns about how
market participants would price the asset or lighih question. Inputs into the determination airfvalue of our portfolio
investments require significant management judgroelstimation. Even if observable market datasélable, such
information may be the result of consensus priaifigrmation or broker quotes, which include a digtler that the broker
would not be held to such a price in an actualsiaation. The non-binding nature of consensus iaimd/or quotes
accompanied by disclaimers materially reducesehahility of such information. We have retaineeé ervices of independent
service providers to review the valuation of thiesans and securities. The types of factors thabtad of directors may take
into account in determining the fair value of ouweéstments generally include, as appropriate, cosgrato publicly traded
securities including such factors as yield, mayuaitd measures of credit quality, the enterprideevaf a portfolio company,
the nature and realizable value of any collaténa portfolio company’s ability to make paymentsl és earnings and
discounted cash flow, the markets in which thefpbot company does business and other relevanbfeicBecause such
valuations, and particularly valuations of privageurities and private companies, are inherentterain, may fluctuate over
short periods of time and may be based on estimatesieterminations of fair value may differ méaby from the values that
would have been used if a ready market for thesmesl@nd securities existed. Our net asset valud bewadversely affected if
our determinations regarding the fair value of ionestments were materially higher than the vatbaswe ultimately realize
upon the disposal of such loans and securities.

We adjust quarterly the valuation of our portfdfioreflect our board of directors’ determinatiortloé fair value of each
investment in our portfolio. Any changes in faitwaare recorded in our statement of operatiomeashange in unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

We may expose ourselves to risks if we engage bgirgy transactions.

We may utilize instruments such as forward congramtirrency options and interest rate swaps, cafiars and floors to
seek to hedge against fluctuations in the relatalaes of our portfolio positions from
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changes in currency exchange rates and markeggttertes. Use of these hedging instruments maysexys to counter-party
credit risk. Hedging against a decline in the valagour portfolio positions does not eliminate gussibility of fluctuations in
the values of such positions or prevent lossd®ifvialues of such positions decline. However, sgttging can establish other
positions designed to gain from those same deveadopsnthereby offsetting the decline in the valisuzh portfolio positions.
Such hedging transactions may also limit the opmitt for gain if the values of the portfolio padeits should increase.
Moreover, it may not be possible to hedge againgb@hange rate or interest rate fluctuation thgeinerally anticipated at an
acceptable price.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly apéing results.

We could experience fluctuations in our quartepgmating results due to a number of factors, inalgidthe interest rate
payable on the loans and debt securities we acgheelefault rate on such loans and securitiesleiel of our expenses,
variations in and the timing of the recognitiorreélized and unrealized gains or losses, the degnebich we encounter
competition in our markets and general economiditmms. In light of these factors, results for grgriod should not be relied
upon as being indicative of performance in futueeqds.

We are an “emerging growth company” under the JOB®t, and we cannot be certain if the reduced distice
requirements applicable to emerging growth compamnieill make our common stock less attractive toestors.

We are and we will remain an “emerging growth comgias defined in the JOBS Act until the earliefaf the last day of
the fiscal year (i) following the fifth anniversaof the completion of our initial public offeringi) in which we have total
annual gross revenue of at least $1.0 billionjigrif which we are deemed to be a large accederditer, which means the
market value of our common stock that is held by-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the priond 30", and (b) the date
on which we have issued more than $1.0 billionan-gonvertible debt during the prior three-yeaiqekrFor so long as we
remain an “emerging growth company” we may takeaatiyge of certain exemptions from various reponteguirements that
are applicable to other public companies that at¢emerging growth companies” including, but riatited to, not being
required to comply with the auditor attestationuiegments of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Wet.cannot predict if
investors will find our common stock less attraethecause we will rely on some or all of these gtems. If some investors
find our common stock less attractive as a rethdte may be a less active trading market for oamroon stock and our stock
price may be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also pdesi that an “emerging growth company” can take iaidege of the
extended transition period provided in Section (2(&B) of the Securities Act for complying with new revised accounting
standards. In other words, an “emerging growth comgpcan delay the adoption of certain accounttagaards until those
standards would otherwise apply to private commaiiée are choosing to take advantage of the extitndesition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standavdsch may make it more difficult for investors asekcurities analysts to
evaluate us since our financial statements map@abmparable to companies that comply with putdimpany effective dates
and may result in less investor confidence.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not kable to accurately report
our financial results or prevent fraud. As a resulstockholders could lose confidence in our finaatand other public
reporting, which would harm our business and theatting price of our common stock.

Effective internal controls over financial repodiare necessary for us to provide reliable findmrejports and, together with
adequate disclosure controls and procedures, argndel to prevent fraud. Any failure to implemesquired new or improved
controls, or difficulties encountered in their irapientation could cause us to fail to meet our téppobligations. In addition,
any testing by us conducted in connection with iBaet04 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or the subseiesting by our
independent registered public accounting firm (whedertaken, as noted below), may reveal deficénici our internal
controls over financial reporting that are deenwedd material weaknesses or that may require pctispeor retroactive
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changes to our consolidated financial statemenigdentify other areas for further attention or ipement. Inferior internal
controls could also cause investors to lose conéiden our reported financial information, whictutihave a negative effect
on the trading price of our common stock.

We are required to disclose changes made in ogimiak control and procedures on a quarterly basisoar management is
required to assess the effectiveness of theseateatnnually. However, for as long as we are anetgiimg growth company”
under the recently enacted JOBS Act, our indepéragistered public accounting firm will not be végd to attest to the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcéporting pursuant to Section 404. We could bemerging growth company
for up to five years. An independent assessmetiteoéffectiveness of our internal controls coultedeproblems that our
management’s assessment might not. Undetectediatateaknesses in our internal controls could leefihancial statement
restatements and require us to incur the expensaraddiation.

Our status as an “emerging growth company” underdldOBS Act may make it more difficult to raise céglias and when
we need it.

Because of the exemptions from various reportiggirements provided to us as an “emerging growthgany” and
because we will have an extended transition pdaodomplying with new or revised financial accongtstandards, we may
be less attractive to investors and it may bedliffifor us to raise additional capital as and wivemeed it. Investors may be
unable to compare our business with other compamiesr industry if they believe that our financ&counting is not as
transparent as other companies in our industryelfire unable to raise additional capital as anghwte need it, our financial
condition and results of operations may be matgréald adversely affected.

New or modified laws or regulations governing ouperations may adversely affect our business.

We and our portfolio companies are subject to r&@tipn by laws at the U.S. federal, state and Imadls. These laws and
regulations, as well as their interpretation, magrge from time to time, and new laws, regulatiamd interpretations may also
come into effect. Any such new or changed lawsegulations could have a material adverse effecturrbusiness.

Additionally, changes to the laws and regulatioogggning our operations related to permitted inwestts may cause us to
alter our investment strategy in order to availselwes of new or different opportunities. Such gesncould result in material
differences to the strategies and plans set farthis annual report on Form 10-K and may shiftiouestment focus from the
areas of expertise of Stellus Capital Managemeattter types of investments in which Stellus Capitanagement may have
little or no expertise or experience. Any such dem if they occur, could have a material adveffeeteon our results of
operations and the value of your investment.

Our board of directors may change our investmenjediive, operating policies and strategies withquitor notice or
stockholder approval.

Our board of directors has the authority, excepitherwise provided in the 1940 Act, to modify caiive certain of our
operating policies and strategies without prioiceand without stockholder approval. However, abseockholder approval,
we may not change the nature of our business En@esase to be, or withdraw our election as, anessi development
company. We cannot predict the effect any charmesit current operating policies and strategiesldvhave on our business,
operating results and the market price of our comstock. Nevertheless, any such changes could selyaffect our business
and impair our ability to make distributions to @tockholders.

Any failure to comply with SBA regulations could ka an adverse effect on our SBIC subsidiary’s odaras.

On June 20, 2014, our wholly-owned subsidiary,|@eCapital SBIC LP, received a license from théA38 operate as an
SBIC. The SBA places certain limitations on thafining terms of investments by SBICs in portfolienpanies and prohibits
SBICs from providing funds for certain purposesmbusinesses in a few prohibited industries. Céanpk with SBIC
requirements may cause our SBIC subsidiary to fattractive investment opportunities that are reshptted under SBA
regulations.
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Further, SBA regulations require that an SBIC baneixned by the SBA to determine its compliance whthrelevant SBA
regulations at least every two years. The SBA fitdyiwithout prior SBA approval, a “change of aalit of an SBIC or
transfers that would result in any person (or aigrof persons acting in concert) owning 10% or nadra class of capital stock
of an SBIC. If our SBIC subsidiary fails to compljth applicable SBA regulations, the SBA could, eieging on the severity
of the violation, limit or prohibit its use of defiteires, declare outstanding debentures immedidtedyand payable, and/or limit
it from making new investments. In addition, theAS&n revoke or suspend a license for willful ggerated violation of, or
willful or repeated failure to observe, any prowisiof the Small Business Investment Act of 1958my rule or regulation
promulgated thereunder. These actions by the SBéldym turn, negatively affect us because our SBUGsidiary is our
wholly-owned subsidiary.

Our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiary may be unable t@ke distributions to us that will enable us to ma#in RIC status,
which could result in the imposition of an entityelel tax.

In order for us to continue to qualify for RIC taratment and to minimize corporate-level taxesaveerequired to
distribute substantially all of our net taxablednee and net capital gain income, including incorenfcertain of our
subsidiaries, which includes the income from outGBubsidiary. We are partially dependent on oulGS&ubsidiary for cash
distributions to enable us to meet the RIC distidyurequirements. Our SBIC subsidiary may be kaiiby the Small Business
Investment Act of 1958, and SBA regulations gouwagrSBICs, from making certain distributions to khattmay be necessary to
maintain our status as a RIC. We may have to reguesiver of the SBA’s restrictions for our SBIGbsidiary to make certain
distributions to maintain our RIC status. We carassture you that the SBA will grant such waiver #émodir SBIC subsidiary is
unable to obtain a waiver, compliance with the SBgulations may result in loss of RIC tax treatnmam a consequent
imposition of an entity-level tax on us.

Pending legislation may allow us to incur additiohkeverage.

As a business development company under the 194Quicare generally not permitted to incur indebtss unless
immediately after such borrowing we have an assetrage for total borrowings of at least 200% (tfee amount of debt may
not exceed 50% of the value of our assets). Lagislantroduced in the U.S. House of Representatimghe last Congress
would have modified this section of the 1940 Aatl &mcreased the amount of debt that business dawelot companies may
incur by modifying the percentage from 200% to 15@%a result, we may be able to incur additiondkebtedness in the
future and therefore your risk of an investmermtammon stock may increase.

Our board of directors is authorized to reclasstyy unissued shares of common stock into one or enolasses of preferred
stock, which could convey special rights and pragkes to its owners.

Under Maryland General Corporation Law and our teraour board of directors is authorized to clgsand reclassify any
authorized but unissued shares of stock into omeave classes of stock, including preferred stéelar to issuance of shares of
each class or series, the board of directors willdguired by Maryland law and our charter to Betterms, preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, reswits, limitations as to stockholder distributiogsalifications and terms or
conditions of redemption for each class or sefiésis, the board of directors could authorize tBaasice of shares of preferred
stock with terms and conditions which could haweéffect of delaying, deferring or preventing ang@ction or a change in
control that might involve a premium price for hetd of our common stock or that otherwise mighinbéeir best interest. The
cost of any such reclassification would be born@iycommon stockholders. Certain matters undet#4® Act require the
separate vote of the holders of any issued andamdting preferred stock. For example, the 1940phovides that holders of
preferred stock are entitled to vote separateljnfrmlders of common stock to elect two preferredlstirectors. We currently
have no plans to issue preferred stock. The isguahpreferred shares convertible into shares pfraon stock may also
reduce the net income and net asset value per shaur common stock upon conversion, provided, weawill only be
permitted to issue such convertible preferred stodke extent we comply with the requirements @ftidn 61 of the 1940 Act,
including obtaining common stockholder approvale3é effects, among others, could have an advedess eh your
investment in our common stock.
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Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Laand of our charter and bylaws could deter takeowgtempts and have
an adverse impact on the price of our common stock.

The Maryland General Corporation Law and our cliatel bylaws contain provisions that may discourdgéay or make
more difficult a change in control of Stellus Capinvestment Corporation or the removal of ouediors. We are subject to
the Maryland Business Combination Act, subjectrty applicable requirements of the 1940 Act. Ourrtiad directors has
adopted a resolution exempting from the Businegslfiimation Act any business combination betweennasaay other person,
subject to prior approval of such business comhnaty our board of directors, including approvglebmajority of our
independent directors. If the resolution exempbinginess combinations is repealed or our boarditreftdrs does not approve a
business combination, the Business Combinatiom#est discourage third parties from trying to acqueioatrol of us and
increase the difficulty of consummating such arifOur bylaws exempt from the Maryland Control i@hacquisition Act
acquisitions of our stock by any person. If we adheur bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Gadr&hare Acquisition
Act, the Control Share Acquisition Act also may matkmore difficult for a third party to obtain dwal of us and increase the
difficulty of consummating such a transaction.

We have also adopted measures that may makeidutiiffor a third party to obtain control of usclnding provisions of our
charter classifying our board of directors in thekgesses serving staggered three-year terms, @ahdraaing our board of
directors to classify or reclassify shares of dack in one or more classes or series, to causistsbance of additional shares of
our stock, to amend our charter without stockholgmsroval and to increase or decrease the numistranés of stock that we
have authority to issue. These provisions, as agetither provisions of our charter and bylaws, delgy, defer or prevent a
transaction or a change in control that might atliee be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Stellus Capital Management can resign as our invasint adviser or administrator upon 60 days’ notiard we may not be
able to find a suitable replacement within that tenor at all, resulting in a disruption in our opetions that could adversely
affect our financial condition, business and resalbf operations.

Stellus Capital Management has the right undemibestment advisory agreement to resign as ouisinvent adviser at any
time upon 60 days’ written notice, whether we héotend a replacement or not. Similarly, Stellus @algflanagement has the
right under the administration agreement to resigany time upon 60 days’ written notice, whetherhave found a
replacement or not. If Stellus Capital Managemean ¥ resign, we may not be able to find a newstwent adviser or
administrator or hire internal management with Eméxpertise and ability to provide the same arieglent services on
acceptable terms within 60 days, or at all. If we @nable to do so quickly, our operations ardyike experience a disruption,
our financial condition, business and results afrafions as well as our ability to pay distribudo our stockholders are likely
to be adversely affected and the market price obbares may decline. In addition, the coordinatibaur internal
management and investment or administrative aiethyins applicable, is likely to suffer if we areable to identify and reach an
agreement with a single institution or group of@xeses having the expertise possessed by Stedpgal Management. Even
if we are able to retain comparable managementthehénternal or external, the integration of sutdinagement and their lack
of familiarity with our investment objective maysrdt in additional costs and time delays that ndweasely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.

We are highly dependent on information systems aydtems failures could significantly disrupt our bimess, which may, in
turn, negatively affect the market price of our conon stock and our ability to make distributions ¢ar stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on the commupicgatnd information systems of Stellus Capital Mgemaent. In
addition, certain of these systems are providestétlus Capital Management by third party servieevigers. Any failure or
interruption of such systems, including as a residhe termination of an agreement with any sinifdtparty service provider,
could cause delays or other problems in our a@#ifThis, in turn, could have a material adveffeceon our operating results
and negatively affect the market price of our commtwck and our ability to make distributions ta stockholders.
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The current state of the economy and financial matk increases the likelihood of adverse effectsooin financial position
and results of operations.

The broader economic fundamentals of the UniteteStaconomy remain uncertain. Unemployment le\estsain elevated
and other economic fundamentals remain depresséke levent that the United States economic pedoom contracts, it is
likely that the financial results of middle mark&tmpanies, like those in which we invest, couldezignce deterioration or
limited growth, which could ultimately lead to dd@ity in meeting their debt service requirememntd an increase in defaults.
Consequently, we can provide no assurance thaetfiermance of certain of our portfolio companiel mot be negatively
impacted by economic or other conditions, whichld@lso have a negative impact on our future result

The current worldwide financial market situatios,veell as various social and political tensionghie United States and
around the world, may continue to contribute taoéased market volatility, may have long-term eem the United States and
worldwide financial markets, and may cause furge@nomic uncertainties or deterioration in the ahiBtates and worldwide.
Since 2010, several European Union (“EU”) countriesluding Greece, Ireland, Italy, Spain, and bgal, have faced budget
issues, some of which may have negative long-téfects for the economies of those countries androtJ countries. There is
continued concern about national-level supporttierEuro and the accompanying coordination of fiand wage policy
among European Economic and Monetary Union memdoantdes. In addition, the fiscal policy of foreigations, such as
China, may have a severe impact on the worldwidelamited States financial markets. Moreover, ttegeeconcerns that the
recent economic slowdown in China could have atimganpact on markets throughout the world. Wendbknow how long
the financial markets will continue to be affectgdthese events and cannot predict the effectsesiet or similar events in the
future on the United States economy and securit@ets or on our investments. We monitor develaogismand seek to
manage our investments in a manner consistentaghfeving our investment objective, but there camd assurance that we
will be successful in doing so.

Risks Related to our Investments

Economic recessions or downturns could impair ousrtfolio companies, which would harm our operatingsults.

Many of the portfolio companies in which we makegd &xpect to make, investments, including thoseeetily included in
our portfolio, are likely to be susceptible to ecoric slowdowns or recessions and may be unablep@yrour loans during
such periods. Therefore, the number of our noneperihg assets are likely to increase and the vaflwair portfolio is likely to
decrease during such periods. Adverse economidtgmmglmay decrease the value of collateral segusome of our loans and
debt securities and the value of our equity investis. Economic slowdowns or recessions could ledidancial losses in our
portfolio and a decrease in revenues, net incordeaasets. Unfavorable economic conditions alsodcimgkease our funding
costs, limit our access to the capital marketsesult in a decision by lenders not to extend credits. These events could
prevent us from increasing our investments and lemoperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other isnctuld lead to
defaults and, potentially, termination of its loamal foreclosure on its assets, which could triggess-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize our portfolio comparnlyiliyato meet its obligations under the loans aedbt securities that we
hold. We may incur expenses to the extent necessasek recovery upon default or to negotiate ems with a defaulting
portfolio company. In addition, lenders in certaases can be subject to lender liability claimsafdions taken by them when
they become too involved in the borrower’s busir@saxercise control over a borrower. It is possiblat we could become
subject to a lender’s liability claim, including asesult of actions taken if we render significar@nagerial assistance to the
borrower. Furthermore, if one of our portfolio coamges were to file for bankruptcy protection, akvaptcy court might re-
characterize our debt holding and subordinateradl portion of our claim to claims of other cred#oeven though we may have
structured our investment as senior secured déletlikelihood of such a re-characterization woutghehd on the facts and
circumstances, including the extent to which wevigled managerial assistance to that portfolio campa
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Our investments in leveraged portfolio companiesyntze risky, and we could lose all or part of ouniestment.

Investment in leveraged companies involves a nurabsignificant risks. Leveraged companies in whighinvest may
have limited financial resources and may be untbiaeet their obligations under their loans and deburities that we hold.
Such developments may be accompanied by a det@sioia the value of any collateral and a reduciiothe likelihood of our
realizing any guarantees that we may have obtamednnection with our investment. Smaller levethgempanies also may
have less predictable operating results and mayinreequbstantial additional capital to support tlogierations, finance their
expansion or maintain their competitive position.

We may hold the loans and debt securities of leyg@ companies that may, due to the significant agiarg volatility typical
of such companies, enter into bankruptcy proceeding

Leveraged companies may experience bankruptcyrolasifinancial distress. The bankruptcy processdaumber of
significant inherent risks. Many events in a bapkey proceeding are the product of contested nsatted adversary
proceedings and are beyond the control of the tmediA bankruptcy filing by a portfolio company ynadversely and
permanently affect that company. If the proceedngpnverted to a liquidation, the value of thetfmdio company may not
equal the liquidation value that was believed tisteat the time of the investment. The duratioa dankruptcy proceeding is
also difficult to predict, and a creditor’s retwn investment can be adversely affected by delatisthe plan of reorganization
or liquidation ultimately becomes effective. Tharadistrative costs in connection with a bankrugtegceeding are frequently
high and would be paid out of the debtor’s estaitar oo any return to creditors. Because the stedglfor classification of
claims under bankruptcy law are vague, our infleawih respect to the class of securities or otiinéigations we own may be
lost by increases in the number and amount of damthe same class or by different classificatiod treatment. In the early
stages of the bankruptcy process, it is oftendiffito estimate the extent of, or even to identfiyy contingent claims that
might be made. In addition, certain claims thatehpsiority by law (for example, claims for taxesayrbe substantial.

Our investments in private and middle-market poittocompanies are risky, and we could lose all @arpof our investment.

Investment in private and middle-market companieslves a number of significant risks. Generaliyiel public
information exists about these companies, and Weorethe ability of Stellus Capital Managementigéstment professionals
to obtain adequate information to evaluate therg@kreturns from investing in these companiesvéfare unable to uncover
all material information about these companiesnves not make a fully informed investment decisiamg we may lose money
on our investments. Middle-market companies maHiavited financial resources and may be unablaget their obligations
under their loans and debt securities that we waldch may be accompanied by a deterioration invdiae of any collateral
and a reduction in the likelihood of our realizizngy guarantees we may have obtained in connecitbrowr investment. In
addition, such companies typically have shorterafireg histories, narrower product lines and smatlarket shares than larger
businesses, which tend to render them more vultestalzompetitors’ actions and market conditiorsswell as general
economic downturns. Additionally, middle-market quamies are more likely to depend on the managetaksmits and efforts
of a small group of persons. Therefore, the dediffability, resignation or termination of one ormmof these persons could
have a material adverse impact on one or moreegpdintfolio companies we invest in and, in turnusnMiddle-market
companies also may be parties to litigation and breagngaged in rapidly changing businesses wittiymts subject to a
substantial risk of obsolescence. In addition,exacutive officers, directors and investment adwvisay, in the ordinary course
of business, be named as defendants in litigatising from our investments in portfolio companies.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advety affect our business.

Most of our assets are invested in illiquid loand aecurities, and a substantial portion of ouestments in leveraged
companies are subject to legal and other restnistan resale or are otherwise less liquid than roayadly traded public
securities. The illiquidity of these investmentsynmaake it difficult for
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us to sell such investments if the need ariseadtition, if we are required to liquidate all opartion of our portfolio quickly,
we may realize significantly less than the valua/aith we have previously recorded our investmehiliso, as noted above, we
may be limited or prohibited in our ability to sell otherwise exit certain positions in our poitichs such a transaction could
be considered a joint transaction prohibited by1®40 Act.

Price declines and illiquidity in the corporate detmarkets may adversely affect the fair value ofrquortfolio investments,
reducing our net asset value through increased netealized depreciation.

As a business development company, we are requgireary our investments at market value or, ifmarket value is
ascertainable, at fair value as determined in daitkd by our board of directors. As part of theuation process, we may take
into account the following types of factors, ifeeant, in determining the fair value of our investits:

« available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction avatges;
« applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

e call protection provisions;

e information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

« the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits,earnings and discounted cash flows and thé&eteam which it
does business;

e comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a
< the principal market and enterprise values.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcwe use the pricing
indicated by the external event to corroboratevaluation. We record decreases in the market valuéar values of our
investments as unrealized depreciation. Declingsiges and liquidity in the corporate debt markatsy result in significant
net unrealized depreciation in our portfolio. Thieet of all of these factors on our portfolio maduce our net asset value by
increasing net unrealized depreciation in our pticf Depending on market conditions, we could ingwbstantial realized
losses and may suffer additional unrealized loss&sgure periods, which could have a material adgeffect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cieivs.

We are a non-diversified investment company witliie meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we am himited with
respect to the proportion of our assets that mayimeested in securities of a single issuer.

We are classified as a non-diversified investmemgany within the meaning of the 1940 Act, whichamethat we are not
limited by the 1940 Act with respect to the promortof our assets that we may invest in securifes single issuer. Beyond
the asset diversification requirements associafddour qualification as a RIC under the Code, wendt have fixed guidelines
for diversification. To the extent that we assuargé positions in the securities of a small nundféssuers or our investments
are concentrated in relatively few industries, et asset value may fluctuate to a greater exant that of a diversified
investment company as a result of changes in ttamfiial condition or the market's assessment ofsthger. We may also be
more susceptible to any single economic or regoladocurrence than a diversified investment company
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Our failure to make follow-on investments in our pifolio companies could impair the value of our pifolio.

Following an initial investment in a portfolio compy, we may make additional investments in thatfplas company as
“follow-on” investments, in seeking to:

* increase or maintain in whole or in part our positas a creditor or equity ownership percentageportfolio company
e exercise warrants, options or convertible seiasrithat were acquired in the original or subsetfirancing; or
e preserve or enhance the value of our investment.

We have discretion to make follow-on investmentbjact to the availability of capital resourcesilii@ on our part to
make follow-on investments may, in some circumstangeopardize the continued viability of a poiialompany and our
initial investment, or may result in a missed oppioity for us to increase our participation in @asessful operation. Even if we
have sufficient capital to make a desired followhovrestment, we may elect not to make a follow+orestment because we
may not want to increase our level of risk, becauserefer other opportunities or because we dibited by compliance with
business development company requirements of @ A8t or the desire to maintain our qualificatema RIC. Our ability to
make follow-on investments may also be limited Igll8s Capital Management'’s allocation policy.

Because we generally do not hold controlling equittiyerests in our portfolio companies, we may na &ble to exercise
control over our portfolio companies or to preveticisions by management of our portfolio companibat could decrease
the value of our investments.

We do not hold controlling equity positions in asfithe portfolio companies included in our portfoéind, although we may
do so in the future, we do not currently intendhddd controlling equity positions in our portfolemmpanies (including those
included in our portfolio). As a result, we are jgab to the risk that a portfolio company may maksiness decisions with
which we disagree, and that the management anckiolders of a portfolio company may take risketherwise act in ways
that are adverse to our interests. Due to thedétiguidity of the debt and equity investmentsttte hold in our portfolio
companies, we may not be able to dispose of owsinvents in the event we disagree with the actibasportfolio company
and may therefore suffer a decrease in the vale@eioinvestments.

Defaults by our portfolio companies will harm ourperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other isnctuld lead to
defaults and, potentially, termination of its loamsl foreclosure on its assets. This could triggess-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize such portfolio compaatyily to meet its obligations under the loangiebt or equity securities
that we hold. We may incur expenses to the extecgéssary to seek recovery upon default or to reigatiew terms, which
may include the waiver of certain financial covetsawith a defaulting portfolio company.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portialbompanies could adversely impact our results pémtions and ability
to make stockholder distributions and result in &adine in the market price of our shares.

We are subject to the risk that the debt investmest make in our portfolio companies may be repaiar to maturity. We
expect that our investments will generally allow fepayment at any time subject to certain persalti¢hen this occurs, we
intend to generally reinvest these proceeds in tearg investments, pending their future investnier@ccordance with our
investment strategy. These temporary investmentsypically have substantially lower yields tharetdebt being prepaid, and
we could experience significant delays in reinvesthese amounts. Any future investment may alsat b@ver yields than the
debt that was repaid. As a result, our resultspefations could be materially adversely affecteshié or more of our portfolio
companies elects to prepay amounts owed to ustidddily, prepayments could negatively impact obitity to make, or the
amount of, stockholder distributions with respecotir common stock, which could result in a decliimthe market price of our
shares.
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Uncertainty relating to the LIBOR calculation proes may adversely affect the value of our portfadibthe LIBOR-indexed,
floating-rate debt securities.

Concerns have been publicized that some of the raebrdnks surveyed by the British Bankers’ Assooigtor BBA, in
connection with the calculation of LIBOR acrossage of maturities and currencies may have beeartnegorting or
otherwise manipulating the inter-bank lending igtplicable to them in order to profit on their datives positions or to avoid
an appearance of capital insufficiency or adveepaitational or other consequences that may hauéieddrom reporting inter-
bank lending rates higher than those they actsalbmitted. A number of BBA member banks have edter® settlements
with their regulators and law enforcement agenwidls respect to alleged manipulation of LIBOR, andestigations and
reviews of the framework for the setting of LIBOR tegulators and governmental authorities in vegipuisdictions are
ongoing. In this regard, the administration of LIB@& now the responsibility of NYSE Euronext Ratebninistration Limited.

Actions by the LIBOR Administrator, regulators aml enforcement agencies may result in changestm#nner in which
LIBOR is determined. Uncertainty as to the natursuzh potential changes may adversely affect taeket for LIBOR-based
securities, including our portfolio of LIBOR-indedgfloating-rate debt securities. In addition, &mther changes or reforms to
the determination or supervision of LIBOR may régula sudden or prolonged increase or decreasported LIBOR, which
could have an adverse impact on the market for IRHfased securities or the value of our portfolit EFOR-indexed,
floating-rate debt securities.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that rankgually with, or senior to, our investments in sucdompanies.

We invest a portion of our capital in second liex aubordinated loans issued by our portfolio camgsa The portfolio
companies usually have, or may be permitted torjrather debt that ranks equally with, or senigithe loans in which we
invest. By their terms, such debt instruments mayide that the holders are entitled to receivenpayt of interest or principal
on or before the dates on which we are entitle@t¢eive payments in respect of the loans in whiehrwest. Also, in the event
of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorgartina or bankruptcy of a portfolio company, holdefglebt instruments ranking
senior to our investment in that portfolio compavguld typically be entitled to receive paymentuti before we receive any
distribution in respect of our investment. Aftepaging senior creditors, a portfolio company mayrave any remaining assets
to use for repaying its obligation to us. In theecaf debt ranking equally with loans in which wedst, we would have to share
any distributions on an equal and ratable basis atther creditors holding such debt in the everaroinsolvency, liquidation,
dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of thievant portfolio company.

Additionally, certain loans that we make to poitiaitompanies may be secured on a second priordig by the same
collateral securing senior secured debt of suchpemnes. The first priority liens on the collaterall secure the portfolio
company’s obligations under any outstanding seshétit and may secure certain other future debtntiagtbe permitted to be
incurred by the portfolio company under the agregmsgoverning the loans. The holders of obligatieesured by first priority
liens on the collateral will generally control thiguidation of, and be entitled to receive procefdm, any realization of the
collateral to repay their obligations in full bedaus. In addition, the value of the collaterallia event of liquidation will depend
on market and economic conditions, the availabditpuyers and other factors. There can be no assarthat the proceeds, if
any, from sales of all of the collateral would béfigient to satisfy the loan obligations securgttte second priority liens after
payment in full of all obligations secured by tlvstfpriority liens on the collateral. If such pemxls were not sufficient to repay
amounts outstanding under the loan obligationsre€edoy the second priority liens, then we, to tkieet not repaid from the
proceeds of the sale of the collateral, will onyvé an unsecured claim against the portfolio colyipaemaining assets, if any.

We may also make unsecured loans to portfolio comegameaning that such loans will not benefit framy interest in
collateral of such companies. Liens on such paafcbmpanies’ collateral, if any, will secure thertfolio company’s
obligations under its outstanding secured debtraayg secure certain future debt that is permittdoetincurred by the portfolio
company under its secured loan agreements. Theiisobd
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obligations secured by such liens will generallptcol the liquidation of, and be entitled to re@roceeds from, any
realization of such collateral to repay their obtigns in full before us. In addition, the valuesath collateral in the event of
liquidation will depend on market and economic dbads, the availability of buyers and other fastoFhere can be no
assurance that the proceeds, if any, from saleadaif collateral would be sufficient to satisfy omsecured loan obligations
after payment in full of all secured loan obligatio If such proceeds were not sufficient to repeydutstanding secured loan
obligations, then our unsecured claims would ragkatly with the unpaid portion of such secured itoed’ claims against the
portfolio company’s remaining assets, if any.

The rights we may have with respect to the colidteecuring the loans we make to our portfolio canigs with senior debt
outstanding may also be limited pursuant to thesenf one or more intercreditor agreements tha¢mter into with the holders
of such senior debt. Under a typical intercreditgreement, at any time that obligations that hagebenefit of the first priority
liens are outstanding, any of the following actitimst may be taken in respect of the collaterdl vélat the direction of the
holders of the obligations secured by the firsoty liens:

< the ability to cause the commencement of enfomrgmroceedings against the collateral;
< the ability to control the conduct of such pradiegs;

< the approval of amendments to collateral docusjent

» releases of liens on the collateral; and

e waivers of past defaults under collateral docursien

We may not have the ability to control or directisactions, even if our rights are adversely afféct

If we make subordinated investments, the obligordtte portfolio companies may not generate suffistecash flow to service
their debt obligations to us.

We may make subordinated investments that rankabetber obligations of the obligor in right of pagmnt. Subordinated
investments are subject to greater risk of detaalh senior obligations as a result of adversegdsim the financial condition
of the obligor or economic conditions in generfilvé make a subordinated investment in a portfolimpany, the portfolio
company may be highly leveraged, and its relatididjn debt-to-equity ratio may create increasekbribat its operations might
not generate sufficient cash flow to service alit®tebt obligations.

The disposition of our investments may result inntimgent liabilities.

Substantially all of our investments involve loam&l private securities. In connection with the d&sfion of an investment
in loans and private securities, we may be requivadake representations about the business aanciis affairs of the
portfolio company typical of those made in connattivith the sale of a business. We may also beinexjto indemnify the
purchasers of such investment to the extent thasach representations turn out to be inaccuratétbrrespect to potential
liabilities. These arrangements may result in cayent liabilities that ultimately result in fundimdpligations that we must
satisfy through our return of distributions prevsumade to us.

We may not realize gains from our equity investment

When we invest in loans and debt securities, we acgyire warrants or other equity securities offptio companies as
well. We may also invest in equity securities dilyecTo the extent we hold equity investments, wk attempt to dispose of
them and realize gains upon our disposition of thdowever, the equity interests we receive mayapptreciate in value and,
may decline in value. As a result, we may not He sbrealize gains from our equity interests, anygl gains that we do realize
on the disposition of any equity interests maybw®sufficient to offset any other losses we expeege
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Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

Shares of closed-end investment companies, inclgdiusiness development companies, frequently tratde discount from
their net asset value.

Shares of closed-end investment companies, indudiisiness development companies, frequently tadediscount from
their net asset value. This characteristic of desed investment companies is separate and di$tomtthe risk that our net
asset value per share of common stock may detMeecannot predict whether our common stock williérat, above or below
net asset value. On July 7, 2014, our stockholdetesd to allow us to issue common stock at a grelew net asset value per
share for the period ending on the earlier of the year anniversary of the date of the CompanylgtZthnual Meeting of
Stockholders and the date of the Company’s 2015uAhMeeting of Stockholders, which is expectedeadbld in June 2015.
Our stockholders did not specify a maximum discdgiow net asset value at which we are able teissm common stock,
although the number of shares sold in each offeriag not exceed 25% of our outstanding common stookediately prior to
such sale. In addition, we cannot issue sharesroé@mmon stock below net asset value unless candbaf directors
determines that it would be in our and our stocttard’ best interests to do so. Sales of commork stoprices below net asset
value per share dilute the interests of existiogldtolders, have the effect of reducing our ne¢tagaslue per share and may
reduce our market price per share. In additiontiooous sales of common stock below net asset valyehave a negative
impact on total returns and could have a negathpact on the market price of our shares of comnbacks

There is a risk that you may not receive distribortis or that our distributions may not grow over tévand a portion of our
distributions may be a return of capital.

We intend to make distributions on a monthly bésisur stockholders out of assets legally availdelistribution (i.e.,
not subject to any legal restrictions under Margllé&aw on the distribution thereof). We cannot assuou that we will achieve
investment results that will allow us to make acéiped level of cash distributions or year-to-y@aereases in cash distributions.
Our ability to pay distributions might be adversaffected by the impact of one or more of the fadtors described in this
annual report on Form 10-K. Due to the asset coeetest applicable to us under the 1940 Act assabss development
company, we may be limited in our ability to makstigbutions. In addition, for so long as the Ctdehcility, or any other
borrowing facility that we enter into, is outstangj we anticipate that we may be required by itsi$eto use all payments of
interest and principal that we receive from ourent investments as well as any proceeds recereed the sale of our current
investments to repay amounts outstanding thereundiéch could adversely affect our ability to malkistributions.

When we make distributions, we will be requiredl&dermine the extent to which such distributioresgzaid out of current
or accumulated earnings and profits. Distributimnexcess of current and accumulated earnings sofidspwill be treated as a
non-taxable return of capital to the extent ofrarestor’s basis in our stock and, assuming thamastor holds our stock as a
capital asset, thereafter as a capital gain.

Stockholders may experience dilution in their owiship percentage if they do not participate in ouwitlend reinvestment
plan.

All distributions declared in cash payable to stamlklers that are participants in our dividend restment plan are
generally automatically reinvested in shares ofammmon stock. As a result, stockholders that dgadicipate in the
dividend reinvestment plan may experience dilutwar time. Stockholders who receive distributiamshares of common
stock may experience accretion to the net asseé@ltheir shares if our shares are trading aemjm and dilution if our
shares are trading at a discount. The level ofedicer or discount would depend on various factmiduding the proportion of
our stockholders who participate in the plan, thesl of premium or discount at which our sharesti@ging and the amount of
the distribution payable to a stockholder.

Our shares might trade at premiums that are unsustble or at discounts from net asset value.

Shares of business development companies like ysduang some periods, trade at prices higher thaim net asset value
per share and, during other periods, as frequestiyrs with closed-end investment companies, taageices lower than their
net asset value per share. The perceived valuerohwestment
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portfolio may be affected by a number of factoduding perceived prospects for individual companie invest in, market
conditions for common stock generally, for initialblic offerings and other exit events for ventoaital backed companies,
and the mix of companies in our investment portfolver time. Negative or unforeseen developmerfiéstifig the perceived
value of companies in our investment portfolio cbrdsult in a decline in the trading price of oamnon stock relative to our
net asset value per share.

The possibility that our shares will trade at acdimt from net asset value or at premiums thatiaseistainable are risks
separate and distinct from the risk that our neétgalue per share will decrease. The risk oftpasing shares of a business
development company that might trade at a discountsustainable premium is more pronounced fagstors who wish to
sell their shares in a relatively short periodiofet because, for those investors, realizationgdia or loss on their investments
is likely to be more dependent upon changes in prenor discount levels than upon increases or dse®in net asset value
per share.

Investing in our securities may involve an aboveeagge degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursiimrent objective may result in a higher amounisi, rand higher
volatility or loss of principal, than alternativeviestment options. Our investments in portfolio pames may be speculative
and, therefore, an investment in our securities nwbe suitable for someone with lower risk tohee

The market price of our securities may fluctuateggificantly.

The market price and liquidity of the market for securities may be significantly affected by nuouwsrfactors, some of
which are beyond our control and may not be diyeetlated to our operating performance. These faételude:

» significant volatility in the market price andtling volume of securities of business developroentpanies or other
companies in our sector, which is not necessaglted to the operating performance of these coiapan

» changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelirggticularly with respect to RICs, business deprient companies and
SBICs;

* loss of our qualification as a RIC or businesgali@ment company or the status of our SBIC subsjdis a SBIC;

» changes in earnings or variations in operatisglts;

« changes in the value of our portfolio of investise

< changes in accounting guidelines governing vanaif our investments;

< any shortfall in revenue or net income or anyéase in losses from levels expected by investossaurities analysts;
e departure of Stellus Capital Management’s kepqeanel;

e operating performance of companies comparahbls;iand

e general economic trends and other external factor

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stockynieve an adverse effect on the market price of oammon stock.

As of December 31, 2014 we had 12,479,962 sharesmimon stock outstanding. On December 12, 20 ASHC
declared effective our shelf registration statentenForm N-2 (File No. 333-189938), allowing usofter, from time to time,
up to $300 million worth of our common stock, preéel stock, subscription rights, debt securitiesyarrants representing
rights to purchase shares of our common stockepesf stock or debt securities on terms to be ahéted at the time of the
offering. Sales of substantial amounts of our comstock, or the availability of shares for saleyldeadversely affect the
prevailing market price of our common stock. Ifstbiccurs and continues, it could impair our abtiityaise additional capital
through the sale of equity securities should wéredes do so.
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Risks Relating to Our Debt Securities

The Notes are unsecured and therefore are effedyiv@ibordinated to any secured indebtedness we hiagerred or may
incur in the future.

The Notes are not and will not be secured by arguofassets or any of the assets of any futurddiabies and rank equally
in right of payment of our future unsubordinatedsecured senior indebtedness. As a result, thesNwgeeffectively
subordinated to any secured indebtedness we @utisidiaries have incurred and may incur in ther&ufor any indebtedness
that is initially unsecured to which we subsequegthnt security) to the extent of the value ofdlssets securing such
indebtedness. In any liquidation, dissolution, brapkcy or other similar proceeding, the holdersuy of our existing or future
secured indebtedness and the secured indebtedresg foture subsidiaries may assert rights agdiresaissets pledged to
secure that indebtedness in order to receive &ylhpent of their indebtedness before the assetdmaged to pay other
creditors, including the holders of the Notes. A®ecember 31, 2014 we had $106.5 million outstagdinder the Credit
Facility. The indebtedness under the Credit Fadtiteffectively senior to the Notes to the extefithe value of the assets
securing such indebtedness.

The Notes are structurally subordinated to the inidedness and other liabilities of any future subsides.

The Notes are obligations exclusively of Stellupiz Investment Corporation and not of our sulzsidis. None of our
subsidiaries are or will be a guarantor of the Nated the Notes are not required to be guaranteadypsubsidiaries we may
acquire or create in the future. Except to therexiee are a creditor with recognized claims agaistsubsidiaries, all claims
of creditors of our subsidiaries will have priorilyer our equity interests in such subsidiariesl therefore the claims of our
creditors, including holders of the Notes) withpest to the assets of such subsidiaries. Even dne@ecognized as a creditor
of one or more of our subsidiaries, our claims watlll be effectively subordinated to any secunitierests in the assets of any
such subsidiary and to any indebtedness or othleitities of any such subsidiary senior to ourralsi Consequently, the Notes
are structurally subordinated to all indebtednesdiiding any future SBA-guaranteed debentures,aher liabilities of any of
our subsidiaries and any subsidiaries that we malye future acquire or establish. In addition, swinsidiaries may incur
substantial additional indebtedness in the futallegf which would be structurally senior to theti¥s.

The indenture under which the Notes is issued cantalimited protection for holders of the Notes.

The indenture under which the Notes is issued sfferited protection to holders of the Notes. Téwerts of the indenture
and the Notes do not restrict our or any of oussaliliries’ ability to engage in, or otherwise bgaaty to, a variety of corporate
transactions, circumstances or events that could ha adverse impact on your investment in the §ldteparticular, the terms
of the indenture and the Notes do not place artyicgsns on our or our subsidiaries’ ability to:

e issue securities or otherwise incur additiondeintedness or other obligations, including (1) imagbtedness or other
obligations that would be equal in right of paymenthe Notes, (2) any indebtedness or other ofitiga that would be
secured and therefore rank effectively seniorghtrbf payment to the Notes to the extent of tHae&of the assets
securing such debt, (3) indebtedness of ours shgiaranteed by one or more of our subsidiariesadmich therefore is
structurally senior to the Notes and (4) securitiedebtedness or obligations issued or incurredsysubsidiaries or
that would be senior to our equity interests irsthentities and therefore rank structurally settidhe Notes with
respect to the assets of our subsidiaries, in eash other than an incurrence of indebtednesser obligation that
would cause a violation of Section 18(a)(1)(A) axdified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act or augcessor
provisions, whether or not we continue to be sulfesuch provisions of the 1940 Act, but givinéeef, in each case,
to any exemptive relief granted to us by the SE@ré&htly, these provisions generally prohibit wnfrmaking
additional borrowings, including through the issceof additional debt or the sale of additionaltdszurities, unless
our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Actlsa least 200% after such borrowings;

e pay dividends on, or purchase or redeem or makgayments in respect of, capital stock or otleeusties ranking
junior in right of payment to the Notes, includisgbordinated indebtedness.
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each case other than dividends, purchases, rederapii payments that would cause a violation ofi&ed8(a)(1)(B)
as modified by (i) Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Actiny successor provisions and (ii) the excepirforth below,
despite the fact that we are not currently suligsuch provisions of the 1940 Act in connectiothwhe offer and sale
of the Notes, except that we will be permitted écldre a cash dividend or distribution notwithstagdhe prohibition
contained in Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified bytec61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act, but only up to sahount as is
necessary in order for us to maintain our status r@gulated investment company under Subchapiefrthk Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 and, provided that, any stathilgtion will not apply until such time as oursas coverage has
been below the minimum asset coverage requiredipntgo clause (i) above for more than six conseeumonths. If
Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(afifithe 1940 Act were currently applicable to us@mnection with
this offering, these provisions would generallyhpbit us from declaring any cash dividend or dmition upon any
class of our capital stock, or purchasing any suagiital stock if our asset coverage, as defingderl940 Act, were
below 200% at the time of the declaration of thed#ind or distribution or the purchase and aftetudting the amount
of such dividend, distribution or purchase;

« sell assets (other than certain limited restyiitgion our ability to consolidate, merge or sélbakubstantially all of our
assets);

e enter into transactions with affiliates;

e create liens (including liens on the shares afsalpsidiaries) or enter into sale and leasebariséctions;
* make investments; or

e create restrictions on the payment of dividendstber amounts to us from our subsidiaries.

In addition, the indenture does not require usfferdo purchase the Notes in connection with angesof control or any
other event.

Furthermore, the terms of the indenture and thedldb not protect holders of the Notes in the etrettwe experience
changes (including significant adverse changes)irfinancial condition, results of operations cedit ratings, as they do not
require that we or our subsidiaries adhere to ammntial tests or ratios or specified levels ofwetth, revenues, income, cash
flow, or liquidity.

Our ability to recapitalize, incur additional detitd take a number of other actions that are ndtdahby the terms of the
Notes may have important consequences for holderedNotes, including making it more difficult fos to satisfy our
obligations with respect to the Notes or negatiadfgcting the trading value of the Notes.

Other debt we issue or incur in the future couldtam more protections for its holders than theeimtdre and the Notes,
including additional covenants and events of déf&dr example, the indenture under which the Nistéssued does not
contain cross-default provisions that are containgtie Credit Facility. The issuance or incurrentany such debt with
incremental protections could affect the marketdfiod trading levels and prices of the Notes.

An active trading market for the Notes may not diagg which could limit the market price of the NageMoreover, the Notes
are not expected to be rated, which may subjectrthie greater volatility than rated notes and pauiarly, greater than
similar securities with an investment grade rating.

Although we have listed the Notes on the NYSE unkersymbol “SCQ,” we cannot provide any assuratitasan active
trading market will develop or be maintained foe totes. The Notes are not rated which would imfret trading and
subject them to greater price volatility. To theesm they are rated and received a non-investnrategrating, their price and
trading activity could be negatively impacted. Marer, if a rating agency assigns the Notes a neesiment grade rating, the
Notes may be subject to greater price volatiligrtisecurities of similar maturity without such anfiovestment grade rating.
Certain of the underwriters have advised us that thtend to make a market in the Notes, but tiieynat obligated to do so.
The underwriters may discontinue any market-makintfpe Notes at any time at their sole
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e pay dividends on, or purchase or redeem or makgayments in respect of, capital stock or otleeusties ranking
junior in right of payment to the Notes, includisigbordinated indebtedness, in discretion. Accolgjnge canno
assure you that a liquid trading market will deyelor the Notes. To the extent an active tradingkeiadoes not
develop, the liquidity and trading price for thetBl® may be harmed.

We may choose to redeem the Notes when prevailiegréest rates are relatively low.

On or after April 30, 2016, we may choose to redéfeerNotes from time to time, especially when pilgvginterest rates
are lower than the rate borne by the Notes. If @ifing rates are lower at the time of redemptiaridars of the Notes may not
be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds im#acable security at an effective interest rathigls as the interest rate on the
Notes being redeemed. Our redemption right also adagrsely impact a Noteholder’s ability to se# thotes as the optional
redemption date or period approaches.

If we default on our obligations to pay our othendebtedness, we may not be able to make paymentsenotes.

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately $8 @6llion of indebtedness outstanding under thed@reacility. Any
default under the agreements governing our indeletes] including a default under the Credit Facditypther indebtedness to
which we may be a party that is not waived by #guired lenders, and the remedies sought by thereobf such indebtedness
could make us unable to pay principal, premiuraniy, and interest on the Notes and substantiattyedse the market value of
the Notes. If we are unable to generate suffiadash flow and are otherwise unable to obtain furetessary to meet required
payments of principal, premium, if any, and inté@s our indebtedness, or if we otherwise faildnply with the various
covenants, including financial and operating comgian the instruments governing our indebtediiestuding the Credit
Facility), we could be in default under the ternmish@ agreements governing such indebtednesselauwént of such default, the
holders of such indebtedness could elect to dealatke funds borrowed thereunder to be due aydlygea, together with
accrued and unpaid interest, the lenders undeCibeit Facility or other debt we may incur in thuture could elect to
terminate their commitments, cease making furtben$ and institute foreclosure proceedings agaimsassets, and we could
be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation. Our alyilio generate sufficient cash flow in the futusetd some extent, subject to
general economic, financial, competitive, legisiatand regulatory factors as well as other fadtumsare beyond our control.
We cannot assure you that our business will geaeah flow from operations, or that future bormys will be available to us
under the Credit Facility or otherwise, in an amaufficient to enable us to meet our payment @bilans under the Notes and
our other debt and to fund other liquidity needs.

If our operating performance declines and we atahl® to generate sufficient cash flow to sergaedebt obligations, we
may in the future need to refinance or restructwredebt, including any Notes sold, sell assetiijee or delay capital
investments, seek to raise additional capital ek $e obtain waivers from the required lenders urlde Credit Facility or other
debt that we may incur in the future to avoid bamgdefault. If we are unable to implement one arenof these alternatives,
we may not be able to meet our payment obligatiorer the Notes and our other debt. If we breacltowenants under the
Credit Facility or other debt and seek a waivermay not be able to obtain a waiver from the regfilenders. If this occurs,
we would be in default under the Credit Facilityotiner debt, the lenders could exercise their sigistdescribed above, and we
could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidationwé are unable to repay debt, lenders having seabightions could proceed
against the collateral securing the debt. Becaws€tedit Facility has, and any future credit fities will likely have,
customary cross-default provisions, if the indebtexs under the Notes, the Credit Facility or uragrfuture credit facility is
accelerated, we may be unable to repay or findmearmounts due.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other physicgbemes materially important to our operation. @eadquarters are
located at 4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2200, lday3texas. We also maintain an office in the Wagtain, D.C. area. All

locations are provided to us by Stellus Capital Mgament pursuant to the administration agreemeatb&lieve that our office
facilities are suitable and adequate for our bussires we contemplate conducting it.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We and Stellus Capital Management are not curresnibyect to any material legal proceedings, noouioknowledge, is
any material legal proceeding threatened againgtrasn time to time, we may be a party to certegal proceedings in the
ordinary course of business, including proceedmetgting to the enforcement of our rights undertts with our portfolio

companies. While the outcome of these legal prangsdannot be predicted with certainty, we doexqtect that these
proceedings will have a material effect upon ooaricial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stoc&Haxge under the symbol “SCM.” The following tabéts forth the
range of high and low sales prices of our commonksas reported on the New York Stock Exchangeéah fiscal quarter
since our IPO on November 8, 2012:

Price Range
High Low

Fiscal 2012

Fourth quarter (from November 8, 2012 through Ddoem31, 2012) $ 18.21 $ 14.0¢
Fiscal 2013

First quarter (from January 1, 2013 through Marth29)13) $ 16.9¢ $ 14.2¢

Second quarter (from April 1, 2013 through June28,3) $ 1535 $ 14.1(C

Third quarter (from July 1, 2013 through Septeng®r2013) $ 15.3¢ $ 14.67

Fourth quarter (from October 1, 2013 through Decem®i, 2013) $ 1562 $ 14.2¢
Fiscal 2014

First quarter (from January 1, 2014 through Marth2014) $ 15.0¢ $ 14.15

Second quarter (from April 1, 2014 through June281,4) $ 1471 $ 13.1%

Third quarter (from July 1, 2014 through Septen@&r2014) $ 1478 $ 13.7:

Fourth quarter (from October 1, 2014 through Decendd, 2014) $ 14.4¢ $ 11.7¢
Fiscal 2015

First quarter (from January 1, 2015 through MarcB0L5) $ 11.8C $ 12.6¢

The last reported sale price for our common stotkhe New York Stock Exchange on March 4, 2015 $&%44 per share.
As of March 4, 2015, we had 19 shareholders ofrceco

Shares of BDCs may trade at a market price tHasssthan the value of the net assets attributaliteose shares. The
possibility that our shares of common stock wilde at a discount from net asset value per shaaepremiums that are
unsustainable over the long term are separate iatidat from the risk that our net asset value giere will decrease. It is not
possible to predict whether the common stock waltle at, above, or below net asset value per share.

Dividends

Our dividends, if any, are determined by our bazrdirectors. We have elected and qualified torbated for federal
income tax purposes as a RIC under Subchaptertiedfode. As a RIC, we will not be taxed on ouestment company
taxable income or realized net capital gains, éoektent that such taxable income or gains araliiséd, or deemed to be
distributed, to stockholders on a timely basis.

To maintain our qualification for RIC tax treatmgwe must, among other things, distribute at 16886 of our net ordinary
income and realized net short-term capital gairexiress of realized net long-term capital losges)y. Depending on the level
of taxable income earned in a tax year, we may stoo carry forward taxable income in excess ofesuryear distributions
into the next tax year and pay a 4% excise taxush sncome. Any such carryover taxable income rbedfistributed through a
dividend declared prior to filing the final tax vet related to the year which generated such taxabbme. We may, in the
future, make actual distributions to our stockhadd®f our net capital gains. We can offer no aswmeahat we will achieve
results that will permit the payment of any casstritiutions and, if we issue senior securitiesywas be prohibited from
making distributions if doing so causes us totfainaintain the asset coverage ratios stipulatetthdy 940 Act or if
distributions are limited by the terms of any of borrowings.
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We have adopted an “opt out” dividend reinvestnman (“DRIP”) for our common stockholders. As aulgsif we make
cash distributions, then stockholders’ cash distitims will be automatically reinvested in addi@bshares of our common
stock, unless they specifically “opt out” of theidiend reinvestment plan so as to receive cashiiitibns.

The following table reflects the distributions [stare that our board of directors has declareduoic@mmon stock since
our IPO in November 2012, none of which are exmktaanclude return of capital:

Amount
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share
Fiscal 2012
December 7, 2012 December 21, 201. December 27,201: $  0.181:
Fiscal 2013
March 7, 2013 March 21, 2013 March 28, 2013 $  0.340(
June 6, 2013 June 21, 2013 June 28, 2013 $ 0.340(
August 21, 2013 September 5, 201: September 27,201 $ 0.340(
November 25, 2013 December 9, 2013 December 23, 201:  $ 0.340(
Fiscal 2014
December 27, 2013 January 15, 2014 January 24,2014 $ 0.065(
January 20, 2014 January 31, 2014 February 14, 2014 $ 0.113¢
January 20, 2014 February 28, 2014 March 14, 2014 $ 0.113¢
January 20, 2014 March 31, 2014 April 15, 2014 $ 0.113:
April 17, 2014 April 30, 2014 May 15, 2014 $ 0.113¢
April 17, 2014 May 30, 2014 June 16, 2014 $ 0113
April 17, 2014 June 30, 2014 July 15, 2014 $ 0.113¢
July 7, 2014 July 31, 2014 August 15,2014  $ 0.113:
July 7, 2014 August 29, 2014 September 15,201 $ 0.113¢
July 7, 2014 September 30, 201 October 15,2014 % 0.113¢
October 15, 2014 October 31, 2014 November 14, 201: $ 0.113¢
October 15, 2014 November 28, 201« December 15, 201 $ 0.113:
October 15, 2014 December 31, 201 January 15, 2015 $ 0.113¢
Fiscal 2015
January 22, 2015 February 2, 2015 February 13, 2015 $ 0.113:
January 22, 2015 February 27, 2015 March 13, 2015 $ 0.113:
January 22, 2015 March 31, 2015 April 15, 2015 $ 0.113:
Total $  3.305:

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we isauethl of 29,573 shares of common stock undebDfREP. This
issuance was not subject to the registration reqents of the Securities Act of 1933. The aggregalige of the shares of our

common stock issued under the DRIP was approximn&g98,505.

Use of Proceeds from Recent Sales of Registered &ées

None.

Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Stock Performance Graph

This graph compares the return on our common staitkthat of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Indexl the Russell
2000 Financial Services Index, for the period fiaoeption through March 4, 2015. The graph assuhmsat inception, a
person invested $100 in each of our common stbekS&P 500 Index, and the Russell 2000 FinancialiSes Index. The
graph measures total stockholder return, whichsték® account both changes in stock price andidivs. It assumes that
dividends paid are invested in like securities.

165.0

155.0

145.0 -

135.0

DOLLARS
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W2 3/8/13 3 453 3/6/14 /514 11/3/14 31415
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The graph and other information furnished undes Brart Il Item 5 of this Form 10-K shall not be heel to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subjeactRegulation 14A or 14C, or to the liabilities®&ction 18 of the 1934 Act.
The stock price performance included in the abaeplyis not necessarily indicative of future stpdke performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the yeansled December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for thedpfdm Inception
(May 18, 2012) through December 31, 2102, set foetflbw was derived from our financial statementéchvinave been audited
by Grant Thornton LLP, our independent registenglip accounting firm. The data should be readanjgnction with our
financial statements and related notes theretdladagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results
of Operations” included elsewhere in this report.

For the period from

Inception
(May 18, 2012)
For the year ended For the year ended through
Statement of Operations Data: December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013  December 31, 2012
Total investment income $ 32,32484 $  29,400,73 $ 3,696,43
Total expenses, net of fee waiver $ 15812,75 $  13,389,00 $ 2,392,071
Net investment incom $ 16,512,09 $ 16,011,72 $ 1,304,35!
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers $ 10,179,214 $  17,544,99 $ 1,298,42.
Per Share Data:
Net asset valu $ 139 $ 145 $ 14.4¢
Net investment incom $ 132 $ 132 $ 0.11
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers $ 08: $ 14 3 0.11
Distributions declared $ 13 $ 14 $ 0.1¢
At December 31, At December 31, At December 31,
Balance Sheet Data: 2014 2013 2012
Investments at fair value $ 315,955,43 $277,504,51 $ 195,451,25
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,046,56: $ 13,663,54 $ 62,131,68
Total assets $327,061,93 $298,128,30 $ 262,542,97
Total liabilities $153,112,48 $122,236,79 $ 88,697,02
Total net assets $173,949,45 $175,891,51 $ 173,845,95
Other Data:
Number of portfolio companies at period € 32 26 15
Weighted average yield on debt investments at
period end? 10.9% 11.2% 12.5%

(1) Computed using the effective interest ratesafbof our debt investments, including accretidrmginal issue discount.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements in this annual report omHAd-K constitute forward-looking statements, whielate to future
events or our future performance or financial ctodi The forward-looking statements containechis innual report on Form
10-K involve risks and uncertainties, includingtetaents as to:

e our future operating results;

e our business prospects and the prospects ofatfofio companies;

« the effect of investments that we expect to make;

e our contractual arrangements and relationshipis third parties;

e actual and potential conflicts of interest witlelfus Capital Management;

« the dependence of our future success on the gesmnomy and its effect on the industries in Whi® invest;
< the ability of our portfolio companies to achigheir objectives;

e the use of borrowed money to finance a portionwfinvestments;

« the adequacy of our financing sources and workaqgtal;

« the timing of cash flows, if any, from the opévat of our portfolio companies;

< the ability of Stellus Capital Management to ligcsuitable investments for us and to monitor aidiaister our
investments;

« the ability of Stellus Capital Management toadtrand retain highly talented professionals;
e our ability to maintain our qualification as adR&nd as a BDC and our SBIC subsidiary as a SBig; a

« the effect of future changes in laws or regulaidincluding the interpretation of these laws esgllations by
regulatory authorities) and conditions in our opiagpareas, particularly with respect to businesgetbpment
companies or RICs.

Such forward-looking statements may include statgsnpreceded by, followed by or that otherwiseldel the words
“may,” “might,” “will,” “intend,” “should,” “could,” “can,” “would,” “expect,” “believe,” “estimate,™anticipate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “plan” or similar words.

” o ” o ” ” ” o« ” w " ” ow

We have based the forward-looking statements imelud this annual report on Form 10-K on informatavailable to us
on the date of this annual report on Form 10-Kuattesults could differ materially from those aigated in our forward-
looking statements, and future results could diff@terially from historical performance. We undket@o obligation to revise
or update any forward-looking statements, whetkex gesult of new information, future events orottise, unless required by
law or SEC rule or regulation. You are adviseddosult any additional disclosures that we may ndikertly to you or through
reports that we in the future may file with the SE®@luding annual reports on Form 10-K, quartedyorts on Form 10-Q and
current reports on Form 8-K.

Overview

We were organized as a Maryland corporation on ¥3y2012, and formally commenced operations on Kiex 7, 2012.
Our investment objective is to maximize the totlirn to our stockholders in the form of currerttome and capital
appreciation through debt and related equity imaests in middle-market companies.

We are an externally managed, non-diversified,edesnd investment management company that hagelant qualified
to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. AB& Bve are required to comply with certain regutatequirements.

For instance, as a BDC, we must not acquire argtassher than “qualifying assets” specified in 1940 Act unless, at the
time the acquisition is made, at least 70% of otaltassets are qualifying assets.
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Qualifying assets include investments in “eligiptatfolio companies.” Under the relevant SEC ruthe,term “eligible

portfolio company” includes all private operatingnepanies, operating companies whose securitiesadiésted on a national
securities exchange, and certain public operatimgpanies that have listed their securities on mmal securities exchange and
have a market capitalization of less than $250ioni/lin each case organized and with their prinlayp&usiness in the United
States.

We have elected and qualified to be treated foptaposes as a regulated investment company, oriRider Subchapter
M of the Internal Revenue Code, or the Code. Tataai our qualification as a RIC, we must, amorteothings, meet certain
source-of-income and asset diversification requinets. As of December 31, 2014, we were in compdawith the RIC
requirements. As a RIC, we generally will not h&w@ay corporate-level U.S. federal income taxeamnincome we
distribute to our stockholders.

Portfolio Composition and Investment Activity
Portfolio Composition

We originate and invest primarily in privately-hetdddle-market companies (typically those with $&illion to $50.0
million of EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxegpreciation and amortization)) through first Jisecond lien, unitranche
and mezzanine debt financing, often times withraesponding equity investment.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $316.0 milliorfdatvalue) invested in 32 companies. As of Decen®de 2014, our
portfolio included approximately 24% of first lielebt, 32% of second lien debt, 41% of mezzanin¢ aled 3% of equity
investments at fair value. The composition of awestments at cost and fair value as of Decemhe2®4 was as follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 76,18895 $ 75,529,96
Senior Secured — Second Lien 102,353,43 101,556,89
Unsecured Debt 135,536,20 129,276,25
Equity 7,876,88: 9,602,31L
Total Investments $321,955,48 $ 315,965,43

As of December 31, 2013, we had $277.5 milliorfdatvalue) invested in 26 portfolio companies.#&December 31,
2013, our portfolio included approximately 17% ioéf lien debt, 43% of second lien debt, 38% of nagine debt and 2% of
equity investments at fair value. The compositibour investments at cost and fair value as of Deasr 31, 2013 was as
follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 48,341,12 $ 48,745,76
Senior Secured — Second Lien 117,166,00 118,171,72
Unsecured Debt 107,318,51 106,219,59
Equity 4,178,82 4,367,422,
Total Investments $277,004,46 $ 277,504,51

The Company'’s investment portfolio may contain b#rat are in the form of lines of credit or revnty credit facilities,
which require the Company to provide funding whequested by portfolio companies in accordance thighterms of the
underlying loan agreements. As of December 31, 20it¥December 31, 2013, the Company had threeisuestments with
aggregate unfunded commitments of $10.9 million $2@.9 million, respectively.
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The following is a summary of geographical concatitn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3114

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

New York $ 45358,67 $ 39,450,45 12.4%%
Texas 36,732,71 36,903,83 11.68%
Canada 31,256,25 31,070,19 9.82%
Colorado 27,673,85 28,138,44 8.91%
Florida 24,551,44 24,463,72 7.7%%
Massachusetts 22,357,01 22,855,75 7.22%
Minnesota 22,047,46 21,826,54 6.91%
Alabama 16,768,37 16,697,58 5.2¢%
California 15,750,28 15,750,28 4.98%
Indiana 14,059,57 13,951,68 4.42%
lllinois 14,035,05 13,916,80 4.4(%
Pennsylvania 9,713,56! 9,525,05! 3.01%
New Jerse! 9,366,35! 8,833,03 2.8(%
Puerto Rico 8,695,87! 8,593,27! 2.72%
Missouri 4,958,66- 4,927,51 1.56%
Kentucky 4,471,14. 4,902,49i 1.55%
Washington 4,135,38! 4,135,38! 1.31%
Virginia 3,995,02 4,003,96! 1.27%
Arizona 3,550,72 3,550,72i 1.12%
Tennessee 2,478,01! 2,468,67. 0.7¢%
$ 321,955,48 $ 315,965,43 100.0(%

The following is a summary of geographical concatitin of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3113:

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
New York $ 41,093,388 $ 39,601,59 14.27%
Colorado 36,412,35 37,108,66 13.3%
Minnesota 34,087,18 34,510,92 12.4%%
Massachusetts 32,305,89 32,305,89 11.6%%
Canada 27,917,64 28,215,79 10.17%
Texas 17,973,04 18,200,00 6.5¢%
Florida 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.0<%
lllinois 14,008,78 14,115,23 5.0%
Indiana 11,169,11 11,169,11 4.02%
New Jerse) 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.61%
Pennsylvania 9,669,69! 9,738,001 3.51%
Puerto Rico 8,700,32. 8,359,54. 3.01%
Missouri 7,925,24. 8,120,001 2.9%

Kentucky 4,659,65 4,888,37. 1.7¢%
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Georgia 1,480,11. 1,500,00! 0.54%
$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 311420

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

Software $ 41,302,044 $ 41,553,61 13.1%%
Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 35,732,64 36,045,79 11.4%
High Tech Industries 35,671,30 35,527,46 11.2%
Finance 34,879,61 35,404,97 11.2%%
Media: Broadcasting & Subscription 29,309,45 29,252,04 9.26%
Retail 25,116,63 24,583,31 7.7¢%
Telecommunications 18,770,96 18,435,80 5.82%
Transportation: Cargo 17,898,67 17,658,44 5.5%
Services: Business 16,910,42 16,822,69 5.32%
Services: Consumer 20,841,37 14,901,22 4.72%
Consumer Goods: Non-Durable 9,713,561 9,525,05! 3.01%
Beverage, Food, & Tobacco 7,874,91i 7,950,001 2.52%
Transportation & Logistics 5,870,901 5,752,78; 1.82%
Metals & Mining 4,471,14. 4,902,49 1.55%
Chemicals, Plastics, and Rubber 4,796,40 4,797,79i 1.52%
Services: Government 3,995,02 4,003,96! 1.27%
Hotel, Gaming, & Leisure 3,550,72 3,550,72! 1.12%
Energy: Oil & Gas 2,861,64! 2,828,56. 0.9(%
Construction & Building 2,478,01! 2,468,67. 0.78%
$ 321,955,48 $ 315,965,43 100.00%

The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 31120

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
Software $ 48,570,69 $ 48,805,89 17.5%
Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 35,707,71 35,874,46 12.9%
High Tech Industries 35,211,79 35,318,24 12.7°%
Telecommunications 33,269,45 33,491,49 12.0%
Transportation: Cargo 17,883,75 18,181,90 6.55%
Beverage, Food, & Tobacco 16,689,79 17,000,00 6.15%
Services: Business 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.0<%
Media: Broadcasting & Subscription 13,339,96 13,532,50 4.88%
Finance 12,242,88 12,491,25 4.5(%
Services: Consumer 13,133,22 11,395,29 4.1(%
Retail 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Consumer Goods: Non-Durable 9,669,69! 9,738,00! 3.51%
Energy: Oil & Gas 9,538,73 9,700,00! 3.4%%

Metals & Mining 4,659,65! 4,888,37. 1.7¢%
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At December 31, 2014, our average portfolio compamgstment at amortized cost and fair value was@pmately $10.1
million and $9.9 million, respectively, and ourdast portfolio company investment by amortized ewmst fair value was
approximately $22.4 million and $22.9 million, resfively. At December 31, 2013, our average pddfebmpany investment
at amortized cost and fair value was approxim$&ly.7 million and $10.7 million, respectively, amar largest portfolio
company investment by amortized cost and fair valas approximately $22.3 million and $22.3 millioaespectively.
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At December 31, 2014, 56% of our debt investmeats interest based on floating rates (subjectterést rate floors),
such as LIBOR, and 44% bore interest at fixed raie®ecember 31, 2013, 58% of our debt investmbots interest based on
floating rates (subject to interest rate floorsijglsas LIBOR, and 42% bore interest at fixed rates.

The weighted average yield on all of our debt itwents as of December 31, 2014 and December 33,288
approximately 10.9% and 11.4%, respectively. Thieghted average yield was computed using the effedtiterest rates for all
of our debt investments, including accretion ofjoral issue discount.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 adechsh of $2.0 million and $3.7 million, respeelyy and United
States Treasury securities of approximately $0&#@0 million, respectively. The United States Brag securities were
purchased and temporarily held in 2013 in connaatitth complying with RIC diversification requiremiss under Subchapter
M of the Code.

Investment Activity

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we ma8® $8illion of investments in 11 new portfolio coarpes and three
existing portfolio companies. During the year enBetember 31, 2014, we received $54.9 million imcpeds from
repayments and sales of our investments, inclu@iing million from amortization of certain other gstments.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we madé.$illion of investments in 16 new portfolio cpanies and six
existing portfolio companies. During the year enBetember 31, 2013, we received $97.4 million imcpeds from
repayments and sales of our investments, inclui?hg million from amortization of certain other gstments.

Our level of investment activity can vary substalhifrom period to period depending on many fastamcluding the
amount of debt and equity capital available to naddarket companies, the level of merger and attgpnsactivity, the general
economic environment and the competitive envirortmfi@mthe types of investments we make.

Asset Quality

In addition to various risk management and monigptbols, Stellus Capital Management uses an imegst ranking
system to characterize and monitor the credit |grafnd expected level of returns on each investmnemir portfolio. This
investment rating system uses a five-level numséde. The following is a description of the cormdis associated with each
investment category:

* Investment Category 1 is used for investmentsaraperforming above expectations, and whoss risinain favorable
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment.

« Investment Category 2 is used for investmentsdh@aperforming within expectations and whosesrigmain neutral
compared to the expected risk at the time of thgiral investment. All new loans are initially rdt@.

« Investment Category 3 is used for investmentsahaperforming below expectations and that reqelser monitoring
but where no loss of return or principal is expdctortfolio companies with a rating of 3 may bé¢ @ucompliance
with financial covenants.

« Investment Category 4 is used for investmentsahaperforming substantially below expectationsahdse risks hay
increased substantially since the original investtm&hese investments are often in work out. Innesits with a rating
of 4 are those for which some loss of return butoss of principal is expected.

« Investment Category 5 is used for investmentsahaperforming substantially below expectationsahdse risks hay
increased substantially since the original investtimehese investments are almost always in worklauestments witl
a rating of 5 are those for which some loss ofrretind principal is expected.
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As of December 31, 2014 As of December 31, 2013

Number of Number of
% of Total Portfolio % of Total Portfolio

Investment Category Fair Value Portfolio Companies Fair Value Portfolio Companies
1 $ 21.€ 7% 1 8 21.1 8% 2
2 259.¢ 82% 27 236.€ 85% 22
3 27.5 9% 3 8.4 3% 1
4 = 0% = 11.4 4% 1
5 7.3 2% 1 — — —

Total $ 316.C 10C% 32 ¢ 277¢ 10C% 26

Loans and Debt Securities on Non-Accrual Status

We will not accrue interest on loans and debt sgesiif we have reason to doubt our ability toledl such interest. As of
December 31, 2014, we had one loan on non-acdataks which represents approximately 4.1% of tla@ Iportfolio at cost
and 2.3% at fair value. As of December 31, 2013hae no loans on non-accrual status.

Results of Operations

An important measure of our financial performarscaét increase (decrease) in net assets resuitimgdperations, which
includes net investment income (loss), net realgad (loss) and net unrealized appreciation (dz2atien). Net investment
income (loss) is the difference between our incfmom interest, dividends, fees and other investnmaudme and our operating
expenses including interest on borrowed funds.rdlgized gain (loss) on investments is the diffeecbetween the proceeds
received from dispositions of portfolio investmeatsl their amortized cost, except for loans boakezidiscount to account for
origination fees. Net unrealized appreciation (defation) on investments is the net change indlrevilue of our investment
portfolio.

Comparison of the Years ended December 31, 2014328nd 2012

Revenues

We generate revenue in the form of interest incomedebt investments and capital gains and distabst if any, on
investment securities that we may acquire in pbotftompanies. Our debt investments typically haterm of five to seven
years and bear interest at a fixed or floating. faterest on our debt securities is generally plyguarterly. Payments of
principal on our debt investments may be amortest the stated term of the investment, deferreddweral years or due
entirely at maturity. In some cases, our debt itests may pay interest in-kind, or PIK. Any outstimg principal amount of
our debt securities and any accrued but unpaidestevill generally become due at the maturity datee level of interest
income we receive is directly related to the bataoicinterest-bearing investments multiplied by wesghted average yield of
our investments. We expect that the total dollao@m of interest and any dividend income that wa éaincrease as the size
of our investment portfolio increases. In additiasg, may generate revenue in the form of prepayifeest commitment, loan
origination, structuring or due diligence feessféar providing significant managerial assistaned eonsulting fees.

The following shows the breakdown of investmenbme for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 20#13he period
from Inception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ112 (in millions).

For the period
from Inception

Year ended Year ended (May 18, 2012)
December 31, December 31, through
2014 2013 December 31, 201
Interest income $ 30 3 26¢ 3 3.7
PIK Interest 0.7 1.1 0.C
Miscellaneous fees 0.7 1.4 —
Total $ 32 % 29.2  $ 3.7

The increases in interest income from the respegériods were due to the growth in the overakgtment portfolio.
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Expenses

Our primary operating expenses include the paymkfaes to Stellus Capital Management, LLC (“Stel@apital” or the
“Advisor”) under the investment advisory agreemeunt;, allocable portion of overhead expenses urgeatiministration
agreement and other operating costs described b&abear all other out-of-pocket costs and expen$eur operations and
transactions, which may include:

« the cost of calculating our net asset value pidiclg the cost of any third-party valuation sersice
* the cost of effecting sales and repurchasesareshof our common stock and other securities;

» fees payable to third parties relating to makingestments, including out-of-pocket fees and egpsr(such as travel
expenses) associated with performing due diligamekreviews of prospective investments;

- transfer agent and custodial fees;

e out-of-pocket fees and expenses associated vatketing efforts;

- federal and state registration fees and any stmckhange listing fees;

» U.S. federal, state and local taxes;

< independent directors’ fees and expenses;

e brokerage commissions;

- fidelity bond, directors’ and officers’ liabilitinsurance and other insurance premiums;
« direct costs, such as printing, mailing, longatice telephone and staff;

- fees and expenses associated with independeits and outside legal costs; and

« other expenses incurred by Stellus Capital ane®nnection with administering our business, udahg payments
under the administration agreement that are based aur allocable portion of overhead (subjechireview of our
board of directors).

The following shows the breakdown of operating egess for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 20d3he period
from Inception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ112 (in millions).

For the period
from Inception
(May 18, 2012)

Year ended Year ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Operating Expenses

Management fees $ 5.2 $ 4.2 $ 0.t
Valuation Fees 0.4 0.t 0.2
Administrative services expenses 1.2 0.€ 0.1
Incentive fee$?) 3.1 3.€ —
Professional fees 0.7 0.€ 0.7
Directors’ fees 0.4 0.4 0.1
Insurance expense 0.t 0.t 0.1
Interest expense and other fees 5.3 3.1 &
Credit facility fees — — 3
Other general and administrative 0.4 0.3 0.1
Total Operating Expenses $ 17.2 $ 14.: $ 2.4
Waiver of Incentive Fees (1.9 (2.0 —

Total expenses, net of fee waivers $ 15.¢ $ 13.¢ $ 2.4




(a) For the years ended December 31, 2014 and BtxEdtive fees include the effect of the Capitalrs Incentive Fee of
($0.3) million and $0.3 million.
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The increase in operating expenses for the resgeptiriods was primarily due to an increase inr@geexpense due to the
issuance of $25.0 million in aggregate principabant of 6.50% notes (the “Notes”) and an increasaanagement fees,
which was attributable to our growing portfolio.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Advigimea to waive its incentive fee to the extent neglto support an
annualized dividend yield of 9.0% based on theegppier share of our common stock of $15.00, theegadhe public in our
initial public offering. For the year ended DecemB&, 2013, the Advisor waived Investment Incomeehtive Fees of $1.0
million. While under no obligation to do so, theVAsbr agreed to waive incentive fees of $1.4 millfor the year ended
December 31, 2014. Such waiver in no way implies the Advisor will agree to waive incentive feesany future period.

Net Investment Income

Net investment income was $16.5 million, or $1.84 gommon share based on weighted-average of 12.2Btommon
shares outstanding for the year ended Decemb&@034, as compared to $16.0 million, or $1.33 penmmon share based on
weighted-average of 12,059,293 common shares odis@for the year ended December 31, 2013 andréillidn, or $0.11
per common share based on a weighted average38,424 common shares outstanding for the periad frception (May
18, 2012) through December 31, 2012.

The increase in net investment income is primadhigyresult our growing portfolio, which was patijadffset by the
increase in interest and fees due to the issudrbe dotes.

Net Realized Gains and Losses

We measure realized gains or losses by the differertween the net proceeds from the repaymert®asd the
amortized cost basis of the investment, using preeific identification method, without regard torealized appreciation or
depreciation previously recognized.

Proceeds from sales and repayments on investnaritsef year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $54dli®8mrand net
realized gains totaled $0.4 million. Proceeds feaies and repayments on investments for the yeldeDecember 31, 2013
totaled $97.4 million and net realized gains tata$¢.0 million. We did not recognize any realizeing or losses on our
investments during the period from Inception (M&y 2012) through December 31, 2012.

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation of Investraent

Net change in unrealized appreciation primarilyeet the change in portfolio investment valuesrduthe reporting
period, including the reversal of previously reedppreciation or depreciation when gains or base realized.

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciaionnvestments and cash equivalents for the geded December 31,
2014 and 2013 and the period from Inception (May2D8.2) through December 31, 2012 totaled ($6.H)amj $0.5 million,
and $6 thousand, respectively.

The change in unrealized appreciation (depreciati@s due primarily to unrealized depreciation an@ne non-accrual
investment as well as unrealized depreciation berdhvestments in the portfolio due to a widerafignarket interest rate
spreads.

Provision for Taxes on Unrealized Appreciation amdstments

We have direct wholly owned subsidiaries that heleeted to be taxable entities (the “Taxable Suases”). The Taxable
Subsidiaries permit us to hold equity investmentgartfolio companies which are “pass through” tgifor tax purposes and
continue to comply with the “source income” reqments contained in RIC tax provisions of the Cddee Taxable
Subsidiaries are not consolidated with us for inedax purposes and may generate income tax expesrsefjit, and the related
tax assets and liabilities, as a result of theinesship of certain portfolio investments. The ineotax expense, or benefit, if
any, and related tax assets and liabilities ateagtfd in our consolidated financial statements.tke year ended December 31,
2014, we recognized a provision for income tax prealized gain on investments of $0.3 million floe fTaxable Subsidiaries.
For the year ended December 31, 2013 and the pieandinception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ&112, we
recognized no income tax or benefit related to the
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taxable subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2014, 80li8n were included in the deferred tax liabjlibn the Consolidated
Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operation

Net increase in net assets resulting from operatiotaled $10.2 million, or $0.83 per common sheged on weighted-
average of 12,281,178 common shares outstandirthdorear ended December 31, 2014, as compared/tb illion, or
$1.45 per common share based on weighted-averag®@59,293 common shares outstanding for the g/eded December 31,
2013 and $1.3 million, or $0.11 per common shasetan a weighted average of 12,035,023 commoeslatstanding for
the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) throughcBmber 31, 2012.

The decline in net increase in net assets resuitomy operations was due primarily to unrealizegdrdeiation on our one
non-accrual investment as well as unrealized dédfen on other investments in the portfolio duatawidening of market
interest rate spreads which was partially offsetdafized gains.

Financial condition, liquidity and capital resources

Cash Flows from Operating and Financing Activities

Our operating activities used cash of $27.2 milfionthe year ended December 31, 2014, primarilyoinnection with the
purchase of portfolio investments. Our financingwites for the year ended December 31, 2014 pledicash of $15.6 million
primarily from the issuance of the Notes and ouASBiaranteed debentures.

Our operating activities used cash of $68.4 milfionthe year ended December 31, 2013, primarilgonnection with
purchase of portfolio investments. Our financingwites for the year ended December 31, 2013 pledicash of $19.9 million
primarily due to increased borrowing under the teing credit facility with various lenders (the “€xdit Facility”,) offset by
repayments of the short-term loan.

Our operating activities used cash of $162.4 nilfior the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thgh December 31,
2012, primarily in connection with the purchasémfestments, including the initial investment politi we acquired
immediately prior to our IPO from a private investmh fund to which the D. E. Shaw group serves asstment adviser and
Stellus Capital Management serves as a non-disoeel sub-adviser. Our financing activities proddash of $224.5 million
primarily from our IPO and borrowings under the dit&acility.

Our liquidity and capital resources are derivedrithe Credit Facility, the Notes, SBA guaranteeieitures and cash
flows from operations, including investment saled eepayments, and income earned. Our primary usasmads from
operations includes investments in portfolio conmesiand other operating expenses we incur, asasetie payment of
dividends to the holders of our common stock. Weduand expect to continue to use, these capgalrees as well as
proceeds from turnover within our portfolio andrfrgublic and private offerings of securities tcafiice our investment
activities.

Although we expect to fund the growth of our inweent portfolio through the net proceeds from fufomblic and private
equity offerings and issuances of senior securiidsiture borrowings to the extent permitted by 1940 Act, our plans to
raise capital may not be successful. In this reghair common stock trades at a price below bentcurrent net asset value
per share, we may be limited in our ability to eaégjuity capital given that we cannot sell our camrstock at a price below
net asset value per share unless our stockholgpreae such a sale and our board of directors medewtain determinations in
connection therewith. A proposal, approved by doclkholders at our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockeadg authorizes us to
sell shares equal to up to 25% of our outstandamgnoon stock of our common stock below the thenerimet asset value per
share of our common stock in one or more offeriiogshe period ending on the earlier of (i) July2015, the one year
anniversary of our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockleo&] or (ii) the date of our 2015 Annual Meetingstdckholders. We
would need similar future approval from our stodkless to issue shares below the then current et &alue per share any
time after the expiration of the current approyaladdition, we intend to distribute between 909 400% of our taxable
income to our stockholders in order to satisfyrdguirements applicable to RICs under Subchaptef tie Code.
Consequently, we may not have the funds or thébal fund new investments, to make additional
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investments in our portfolio companies, to fund oofunded commitments to portfolio companies arefeay borrowings. In
addition, the illiquidity of our portfolio investnrmés may make it difficult for us to sell these istraents when desired and, if we
are required to sell these investments, we mayzeesignificantly less than their recorded value.

Also, as a business development company, we génaralrequired to meet a coverage ratio of tadakss, less liabilities
and indebtedness not represented by senior sesutibi total senior securities, which include &tbor borrowings and any
outstanding preferred stock, of at least 200%. Akehreceived exemptive relief from the SEC to peusito exclude the debt
of our SBIC subsidiary guaranteed by the SBA frbmdefinition of senior securities in the 200% asseerage test under the
1940 Act. This requirement limits the amount thatiway borrow. We were in compliance with the asseerage ratios at all
times. As of December 31, 2014 and December 313,204r asset coverage ratio was 232% and 248%gctgely. The
amount of leverage that we employ will depend onamsessment of market conditions and other faetdfse time of any
proposed borrowing, such as the maturity, covepackage and rate structure of the proposed borgsymur ability to raise
funds through the issuance of shares of our constamk and the risks of such borrowings within tbatext of our investment
outlook. Ultimately, we only intend to use leverafihe expected returns from borrowing to makesstments will exceed the
cost of such borrowing. As of December 31, 2014@adember 31, 2013, we had cash and cash equisagefi2.0 million and
$1.6 million, respectively, and United States Ttegsecurities of approximately $0 million and ¥léillion, respectively.

Credit Facility

On November 7, 2012, we entered into the CredilliBacSunTrust Bank is one of the lenders and esras administrative
agent under the Credit Facility. The Credit Fagititiginally provided for borrowings in an aggregamount up to
$115,000,000 on a committed basis and an accofdicam additional $35,000,000 for a total facikfige of $150,000,000. On
July 30, 2013, we partially exercised the accordeaiure under our Credit Facility and receiveditaltal commitments from
the existing bank group in the amount of $20,000@8ich increased the total commitment to $135,000,under the Credit
Facility. On May 16, 2014, the Company exercisedrdmainder of the accordion feature under its i€Fatility and received
an additional commitments from a new participarthie bank group in the amount of $15,000,000 whicheased the total
commitment to $150,000,000 under the Credit Facilit

On November 21, 2014, we entered into the First Aeneent (the “Amendment”) to the Credit Facility tvBunTrust
Bank, as a lender and the administrative agentttemtenders named therein. The Amendment, amdreg ttings, (i)
extended the maturity date of the Credit Faciligni November 14, 2016 to October 1, 2018; (ii) e®tel the revolving period
from November 12, 2015 to October 1, 2017; an)if@duced the applicable margin rate for LIBOR-lsdsans from 3.00%
per annum to 2.625% per annum and reduced thecapj#imargin rate for other loans, which are basedn alternative
reference rate, (b) a federal funds effective pte 0.50%, and (c) the rate per annum equal t@ll®one-month LIBOR),
from 2.00% per annum to 1.625% per annum. The Ammemd also reduced the initial aggregate commitmender the Credit
Facility to $120,000,000, but included an accordiature allowing us to increase the aggregate dtments up to
$195,000,000, subject to new or existing lendereeigg to participate in the increase and othetocoary conditions. There
can be no assurances that existing lenders wileatgr such an increase, or that additional lend#irgin the Credit Facility to
increase available borrowings.

In addition, the Amendment provided for the prepapitrin full of the pro rata portion of loans owitmState Street Bank
and Trust Company, which ceased to be a lenderuahderedit Facility after such prepayment.

The Company’s obligations to the lenders are selchiyea first priority security interest in its pfwfio of securities and cash
not held at the SBIC, but excluding short term sitagents. The Credit Facility contains certain affitive and negative
covenants, including but not limited to: (i) maiiniag a minimum liquidity test of at least 85% afjasted borrowing base, (ii)
maintaining an asset coverage ratio of at leasta?100, and (iii) maintaining a minimum sharehols@quity. As of December
31, 2014, we were in compliance with these covenant

Borrowings under the Credit Facility, as amendedyrbnterest, subject to the Company’s electiora per annum basis
equal to (i) LIBOR plus 2.625% with no LIBOR floor (ii) 1.625% plus an alternate base
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rate based on the highest of the Prime Rate, Hefgi@nals Rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plus 1.0k Company pays
unused commitment fees of 0.50% per annum on theathlender commitments under the Credit Facllifgrest is payable
quarterly in arrears. Any amounts borrowed underGhedit Facility, as amended, will mature, ancaatirued and unpaid
interest thereunder will be due and payable, onexder 12, 2018.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,.$10#lion and $110.0 million was outstanding unttex Credit
Facility, respectively. The Company incurred cast$2.0 million in connection with obtaining theediit Facility, which the
Company has recorded as prepaid loan structureofeis statement of assets and liabilities arahisrtizing these fees over
the life of the Credit Facility. During the yeardsd December 31, 2013, the Company incurred c6$8.d million in
connection with the $20 million commitment increaBering the year ended December 31, 2014, the @osnmcurred
additional costs of $0.1 million in connection witte final $15 million commitment increase. Additaly, we incurred $0.7
million in connection with the Amendment during tyear ended December 31, 2014. As of December@®@Y4 and December
31, 2013, $1.7 million and $1.6 million of such paél loan structure fees had yet to be amortizspectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 the weightedhge effective interest rate under the CreditliBawas
approximately 3.2% (approximately 3.9% includingneonitment and other loan fees). Interest is paidtgus in arrears. The
Company recorded interest and fee expense of $dliamfor the year ended December 31, 2014, ofalt$3.3 million was
interest expense, $0.6 million was amortizatiotoah fees paid on the Credit Facility, $0.2 milli@tated to commitment fees
on the unused portion of the Credit Facility, ad® $housand related to loan administration fees. Company paid $3.6
million in interest expense and unused commitmees for the year ended December 31, 2014. Thegaé@rowings under
the Credit Facility for the year ended December28iL,4 were $103.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 the weightedhge effective interest rate under the CreditliBawas
approximately 3.3% (approximately 4.6% includingneonitment and other loan fees). Interest is paidtgus in arrears. The
Company recorded interest and fee expense of $lliakmfor the year ended December 31, 2013, ofalut$2.3 million was
interest expense, $0.5 million was amortizatiotoah fees paid on the Credit Facility, $0.3 milli@tated to commitment fees
on the unused portion of the Credit Facility, aB@ $housand related to loan administration fees. Company paid $2.4
million in interest expense and unused commitmees for the year ended December 31, 2013. Thegeé@rowings under
the Credit Facility for the year ended December2R3 were $68.4 million.

For the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thrbudecember 31, 2012 the weighted average effettteeest rate under
the Credit Facility was approximately 3.6% (appmoately 5.7%) including commitment fees on the udysertion of the
Credit Facility). The Company recorded interest Eeelexpense of $0.3 million for the period ended&mber 31, 2012, of
which $0.2 million was interest expense, $0.1 willrelated to commitment fees on the unused podidhe Credit Facility
and $19 thousand related to other loan fees. Tamge borrowings under the Credit Facility for pregiod ended December 31,
2012 were $25.0 million.

Notes Offering

On May 5, 2014, the Company closed a public offeofnotes which mature on April 30, 2019, and rhayedeemed in
whole or in part at any time or from time to tintetee Company’s option on or after April 30, 201i6e(“Notes”). The Notes
bear interest at a rate of 6.50% per year payaldeterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and Maolver 15, of each year,
beginning August 15, 2014. The net proceeds t&Cthapany from the sale of the Notes, after undeingritliscounts and
offering expenses, were approximately $24.1 millibhe Company used all of the net proceeds fromdfiering to repay a
portion of the amount outstanding under the Créddility. As of December 31, 2014 the carrying amtaaf the Notes was
approximately $25.0 million. As of December 31, 20the fair value of the Notes were $25.1 millidhe Company has listed
the Notes on New York Stock Exchange under thertgaslymbol “SCQ”.
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In connection with the issuance of the Notes, veatired $0.9 million of fees which are being ameariover the term of the
notes of which $0.8 million remains to be amortized is included within deferred financing costgsla consolidated
statements of assets and liabilities as of Dece®be2014.

SBA-Guaranteed Debentures

As of December 31, 2014, the SBIC subsidiary ha2iSillion in regulatory capital and had $16.25liom of SBA-
guaranteed debentures outstanding. These debeatersst to pool in March 2015 at which point aeriest rate will be fixed.
The weighted average annualized interim financatg on the outstanding debentures was 0.946%. Twexeeno debentures
outstanding as of December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2014, the carrying amount of8Bé&-guaranteed debentures approximated theiv&ire. The fair
values of the SBA-guaranteed debentures are detednin accordance with Accounting Standards BoartbAnting Standard
Codification 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures “ASC 820.”, which defines fair value in termfthe price that
would be paid to transfer a liability in an ordenfginsaction between market participants at thesareaent date under current
market conditions. The fair value of the SBA-guaead debentures are estimated based upon marketshtates for our own
borrowings or entities with similar credit risk,jasted for nonperformance risk, if any. At Decem®gr 2014 the SBA-
guaranteed debentures would be deemed to be Leasldefined in Note 4.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Compaoyred $719,063 in financing costs related toSBé-guaranteed
debentures, which were recorded as prepaid loan feeof December 31, 2014, $681,947 of prepaianiding costs had yet to
be amortized.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the compopéitterest, amortized deferred financing costighted average
stated interest rate and weighted average outstguidibt balance for the SBA-guaranteed debentuees as follows:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

SBA-guaranteed debentures interest $ 27,37:
Amortization of deferred financing costs 37,11¢
Total interest and fees expense $ 64,48¢
Weighted average stated interest rate 0.946%

As of December 31, 2014, no interest has beengratie SBA-guaranteed debentures.

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2014, our future fixed committedar cash payments on contractual obligationeéah of the next
five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020 and
Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 thereafter

(dollars in thousands)
Credit facility payable $106500 $¢ — $ — $ — $1065500 $ — 8 —
Notes payabl $ 25,00( — — — — $ 25,00( —
SBA-guaranteed debenture $ 16,25( — — — — — $ 16,25(
$14775¢ $ — $ — $ — $10650( $ 25000 $ 16,25(
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We may be a party to financial instruments withtmdfance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesneet the financial
needs of our portfolio companies. As of December2®14, our off-balance sheet arrangements codsit$10.9 million of
unfunded commitments to provide debt financingwe¢ of our portfolio companies. As of DecemberZ13, our off-balance
sheet arrangements consisted of $20.9 million &fnoed commitments to provide debt financing teéhof our portfolio
companies.

Regulated Investment Company Status and Dividends

We have elected and qualified to be treated aCauRtler Subchapter M of the Code. So long as wataiaiour status as a
RIC, we will not be taxed on our investment comptaxable income or realized net capital gainshéoextent that such taxable
income or gains are distributed, or deemed to eilduted, to stockholders on a timely basis.

Taxable income generally differs from net incomefiioancial reporting purposes due to temporary peananent
differences in the recognition of income and expenand generally excludes net unrealized appieciat depreciation until
realized. Dividends declared and paid by us inax yeay differ from taxable income for that yeasash dividends may
include the distribution of current year taxableame or the distribution of prior year taxable immcarried forward into and
distributed in the current year. Distributions atsay include returns of capital.

To qualify for RIC tax treatment, we must, amonlestthings, distribute, with respect to each tagafelar, at least 90% of
our investment company net taxable income (i.e.hetiordinary income and our realized net shoriteapital gains in excess
of realized net long-term capital losses, if aitfjve maintain our qualification as a RIC, we malsto satisfy certain
distribution requirements each calendar year iriotd avoid a federal excise tax on or undistridgarnings of a RIC.

We intend to distribute to our stockholders betw@@# and 100% of our annual taxable income (whicktudes our
taxable interest and fee income). However, the rwants contained in the Credit Facility may prohisitfrom making
distributions to our stockholders, and, as a resuolild hinder our ability to satisfy the distritmrt requirement. In addition, we
may retain for investment some or all of our ngatde capital gains (i.e., realized net long-teapital gains in excess of
realized net short-term capital losses) and tneett amounts as deemed distributions to our stodkins! If we do this, our
stockholders will be treated as if they receivetialcdistributions of the capital gains we retaiaed then reinvested the net
after-tax proceeds in our common stock. Our stoltldre also may be eligible to claim tax credits {orcertain circumstances,
tax refunds) equal to their allocable share oftt#txewe paid on the capital gains deemed distribtagdem. To the extent our
taxable earnings for a fiscal taxable year falblethe total amount of our dividends for that fisgaar, a portion of those
dividend distributions may be deemed a return pftahto our stockholders.

We may not be able to achieve operating resultsvtiiigallow us to make distributions at a specifiwel or to increase the
amount of these distributions from time to timeatidition, we may be limited in our ability to madtistributions due to the
asset coverage test for borrowings applicable @sus business development company under the 1848nd due to
provisions in the Credit Facility. We cannot assstaekholders that they will receive any distribas or distributions at a
particular level.

In accordance with certain applicable Treasury laggns and private letter rulings issued by thedmal Revenue Service,
a RIC may treat a distribution of its own stocKuw@filling its RIC distribution requirements if eacstockholder may elect to
receive his or her entire distribution in eitheslta@r stock of the RIC, subject to a limitationtttiee aggregate amount of cash
to be distributed to all stockholders must be asi®0% of the aggregate declared distributiotadfmany stockholders elect to
receive cash, each stockholder electing to rea@gsh must receive a pro rata amount of cash (Wélpalance of the
distribution paid in stock). In no event will anpskholder, electing to receive cash, receive tikaa 20% of his or her entire
distribution in cash. If these and certain othguieements are met, for U.S. federal income taypses, the amount of the
dividend paid in stock will be equal to the amoahtash that could have been received insteacdbokstWe have no current
intention of paying dividends in shares of our ktocaccordance with these Treasury regulatiorgioate letter rulings.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statenfents description of recent accounting pronounaasiéf any, including
the expected dates of adoption and the anticigatpedct on the financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements reguinanagement to make estimates and assumptiorefféntithe reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and exgsei@hanges in the economic environment, finamegakets and any other
parameters used in determining such estimates cauwiske actual results to differ. In addition to discussion below, our
significant accounting policies are further desedlin the notes to the financial statements.

Valuation of portfolio investments

As a business development company, we generalgstrin illiquid loans and securities including dahtl equity securities
of middle-market companies. Under procedures astadadl by our board of directors, we value investiséor which market
quotations are readily available at such marketatioms. We obtain these market values from angeddent pricing service or
at the mean between the bid and ask prices obtioedat least two brokers or dealers (if availablinerwise by a principal
market maker or a primary market dealer). Debteaudty securities that are not publicly traded twoge market prices are not
readily available are valued at fair value as daeteed in good faith by our board of directors. Sdetermination of fair values
may involve subjective judgments and estimatebpaljh we engage independent valuation providemview the valuation of
each portfolio investment that does not have ailseadailable market quotation at least twice arlyudnvestments purchased
within 60 days of maturity are valued at cost fuasreted discount, or minus amortized premium, whjgproximates fair
value. With respect to unquoted securities, ourdoadirectors, together with our independent atitin advisors, values each
investment considering, among other measures, utided cash flow models, comparisons of financiabsaof peer companies
that are public and other factors.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcaur board of
directors uses the pricing indicated by the extezmant to corroborate and/or assist us in ouratédn. Because there is not a
readily available market for substantially all bétinvestments in our portfolio, we value most of portfolio investments at
fair value as determined in good faith by our baafrdirectors using a documented valuation policgt a consistently applied
valuation process. Due to the inherent uncertaifiyetermining the fair value of investments thatt have a readily
available market value, the fair value of our inwasnts may differ significantly from the valuesttauld have been used had
a readily available market value existed for suntestments, and the differences could be material.

With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available, our board of disestundertakes a multi-
step valuation process each quarter, as descréded/b

*  Our quarterly valuation process begins with eaatifolio company or investment being initially uald by the
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managrgmesponsible for the portfolio investment;

*  Preliminary valuation conclusions are then docut®e and discussed with our senior management ifidsSCapital
Management;

e The audit committee of our board of directorstheviews these preliminary valuations;
* At least twice annually, the valuation for eadrtfolio investment is reviewed by an independeaaitiation firm; and

* The board of directors then discusses valuatiodglatermines the fair value of each investmenuinpmrtfolio in gooc
faith, based on the input of Stellus Capital Mamagt, the independent valuation firm and the acmlihmittee.
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Revenue recognition

We record interest income on an accrual basisg@xtent that we expect to collect such amountsldams and debt
securities with contractual PIK interest, whichnegents contractual interest accrued and addée: toan balance that
generally becomes due at maturity, we do not adetidenterest if the portfolio company valuatiordioates that such PIK
interest is not collectible. We will not accruedrgst on loans and debt securities if we have refmssdoubt our ability to collect
such interest. Loan origination fees, original essliscount and market discount or premium are abigpéd, and we then accrete
or amortize such amounts using the effective istargethod as interest income. Upon the prepaynfemtaan or debt security,
any unamortized loan origination is recorded asrégt income. We record prepayment premiums orslaad debt securities
as interest income. Dividend income, if any, wal lecognized on the ex-dividend date.

Unrealized Gains Incentive Fee

Under GAAP, the Company calculates the unrealizédsgincentive fee payable to the Advisor as if@wenpany had
realized all investments at their fair values athefreporting date. Accordingly, the Company aesra provisional unrealized
gains incentive fee taking into account any unrealigains or losses. As the provisional incentaeei$ subject to the
performance of investments until there is a retibraevent, the amount of provisional unrealizethgéncentive fee accrued at
a reporting date may vary from the incentive fest th ultimately realized and the differences cdiddmaterial.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

We are subject to financial market risks, includiatgnges in interest rates. For the years endedrbltesr 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, 56% and 58%, or 25 and 19 db#res in our portfolio bore interest at floatiradas, respectively. For the
year ended December 31, 2014, 22 of the 25 loaosriportfolio have interest rate floors, which baffectively converted the
loans to fixed rate loans in the current interast environment. In the future, we expect othendaa our portfolio will have
floating rates. Assuming that the Statement of fssard Liabilities as of December 31, 2014, wenetoain constant and no
actions were taken to alter the existing interat sensitivity, a hypothetical one percent inaead.IBOR would increase our
net income by less than $328,000 due the curreatdlin place. A hypothetical decrease in LIBOR ldmot affect our net
income, again, due to the aforementioned floogdace. Although we believe that this measure igcatile of our sensitivity to
interest rate changes, it does not adjust for pialerhanges in credit quality, size and compositidthe assets on the balance
sheet and other business developments that cdelct akt increase in net assets resulting fromadjmers, or net income.
Accordingly, no assurances can be given that actsalts would not differ materially from the poti@houtcome simulated by
this estimate. We may hedge against interest hateufitions by using standard hedging instrumenmts sis futures, options and
forward contacts subject to the requirements ofi®#0 Act. While hedging activities may insulateagminst adverse changes
in interest rates, they may also limit our abitityparticipate in the benefits of lower interesesawith respect to our portfolio of
investments. For the years ended December 31, &0d ®ecember 31, 2014, we did not engage in hedgitigties.

Changes in interest rates will affect our costunfding. Our interest expense will be affected bgnges in the published
LIBOR rate in connection with the Credit Facilis of December 31, 2014, we had not entered inyargerest rate hedging
arrangements. At December 31, 2014, based on @licable levels of our Credit Facility, a 1% incsedn interest rates would
have decreased our net investment income by appadely $1.0 million for the year ended December281L4.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséaits of assets and liabilities of Stellus Capitaestment Corporation (a
Maryland corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Comydarincluding the schedule of investments as o€®waber 31, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statementsarhtipns, changes in net assets, cash flows aaddial highlights for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and thedesim inception (May 18, 2012) to December 311, 20These financial
statements and financial highlights (See Note 8)lag¢ responsibility of the Company’s managemeunt.r@sponsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statememtdiaancial highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadldit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbe#hénancial statements
are free of material misstatement. We were notg@edido perform an audit of the Company’s interraitool over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration oéintl control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, bufarahe purpose of expressing an opinion on thectiffeness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordig, we express no such opinion. An audit alsoudek examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as wellaluating the overall financial statement presgt@n. Our procedures
included verification by confirmation of securitias of December 31, 2014 and 2013, by correspordeitis the portfolio
companies and custodians, or by other appropriatiiag procedures where replies were not receiViéel believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetearferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial
position of Stellus Capital Investment Corporatéond subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 20iBthe results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years efdzbmber 31, 2014 and 2013 and the period froepinen (May 18, 2012)
to December 31, 2012 and the financial highligbtsttie years ended December 31, 2014 and 201hamgktiod from
inception (May 18, 2012) to December 31, 2012 infoomity with accounting principles generally actagpin the United
States of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Houston, TX
March 9, 2015
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments, at fe@ue (amortized
cost of $321,955,480 and $277,004,466, respecjively $315,965,43  $277,504,51
Cash and cash equivalents 2,046,56. 13,663,54
Interest receivable 5,082,66! 4,713,91.
Deferred offering costs 261,76 205,16!
Deferred financing costs 828,95t —
Accounts receivable 69€ —
Receivable for affiliated transaction — 43,45(
Prepaid loan fees on SBA Debentures 681,94° —
Prepaid loan structure fees 1,774,63 1,586,40!
Prepaid expenses 419,28: 411,32:
Total Assets $327,061,93  $298,128,30
LIABILITIES
Notes Payable 25,000,00 —
Credit facility payable 106,500,00 110,000,00
SBA Debentures 16,250,00 —
Short-term loan — 9,000,001
Dividends payable 1,413,98. —
Base management fees payable 1,360,01! 1,176,73
Incentive fees payable 1,121,55 1,056,94.
Interest payable 346,20 234,05:
Directors' fees payable — 96,00(
Unearned revenue 157,40: 146,96!
Deferred tax liability 288,12: —
Administrative services payable 591,74« 263,22!
Other accrued expenses and liabilities 83,45: 262,87¢
Total Liabilities 153,112,48 122,236,79
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Net Assets $173,949,45  $175,891,51
NET ASSETS
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (100,00%:bares
authorized, 12,479,962 and 12,099,022 shares issu®dutstanding,
as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013atasg) $ 12,48 $ 12,09¢
Paid-in capital 180,994,78 175,614,73

Accumulated undistributed net realized gain — 1,027,39;



e et e ettt tr s s A e wr rae e fraw e ae e ar Nt~ ey

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on ibwesits and cash
equivalents, net of provision for taxes of $288,422 $0 as of

\mrm——e ey

December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplgctive (6,278,163 499,94
Net Assets $173,949,45 $175,891,51
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $327,061,93  $298,128,30
Net Asset Value Per Share $ 13.9¢  $ 14.5¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year

For the period
from Inception
For the year (May 18, 2012)

ended ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2012
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest income $31,637,09  $27,99548 $ 3,696,43
Other income 687,75: 1,405,25! —
Total Investment Income 32,324,84 29,400,73 3,696,43.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees $ 5,202,991 $ 4,242,600 $ 527,03
Valuation fees 384,95 497,22¢ 184,50(
Administrative services expenses 1,195,56! 883,05( 103,48
Incentive fees 3,122,89I 3,816,84! —
Professional fees 744,54 649,86. 734,36"
Directors' fees 373,00( 350,00( 109,43
Insurance expense 482,96: 468,04¢ 79,27¢
Interest expense and other fees 5,315,32! 3,123,70. 282,62¢
Credit facility fees — — 317,59:
Other general and administrative expenses 389,73t 314,19¢ 53,75¢
Total Operating Expenses 17,211,97 14,345,53 2,392,071
Waiver of Incentive Fees (1,399,22) (956,52 —
Total expenses, net of fee waivers 15,812,75 13,389,00 2,392,071
Net Investment Income 16,512,09 16,011,72 1,304,35I
Net Realized Gain on Investments and
Cash Equivalents 445,15 1,027,39: —
Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation
(Depreciation) on Investments and
Cash Equivalents (6,489,99) 505,87¢ (5,9372)
Benefit/(Provision) for taxes on unrealized gain
on investments (288,129 — —

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operatia $10,179,14

$17,544,99 $ 1,298,42

Net Investment Income Per Share $ 1.34

$ 132 % 0.11

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operati®
Per Share $ 0.8

$ 148 % 0.11

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding 12,281,17.

12,059,29 12,035,022

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations
Net investment incom
Net realized gain on investments and cash equiis

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciatior
investments and cash equivalents

Benefits/(Provision) for taxes on unrealized gain o
investments

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operatian
Stockholder distributions from:

Net investment incom

Net realized capital gair

Net decrease in net assets resulting from stockhad
distributions

Capital share transactions

Issuance of common stock
Reinvestments of stockholder distributions
Sales load

Offering costs

Net increase in net assets resulting from capitahare
transactions

Total increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year/period

Net assets at end of year/period (includes $779,643
$1,262,659 and $874,986 of distributions in excesfs
net investment income)

Distributions per share

For the year

For the year

For the period
from Inception
(May 18, 2012)

ended ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2014 2013 2012
$ 16,512,09 $ 16,011,72 $ 1,304,35
445,15° 1,027,39; —
(6,489,99) 505,87t (5,937)
(288,12) — —
10,179,14 17,544,99 1,298,42.
$(16,029,08) $(16,399,40) $ (2,179,34)
$ (1,472,54) $ — 3 _
(17,501,63)  (16,399,40) (2,179,34)
5,087,33! — 180,409,14
398,50! 899,96 112,94¢
(75,510 — (4,959,72)
(29,909 — (835,50()
5,380,42i 899,96« 174,726,87
(1,942,06) 2,045,55! 173,845,95
175,891,51 173,845,95 —
$173,949,45 $175,891,51 $173,845,95
$ 14z % 1.3¢ % 0.1¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

80




TABLE OF CONTENTS

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the period
from Inception

For the year For the year (May 18, 2012)
ended ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $10,179,14 $ 17,54499 $ 1,298,442

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets
resulting from operations to net cash used in
operating activities:

Purchases of investments (97,954,32) (176,445,41) (232,708,41)
Proceeds from sales and repayments of

investments 54,870,36 97,437,43 66,458,11
Net change in unrealized (appreciation) depreaizs

on investments 6,490,09! (504,459 4,41°¢
Increase in investments due to PIK (730,036 (1,073,58) (18,049
Net amortization of premium and accretion of

discount (686,98 (436,58 (28,17
Amortization of loan structure fees 607,40: 568,08t 67,59!
Amortization of deferred financing costs 90,61+ — —
Amortization of loan fees on SBIC debentures 37,117 — —
Net realized gain on investments (450,03) (1,030,64) —

Changes in other assets and liabilities

Increase in interest receivable (368,75) (2,140,08) (2,573,83)
Decrease (increase) in receivable for affiliated

transaction 43,45( (43,450 —
Increase in accounts receivable (69€) — —
Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses and fee (7,962 27,06: (438,389
Increase (decrease) in payable for investments

purchased — (4,750,00) 4,750,001
Increase in management fees payable 183,28 649,69¢ 527,03:
Increase (decrease) in directors' fees payable (96,000 66,54¢ 29,45
Increase in incentive fees payable 64,61+ 1,056,94. —
Increase in administrative services payable 328,51¢ — —
Increase in interest payable 112,15: 167,57- 66,47"
Increase in unearned revenue 10,43¢ 146,96! —
Increase in deferred tax liability 288,12: — —

Increase (decrease) in other accrued expenses ¢
liabilities (179,42¢) 350,11 175,99:

Net cash used in operating activities $(27,168,90) $ (68,408,80) $(162,389,35)




See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (continued)

For the year

For the year

For the period
from Inception
(May 18, 2012)

ended ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings on bridge note — ¢ —  $156,000,00
Payments on bridge note — — (156,000,00)
Proceeds from notes issued 25,000,00 — —
Proceeds from SBA Debentures 16,250,00 — —
Financing costs paid on Notes issued (919,57() — —
Financing costs paid on Credit Facility (795,629 (206,67°) (2,015,41)
Financing costs paid on SBA Debentures (719,069 — —
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 5,116,98! — 151,250,00
Sales load for common stock issued (75,510 — (4,959,72)
Offering costs (116,15() (352,289 (688,37
Stockholder distributions paid (15,689,14) (15,499,43) (2,066,39)
Borrowings under credit facility 105,250,00 159,000,00 71,000,00
Repayments of credit facility (108,750,00) (87,000,00) (33,000,00)
Repayments of short-term loan (9,000,00) (85,000,57) 45,000,94
Borrowings on short-term loan — 48,999,63
Net cash provided by financing activities 15,551,92 19,940,66 224,521,03
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (11,616,97) (48,468,14) 62,131,68
Cash and cash equivalents balance at beginning of
year/period 13,663,54 62,131,68 —
Cash and cash equivalents balance at end of
year/period $ 2,046,560 $ 13,663,54 $ 62,131,68
Supplemental and non-cash financing activities
Purchase of portfolio companies through the
issuance of common stock — — $ 29,159,214
Accrued deferred offering costs — — 147,12:
Shares issued pursuant to Dividend Reinvestme
Plan $ 398,50t $ 899,96 112,94¢
Interest expense paid $ 446561 $ 2,377,28 $ 141,20!

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments
December 31, 2014

Principal Amortized Fair % of Net
Investments Footnotes Headquarters/Industry Amount/Shares Cost value @ Assets
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments )
Abrasive Products and Equipment, LLC, e
al Deer Park, TX
Term Loan-Second Lien, L+10.5%, Chemicals, Plastics,
LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 3/5/2020 3) and Rubber 4507500 $ 4,421,40 $ 4,403,89 2.5%
APE Holdings, LLC
Class A Units (4)(5) 375,000 units 375,00( 393,90: 0.2:%
Total 4,796,40 4,797,79 2.7¢%
Atkins Nutritionals Holdings II, Inc. Denver, CO
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.50%, Beverage, Food, &
LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/3/2019 3) Tobacco 8,000,001 7,874,911 7,950,001 4.57%
ATX Networks Holdings Intermediate
Corp., et al West Ajax, Ontario
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash, High Tech Industries
2.00% PIK, due 5/12/2016 (5)(6) 21,636,24 21,636,24 21,610,66 12.42%
Binder & Binder National Social Security
Disability Advocates, LLC Hauppauge, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 13.00% cash, 2.0C Services: Consumer
PIK, 2.00% Default Rate, (4)(6)(7;
due 2/27/2016 13,200,35 13,200,35 7,260,19! 4.17%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC Lexington, KY
Term LoanFirst Lien, 12.50%, due 10/9/20 Metals & Mining 4,498,87: 4,256,85 4,261,88: 2.45%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC
Class B Units (4) 36 units 214,28t 640,60¢ 0.31%
Total 4,471,14. 4,902,491 2.82%
Calero Software, LLC, et al Rochester, NY
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 9.50%, Telecommunications
LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 6/5/2019 3) 10,000,00 9,830,25! 9,761,82! 5.61%
Managed Mobility Holdings, LLC
Partnership Units (4) 8,507 units 500,00( 301,48: 0.17%
Total 10,330,25 10,063,30 5.7¢%
Colford Capital Holdings, LLC New York, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.25%, Finance
due 5/31/2018 (5) 14,500,00 14,245,65 14,500,00 8.32%
Burnaby,
Digital Payment Technologies Corp. British Columbia
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50%, (3)(5)(8) Transportation & Logistics
LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 1/31/2019 2,927,60. 2,890,45: 2,876,39. 1.65%
Eating Recovery Center, LLC Denver, CO
Mezzanine Term Loan-Unsecured, Healthcare &
12.00% cash, 1.00% Pharmaceuticals
PIK, due 6/28/2018 (6) 18,400,00 18,124,29 17,903,23 10.2%
ERC Group Holdings LLC
Class A Units (4)(5) 17,820 units 1,674,64i 2,285200  1.31%
Total 19,798,94 20,188,44 11.6(%
Empirix Inc. Billerica, MA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 9.50%, Software

LIBOR floor 1.00%,



Empirix Holdings 1, Inc.

Common Shares, Class A 4)
Empirix Holdings |, Inc

Common Shares, Class B 4)

Total
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1,304 shares

1,317,406
shares

1,304,23. 1,884,61 1.0¢%
13,17« 19,03¢ 0.01%
22,357,01 22,855,75 13.1%%
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments — (continued)

December 31, 2014

Principal .
Headquarters/ Amount/ Amortized ~ Fair Value o5 of Net

Investments Footnotes Industry Shares Cost @ Assets
EOS Fitness Opco Holdings, LLC Phoenix, AZ
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.75%, Hotel, Gaming &

LIBOR floor 0.75%, due 12/30/2019 3) Leisure $ 3,500,000 $ 3,430,038 $ 3,430,03: 1.9%%
EOS Fitness Holdings, LLC

Class A Preferred Units 4) 118 units 117,67: 117,67: —
EOS Fitness Holdings, LLC

Class B Common Units (4) 3,017 units 3,015 3,015 0.0%

Total 3,550,72 3,550,72i 0.01%
Glori Energy Production Inc. Houston, TX
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 10.00%, Energy: Oil & Gas

LIBOR floor 1.00%,

due 3/14/2017 ?3) $ 2,904,66 2,861,641 2,828,56. 1.62%
Grupo HIMA San Pablo, Inc., et al San Juan, PR
Term Loan-Second Lien, 13.75%, Healthcare &

due 7/31/2018 Pharmaceuticals $ 4,000,001 3,850,22' 3,772,57. 2.17%
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 7.00%,

LIBOR floor 1.50%, due 1/31/2018 3) $ 4,912,501 4,845,64: 4,820,70! 2.7%

Total 8,695,87! 8,593,27! 4.90%
Help/Systems Holdings Inc., et al Eden Prairie, MN
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.50%, Software

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 6/28/2020 ?3) $ 15,000,00 14,809,64 14,562,47 8.31%
Hollander Sleep Products, LLC Boca Raton, FL
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.00%, Services: Consumer

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 10/21/2020 ?3) $ 7,500,00! 7,391,02! 7,391,02! 4.25%
Dream Il Holdings, LLC

Class A Units 4)(5) 250,000 units 250,00( 250,00( 0.1%%

Total 7,641,02! 7,641,02! 4.3%
Hostway Corp. Chicago, Il
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.75%, High Tech Industries

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 12/13/2020 ?3) $ 6,750,00! 6,629,07. 6,611,30! 3.8(%
HUF Worldwide, LLC Los Angeles, CA
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 9.00%, Retail

LIBOR floor 0.50%, due 10/22/2019 (3)(10) $ 15,550,00 15,250,28 15,250,28 8.71%
HUF Holdings, LLC Common Shares 500,000

Class A Units 4)(5) units 500,00( 500,00( 0.2%

Total 15,750,28 15,750,28 9.06%
Livingston International, Inc. Toronto, Ontario
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 7.75%, Transportation: Cargo

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/18/2020 3)(5) $ 6,841,73! 6,729,55! 6,583,14. 3.7%
Momentum Telecom Inc., et al Birmingham, AL
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50%, Media: Broadcasting &

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 3/10/2019 3) Subscription $ 16,055,29 15,768,37 15,697,58 9.02%
MBS Holdings, Inc. 2,774,695

Series E Preferred Stock (4) shares 1,000,00! 1,000,00t 0.58%

Total 16,768,37 16,697,58 9.61%

OG Systems, LLC

Chantilly, Virginia




1.00% PIK, LIBOR floor 1.00%,

due 1/22/2020 (3)(6) $ 4,018,02! 3,945,02 3,944,94! 2.21%
OGS Holdings, Inc.

Series A Convertible Preferred Shares 4) 11,521 share 50,00( 59,01¢ 0.0%%

Total 3,995,02 4,003,96! 2.3(%
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments — (continued)

December 31, 2014

Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ Amortized % of Net

Investments Footnotes Industry Shares Cost Fair Value @ Assets
Refac Optical Group, et al Blackwood, NJ
Revolver-First Lien, L + 8.50%, Retail

due 9/30/2018 (11)(12) $ 400,00( 400,00( 379,90: 0.22%
Term A Loan-First Lien, L + 7.50% cash,

1.00% PIK, due 9/30/2018 (6)(11) $ 2,699,13! 2,699,13I 2,563,51! 1.47%
Term B Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50% cash,

2.75% PIK, due 9/30/2018 (6)(11) $ 6,267,22 6,267,22 5,889,61 3.3%

Total 9,366,35. 8,833,03! 5.0%
Securus Technologies Holdings, Inc. Dallas, TX
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 7.75%, LIBO Telecommunications

floor 1.25%, due 4/30/2021 3) $ 8,500,00:! 8,440,70. 8,372,501 4.81%
Skopos Financial, LLC Irving, TX
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00%, Finance

due 1/31/2019 5) $ 20,000,00 19,633,96 19,711,22  11.3%
Skopos Financial Group, LLC

Class A Units 4)(5) 970,159 units 1,000,001 1,193,74 0.6%%

Total 20,633,96 20,904,97 12.02%
Snowman Holdings, LLC, et al Lebanon, IN
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.50%, Transportation: Cargo

due 2/15/2019 $ 11,169,11 11,169,11 11,075,29 6.31%
SPM Capital, LLC Bloomington, MN
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 5.50%, LIBOR Healthcare &

floor 1.50%, due 10/31/2017 3) Pharmaceuticals $ 7,331,25 7,237,82 7,264,07. 4.18%
SOAD, LLC Tarrytown, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 11.00% cash, 1.2t Media: Broadcasting &

PIK, due 4/30/2019 (6) Subscription $ 7,063,94 6,957,56! 6,922,93 3.9¢%
SQAD Holdco, Inc.

Preferred Shares, Series A (4) 5,624 shares 562,36¢ 633,61t 0.31%
SQAD Holdco, Inc.

Common Shares 4) 5,800 shares 62,48t 70,40: 0.02%

Total 7,582,41: 7,626,94! 4.3%
Studer Group, LLC (The) Gulf Breeze, FL
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00%, Services: Business

due 1/31/2019 $ 16,910,42 16,910,42 16,822,69 9.61%
T2 Systems, Inc. Indianapolis, IN
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50%, LIBOR Transportation &

floor 1.00%, due 1/31/2019 3)(8) Logistics $ 2,927,60. 2,890,45. 2,876,39. 1.65%
Telecommunications Management, LLC Sikeston, MO
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.00%, LIBO Media: Broadcasting &

floor 1.00%, due 10/30/2020 3) Subscription $ 5,000,00 4,958,66. 4,927,511 2.82%
Telular Corp. Chicago, IL
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 8.00%, E High Tech Industries

floor 1.25%, due 6/24/2020 3) $ 7,500,00! 7,405,98! 7,305,49! 4.2(%
Vandelay Industries Finance, LLC, et al La Vergne, TN
Term LoanSecond Lien, 10.75% cash, 1.0 Construction &

PIK, due 11/12/2019 (6) Building $ 2,500,00 2,478,01! 2,468,67. 1.42%



Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured,
11.50%, due 2/28/2017

Woodstream Group, Inc.

Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured,
11.50%, due 2/28/2017

Consumer Goods:
Non-Durable $ 9,137,721

Lititz, PA

Consumer Goods:
Non-Durable $ 862,27!
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments — (continued)
December 31, 2014

Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ Amortized % of Net

Investments Footnotes Industry Shares Cost Fair Value () Assets
Zemax, LLC Redmond, WA
Term LoanSecond Lien, L + 10.00%, LIBC Software

floor 1.00%, due 4/23/2020 3) $ 3,962,500 3,885,38! 3,885,38 2.2°%
Zemax Software Holdings, LLC

Preferred Units (4) 24,500 units 245,00( 245,00( 0.1%%
Zemax Software Holdings, LLC

Common Units (4) 5,000 units 5,00 5,00 —

Total 4,135,38 4,135,38 2.31%
Total Non-controlled, non-affiliated

investments $321,955,48 $ 315,965,43 181.6%
Net Investments $321,955,48 $ 315,965,43 181.62%
LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER

ASSETS (141,927,53) (81.69)%

NET ASSETS $173,949,45 100.0(%

(1) See Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statemfenta discussion of the methodologies used toesakcurities in the
portfolio.

(2) The Company’s obligations to the lenders of@nedit Facility are secured by a first prioritycaaty interest in all non-
controlled, non-affiliated investments and cash,dxclude $874,853 of cash and cash equivalent$48@96,015 of
investments (at par) that are in Stellus CapitdiCSBP. See Note 1 for discussion.

(3) These loans have LIBOR or Euro Floors whichhagher than the current applicable LIBOR or Ewates; therefore, the
floors are in effect.

(4) Security is non-income producing.
(5) The investment is not a qualifying asset uriderinvestment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

(6) Represents a payment-in-kind security. At thom of the issuer, interest can be paid in castash and PIK. The
percentage of PIK shown is the maximum PIK thatlbarlected by the company.

(7) Investment was on non-accrual status as ofalsriy 2014.
(8) Digital Payment Technologies Corp. is the Caarado-borrower of the term loan of T2 Systems, Inc
(9) Excluded from the investment above is a delajrasv term loan commitment in an amount not to edc®7,542,150, an

interest rate of LIBOR plus 9.50%, LIBOR floor 1%0and a maturity of May 1, 2020. This investmeragcruing an
unused commitment fee of 0.50% per annum.

(10)Excluded from the investment above is an undrawnroiment in an amount not to exceed $1,750,000tenest rate of
LIBOR plus 9.00% and a maturity of October 22, 20M8is investment is accruing an unused commitrfembf 0.50% pe
annum.

(11)variable rate loans bear interest at a rate thatleadetermined by reference to either LIBOR (whiah include one-, two-
, three- or six-month LIBOR) or an alternate basge (which can include the Federal Funds Effed®a&e or the Prime
Rate), at the borrower’s option, which reset padaltly based on the terms of the loan agreement.

(12)Excluded from the investment above is an undrawnroiment in an amount not to exceed $1,600,000tenest rate of



LIBOR plus 8.50% and a maturity of September 34,820 his investment is accruing an unused commitrfeanof 0.50%
per annum.

Abbreviation Legend

Euro — Euro Dollar

L —LIBOR

PIK — Payment-In-Kind
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments — (continued)

December 31, 2013

Principal Amortized Fair % of Net

Investments Footnotes Headquarters/Industry Amount/Shares Cost value (M Assets
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments 2)
Aderant North America Inc. Atlanta, GA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.75%, Software

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 6/20/2019 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,480,11. $ 1,500,001 0.85%
Ascend Learning, LLC
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 10.00%, Burlington, MA

Euro floor 1.50%, due 12/6/2017 Software $ 10,000,00 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.65%
Atkins Nutritionals Holdings II, Inc. Denver, C(C
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.50%, Beverage, Food, &

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/3/2019 Tobacco $ 17,000,00 16,689,79 17,000,00 9.67%
ATX Networks Holdings Intermediate

Corp., et al West Ajax, Ontario
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash, High Tech Industries

2.00% PIK, due 5/12/2016 3)(4) $ 21,203,01 21,203,01 21,203,01 12.0%%
Binder & Binder National Social Security

Disability Advocates, LLC Haupauge, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 13.00% cash, Services: Consumer

2.00% PIK, due 2/27/2016 3) $ 13,133,22 13,133,22 11,395,29 6.48%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC Lexington, KY
Term Loan-First Lien, 12.50%, Metals & Mining

due 10/9/2016 $ 4,806,07. 4,445,36! 4,547,02. 2.5%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC

Class B Units (5) 36 units 214,28 341,34¢ 0.1%
Total 4,659,65 4,888,37. 2.7¢%
Calero Software, LLC, et al Rochester, NY
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 9.50%, Telecommunications

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 6/5/2019 $ 10,000,00 9,802,54 9,802,54 5.57%
Managed Mobility Holdings, LLC Partnerst

Units (5) 8,507 units 500,00t 500,00( 0.28%

Total 10,302,54 10,302,54 5.85%
Colford Capital Holdings, LLC New York, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.25%, Finance

due 5/31/2018 (4)(6) $ 12,500,00 12,242,88 12,491,25 7.1%
ConvergeOne Holdings Corp. Eagan, MN
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.00%, Telecommunications

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 5/8/2019 $ 12,185,95 12,017,67 12,104,67 6.8¢%
Eating Recovery Center, LLC Denver, CO
Mezzanine Term Loan-Unsecured, Health &

12.00% cash, 1.00% PIK, due 6/28/201 3) Pharmaceuticals $ 18,400,00 18,075,42 18,400,00 10.4€¢%
ERC Group Holdings, LLC

Class A Units 4)(5) 17,528 units 1,647,13 1,708,66 0.97%

Total 19,722,56 20,108,66 11.4%
Empirix Inc. Billerica, MA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 9.50%, Software

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 5/1/2020 7) $ 21,407,85 20,988,49 20,988,49 11.9%
Empirix Holdings |, Inc.

Common Shares, Class A (5) 1,304 shares 1,304,23. 1,304,23 0.7%%



Common Shares, Class B
Total
Grupo HIMA San Pablo, Inc., et al

Term Loan-First Lien, L + 7.00%,
LIBOR floor 1.50%, due 1/31/2018

Term Loan-Second Lien, 13.75%,
due 7/31/2018

Total

®)

San Juan, PR

Health &
Pharmaceuticals
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shares

4,962,501

4,000,00!

13,17- 13,17: 0.01%
22,305,89 22,305,89  12.6&%
4,877,83 4,811,14 2.7%%
3,822,48 3,548,401 2.02%
8,700,32. 8,359,54 4.7¢%
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments — (continued)

December 31, 2013

Principal Amortized Fair % of Net

Investments Footnotes Headquarters/Industry Amount/Shares Cost value Assets
Help Systems Holdings Inc., et al Eden Prairie, MN
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.50%, Software

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 6/28/2020 $ 15,000,00 14,784,68 15,000,00 8.52%
Hostway Corp. Chicago, IL
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.75%, High Tech Industries

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 12/13/2020 $ 6,750,001 6,615,23 6,615,23 3.7¢%
Livingston International, Inc. Toronto, Ontario
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 7.75%, Transportation: Cargo

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/18/2020 4) $ 6,841,73 6,714,63 7,012,78: 3.9%%
Refac Optical Group, et al Blackwood, NJ
Revolver-First Lien, L + 7.50%, Retail

due 9/30/2018 (8) $ 1,100,00! 1,100,00! 1,100,00 0.65%
Term A Loan-First Lien, L + 7.50%,

due 9/30/2018 $ 2,924,82. 2,924,82. 2,924,82. 1.6€%
Term B Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50% cash,

1.75% PIK, due 9/30/2018 ?3) $ 6,151,85: 6,151,85: 6,151,85: 3.5%

Total 10,176,67 10,176,67 5.7<%
Securus Technologies Holdings, Inc Dallas, TX
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 7.75%, Telecommunications

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/30/2021 $ 8,500,001 8,434,30! 8,500,001 4.82%
Snowman Holdings, LLC, et al Lebanon, IN
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.50%, Transportation: Cargo

due 2/15/2019 9) $ 11,169,11 11,169,11 11,169,11 6.35%
SPM Capital, LLC Bloomington, MN
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 5.50%, Healthcare & Pharmaceutici

LIBOR floor 1.50%, due 10/31/2017 $ 7,406,25! 7,284,82. 7,406,25! 4.21%
SOAD, LLC Tarrytown, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 11.00% cash, Media: Broadcasting &

1.25% PIK, due 4/30/2019 3) Subscription $ 500000t 4,914,72. 4,912,501 2.7%
SQAD Holdco, Inc.

Common Shares, Series A (5) 5,000 shares 50,00( 50,00( 0.05%
SQAD Holdco, Inc.

Preferred Shares, Series A (5) 4,500 shares 450,00( 450,00( 0.26%

Total 5,414,72. 5,412,501 3.08%
Studer Group, LLC (The) Gulf Breeze, FL
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00%, Services: Business

due 1/31/2019 (20) $ 16,910,42 16,910,42 16,910,42 9.61%
Telecommunications Management, LLC Sikeston, MO
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.00%, Media: Broadcasting &

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 10/30/2020 Subscription $ 8,000,001 7,925,24 8,120,001 4.62%
Telular Corp. Chicago, IL
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 8.00%, High Tech Industries

Euro floor 1.25%, due 6/24/2020 $ 7,500,001 7,393,55 7,500,001 4.2¢%
Transaction Network Services, Inc. Reston, VA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.00%, Telecommunications

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 8/14/2020 $ 2,550,001 2,514,92. 2,584,27. 1.47%

Varel International Energy Funding Corp.




LIBOR floor 1.50%, due 7/17/2017

Woodstream Corporation

Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured,
11.50%, due 2/28/2017

Woodstream Group, Inc.

Senior Subordinated Debt-Unsecured,
11.50%, due 2/28/2017

Total Non-controlled, non-affiliated
investments

(11)

(11)

Energy: Oil & Gas
Lititz, PA

Consumer Goods:

Non-Durable
Lititz, PA

Consumer Goods:

Non-Durable
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$

$

9,700,001

9,137,72

862,27¢

9,538,73i 9,700,001 5.51%
8,825,56! 8,898,31 5.06%
844,12 839,68 0.4&%
$277,004,46 $277,504,51 157.&%
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Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments — (continued)
December 31, 2013

Principal Amortized Fair % of Net

Investments Footnotes Headquarters/Industry Amount/Shares Cost value @ Assets
Cash Equivalents
United States Treasury Bills 0%,

due 01/30/2014 2) $ 10,000,00 10,000,00 9,999,901 5.65%
Total Short-Term Investments $ 10,000,00 $ 9,999,901 5.65%
LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER

ASSETS (111,612,89) (63.46%
NET ASSETS $175,891,51 10C%

(1) See Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statemfenta discussion of the methodologies used toesakcurities in the
portfolio.

(2) The Company’s obligations to the lenders of@nedit Facility are secured by a first prioritycaaty interest in all non-
controlled non-affiliated investments and cash,dxdlude Cash Equivalents.

(3) Represents a payment-in-kind security. At thom of the issuer, interest can be paid in castash and PIK. The
percentage of PIK shown is the maximum PIK thatlbarlected by the company.

(4) The investment is not a qualifying asset uriderinvestment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
(5) Security is non-income producing.

(6) Excluded from the investment above is an unéghirm loan commitment in an amount not to ex&i&J500,000, an

interest rate of 12.25% and a maturity of May 311 This investment is accruing an unused comnmtifez of 0.50% per
annum.

(7) Excluded from the investment above is a delajrasv term loan commitment in an amount not to er’ck7,542,150, an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 9.50%, LIBOR floor 1%0and a maturity of May 1, 2020. This investmeraécruing an
unused commitment fee of 0.50% per annum.

(8) Excluded from the investment above is an undreavolving loan commitment in an amount not toemda $900,000. This
investment is accruing an unused commitment f&e%#% per annum. This investment amended its ntatiar9/30/18 on
9/30/13.

(9) This investment amended its maturity to 2/153h98/15/13. The interest rate was amended from ddsh pay plus 2% PIK
to 12.5% cash pay.

(10)This investment amended its maturity to 1/31/198/13. The interest rate was amended from 12% jgag plus 2% Pl}
to 12% cash pay.

(11)Amended maturity to 2/18/17 on 3/4/13. Amended ratkl.5% fixed on 12/6/13.

Abbreviation Legend
PIK — Payment-In-Kind
L —LIBOR

Euro — Euro Dollar
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Stellus Capital Investment Corporation (“we”, “usdur” and the “Company”) was formed as a Marylawmiporation on
May 18, 2012 (“Inception”) and is an externally raged, closed-end, non-diversified investment mamagé company which
is applying the guidance of Accounting Standarddiftmtion (“ASC") Topic 946 Financial Services Investment Companies
The Company has elected and qualified to be tresdexdbusiness development company under the mgasCompany Act of
1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”) and as a regliiateestment company (“RIC”) for U.S. federal inoemax purposes. The
Company’s investment activities are managed byust€apital Management, LLC (“Stellus Capital” bet‘Advisor”).

On November 7, 2012, the Company priced its infiidblic offering (the “Offering”), at a price of $100 per share.
Through its initial public offering the Company d@®,200,000 shares (including 1,200,000 sharesigftr¢the underwriters’
exercise of the overallotment option) for grosscpexls of $138,000,000. Including the Offering, @lmenpany has raised
$180,409,145 including (i) $500,010 of seed capitaitributed by Stellus Capital, (ii) $12,749,98@iprivate placement to
certain purchasers, including persons and entisssciated with Stellus Capital, and (iii) $29,18%, in connection with the
acquisition of the Company’s initial portfolio. Ti@ompany’s shares are currently listed on the Nenkstock Exchange
under the symbol “SCM”.

Immediately prior to the pricing of the Offeringetompany acquired its initial portfolio of assketis$165,235,169 in cash
and $29,159,145 in shares of the Company’s comnuak,sor $194,394,314 in total. The cash portiothefacquisition of the
initial portfolio was financed by (i) borrowing $25185,179 under a credit facility (“Bridge Facilityvith Sun Trust and (ii)
using the $12,749,990 of proceeds received in adiorewith the private placement. The Bridge Fégitiad a maturity date of
not more than 7 days after the pricing date ofQfffering. Borrowings under the Bridge Facility bangéerest at the highest of
(i) a prime rate, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate fIlE% and (iii) Libor plus 1.00%. The Company utieginet proceeds from the
Offering together with borrowings under the Compamgvolving credit facility with various borrowe(the “Credit Facility”)
(see Note 9) to repay in full the outstanding inddhess under the Bridge Facility, at which pdiet Bridge Facility
terminated.

The Company has established wholly owned subsedia8CIC — ERC Blocker 1, Inc., SCIC — SKP Blockemnc.,
SCIC — APE Blocker 1, Inc., SCIC — HUF Blocker h¢l and SCIC — Hollander Blocker 1, Inc. which strictured as
Delaware entities, to hold equity or equity-like@stments in portfolio companies organized as édhltability companies, or
LLCs (or other forms of pass-through entities) X@hle Subsidiaries”). The Taxable Subsidiariescaresolidated for U.S.
GAAP reporting purposes, and the portfolio investtadneld by them are included in the consolidateainfcial statements.

On June 14, 2013, we formed Stellus Capital SBIMELEhe “SBIC subsidiary”, and its general partr&ellus Capital
SBIC GP, LLC., as wholly owned subsidiaries of @@mpany, in Delaware. On June 20, 2014, the SBbSidiary received a
license from the Small Business Administration;®BA” to operate as a Small Business Investment amy (“SBIC”) under
Section 301(c) of the Small Business Investment @aomg Act of 1958. The SBIC subsidiary is consokdiafior U.S. GAAP
reporting purposes, and the portfolio investmestd by it are included in the consolidated finahstatements.

The SBIC license allows the SBIC subsidiary to oblaverage by issuing SBA-guaranteed debentutdgest to the
issuance of a capital commitment by the SBA anérmthistomary procedures. SBA-guaranteed deberdueason-recourse,
interest only debentures with interest payable samually and have a ten year maturity. The praicgmount of SBA-
guaranteed debentures is not required to be paidtprmaturity but may be prepaid at any time withpenalty. The interest
rate of SBA-guaranteed debentures is fixed on a-aanual basis at a market-driven spread over Tr&sury Notes with 10-
year maturities. The SBA, as a creditor, will havsuperior claim to the SBIC’s assets over the Gomis stockholders in the
event the Company liquidates the SBIC subsidiatherSBA exercises its remedies under the SBA-giaea
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

debentures issued by the SBIC subsidiary upon antef default. See footnote (2) of the Consolide&gehedule of
Investments. SBA regulations currently limit theamt that an SBIC may borrow to a maximum of $15ian when it has at
least $75 million in regulatory capital, receivesamital commitment from the SBA and has been fijincan examination by the
SBA subsequent to licensing. As of December 3142ftife SBIC subsidiary had $32.5 million of regatgtcapital, which
implies a maximum borrowing of $65 million, subjéatthe criteria discussed above. As of DecembgeP314, the SBIC
subsidiary had $16.25 million of SBA-guaranteedetebres outstanding.

The Company’s investment objective is to maximimetbtal return to its stockholders in the forntofrent income and
capital appreciation through debt and related gdoitestments in middle-market companies. The Coms&eks to achieve its
investment objective by originating investmentsraiily in private U.S. middle-market companies {tglly those with $5.0
million to $50.0 million of EBITDA (earnings beforaterest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatidmyugh first lien, second
lien, unitranche and mezzanine debt financing, witiresponding equity co-investments. It sourcesstments primarily
through the extensive network of relationships thatprincipals of Stellus Capital have developéth financial sponsor firms,
financial institutions, middle-market companies,nagement teams and other professional intermesliarie

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigade been prepared on the accrual basis of acaguntconformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America (“GAAP”) and pursuanttte requirements for
reporting on Form 10-K and Article 10 of regulatisX.

In the opinion of management, the consolidatediiiel results included herein contain all adjusttegeonsisting solely of
normal recurring accruals, considered necessarhéfair presentation of financial statementstffier periods included herein.
Certain reclassifications have been made to cept@m period balances to conform with current preation. The Company
reclassified certain prior year fees related tc€itsdit Facility on the Consolidated Statement€a$h Flows to more clearly
distinguish cash payments from the amortizatiotho$e fees.

In accordance with Regulation S-X under the Seiesri\ct of 1933, as amended and Securities Exchangef 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), the Company doegoosolidate portfolio company investments.

The accounting records of the Company are maindamé).S. dollars.

Portfolio Investment Classification

The Company classifies its portfolio investmentthwie requirements of the 1940 Act, (a) “Controldstments” are
defined as investments in which the Company owneerttan 25% of the voting securities or has righthaintain greater than
50% of the board representation, (b) “Affiliate &stiments” are defined as investments in which th@gany owns between
5% and 25% of the voting securities and does ne hights to maintain greater than 50% of the beapdesentation, and (c)
“Non-controlled, non-affiliate investments” are ohefd as investments that are neither Control Ineests or Affiliate
Investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31, 2014, cash balances totaling $25686exceeded the FDIC insurance protection lel#260,000 by
$1,796,563 subjecting the Company to risk relaetthé uninsured balance. All of the Company’s adegbosits are held at large
established high credit quality financial institrts and management believes that risk of loss @dedavith any uninsured
balances is remote.

91




TABLE OF CONTENTS

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

Cash consists of bank demand deposits. We deeaircéliS. Treasury Bills and other high-quality, giterm debt
securities as cash equivalents. At the end of @schl quarter, we may take proactive steps to renae are in compliance with
the RIC diversification requirements under Subchiapt of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”),ahhére dependent upon
the composition of our total assets at quarter @& may accomplish this in several ways, inclugingchasing U.S. Treasury
Bills and closing out positions after quarter-emdemmporarily drawing down on the Credit Faciliseé Note 9).

On December 31, 2014, we held no U.S. Treasurg.Bllh December 31, 2013, we held approximatelyrillion of U.S.
Treasury Bills with a 25 day maturity purchasedgsbl million in margin cash and the proceeds feo#® million short term
loan from Raymond James. The loan had an effeativeial interest rate of approximately 6.25%. Orudan2, 2014, we sold
the Treasury Bills, repaid the remainder of thenlbam Raymond James and received back the $lomifiiargin payment (net
of fees and expenses of $1,875).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated statementss¥ta and liabilities in conformity with GAAP reges management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamount of assets and liabilities, and disclsi contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeantsl the reported amounts of revenues and expénseg the reporting period.
Changes in the economic environment, financial etarlind any other parameters used in determineggtbstimates could
cause actual results to differ materially.

Deferred Financing Costs, Prepaid Loan Fees on SB&bentures and Prepaid Loan Structure Fees

Deferred financing costs, prepaid loan fees on @BBentures and prepaid loan structure fees cafdiseés and expenses
paid in connection with the closing of our creditifity notes and SBA debentures and are capithbzahe time of payment.
Deferred financing costs are amortized using treagitt line method over the term of the credit lfici

Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred offering costs consist of fees and expemsrurred in connection with the offer and sal¢hef Company’s
common stock and bonds, including legal, accounpnigting fees and other related expenses, asasalbsts incurred in
connection with the filing of a shelf registratistatement. These costs are capitalized when irtamnd recognized as a
reduction of offering proceeds when the offeringdraes effective.

Investments

As a business development company, the Companyaeiikerally invest in illiquid loans and securitiesluding debt and
equity securities of middle-market companies. Urtecedures established by the board of directbesCompany intends to
value investments for which market quotations aealily available at such market quotations. The @amy will obtain these
market values from an independent pricing servicat the median between the bid and ask pricesraatdrom at least two
brokers or dealers (if available, otherwise byiagipal market maker or a primary market dealegbfand equity securities
that are not publicly traded or whose market pranesnot readily available will be valued at faiwe as determined in good
faith by our board of directors. Such determinatbfiair values may involve subjective judgments astimates. The Company
will also engage independent valuation providenetoew the valuation of each portfolio investmtret does not have a
readily available market quotation at least twinawally.

Investments purchased within 60 days of maturity lvé valued at cost plus accreted discount, orus@mortized
premium, which approximate fair value. With respectinquoted securities, our board of directorgetber with our
independent valuation providers, will value eackestment considering, among other measures, disedweash flow models,
comparisons of financial ratios of peer comparties are public and
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

other factors. When an external event such asehpse transaction, public offering or subsequenitygale occurs, the board
will use the pricing indicated by the external evencorroborate and/or assist us in our valuatBetause the Company
expects that there will not be a readily availahkrket for many of the investments in our portfpttee Company expects to
value most of our portfolio investments at fairuabs determined in good faith by the board ofctiims using a documented
valuation policy and a consistently applied valoiagprocess. Due to the inherent uncertainty ofrdgteng the fair value of
investments that do not have a readily availableketavalue, the fair value of our investments méfedsignificantly from the
values that would have been used had a readilyadaimarket value existed for such investmentd,tha differences could be
material.

In following these approaches, the types of factioas will be taken into account in fair value jmig investments will
include, as relevant, but not be limited to:

e available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction cvaiges;
e applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

e call protection provisions;

e information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

« the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits,earnings and discounted cash flows and thé&eteam which it
does business;

e comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a

« the principal market and enterprise values.

Revenue Recognition

We record interest income on an accrual basisg@ttient such interest is deemed collectible. and and debt securities
with contractual payment-in-kind (“PIK") interesthich represents contractual interest accrued ddddato the loan balance
that generally becomes due at maturity, we do cotue PIK interest if the portfolio company valaatindicates that such PIK
interest is not collectible. We will not accruedrgst on loans and debt securities if we have resdoubt our ability to collect
such interest. Loan origination fees, original esgliscount and market discount or premium are akiged, and we then accrete
or amortize such amounts using the effective istarethod as interest income. Upon the prepaynfemtaan or debt security,
any unamortized loan origination fee is recordethsest income. We record prepayment premiumigams and debt
securities as other income. Dividend income, if,amyl be recognized on the ex-dividend date.

Net Realized Gains or Losses and Net Change in Wtimed Appreciation or Depreciation

We measure realized gains or losses by the differéetween the net proceeds from the repaymert®asad the
amortized cost basis of the investment, withouarddo unrealized appreciation or depreciation ipesly recognized. Net
change in unrealized appreciation or deprecia@édfiects the change in portfolio investment valuesrdy the reporting period,
including any reversal of previously recorded ulizea appreciation or depreciation, when gainesés are realized.
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Payment-in-Kind Interest

We have investments in our portfolio that contalPlid interest provision. Any PIK interest is addedhe principal balance
of such investments and is recorded as incombeipbrtfolio company valuation indicates that sBtK interest is collectible.
In order to maintain our status as a RIC, substiytll of this income must be paid out to stodkless in the form of
dividends, even if we have not collected any cash.

Investment Transaction Costs

Costs that are material associated with an investin@nsaction, including legal expenses, are oediin the cost basis of
purchases and deducted from the proceeds of sallessisuch costs are reimbursed by the borrower.

Receivables and Payables for Unsettled SecuritieEnaction

The Company records all investments on the tratke loksis.

U.S. Federal Income Taxes

The Company has elected and qualified to be trezgelRIC under Subchapter M of the Code, and¢oat@in a manner
so as to qualify for the tax treatment applicabl&tCs. In order to qualify as a RIC, among otlhémds, the Company is
required to timely distribute to its stockholdetdemst 90% of investment company taxable incorm@gedined by the Code, for
each year. So long as the Company maintains itsssés a RIC, it generally will not pay corporatedl U.S. federal income
taxes on any ordinary income or capital gains ithdistributes at least annually to its stockhotdas dividends. Rather, any tax
liability related to income earned by the Compagpresents obligations of the Company’s investodsveiti not be reflected in
the consolidated financial statements of the Compan

To avoid a 4% federal excise tax on undistributachiags, the Company is required to distribute emdbndar year the sum
of (i) 98% of its ordinary income for such calengtaar (ii) 98.2% of its net capital gains for theeeyear period ending October
31 of that calendar year (iii) any income recogdjzsut not distributed, in preceding years and aictvthe Company paid no
federal income tax. The Company, at its discretinay choose not to distribute all of its taxableoime for the calendar year
and pay a non-deductible 4% excise tax on thismmedf the Company chooses to do so, all othegthlreing equal, this
would increase expenses and reduce the amounahlesib be distributed to stockholders. To the exieat the Company
determines that its estimated current year anaxabie income will be in excess of estimated curyear dividend
distributions from such taxable income, the Compatyrues excise taxes on estimated excess taxaolaé as taxable income
is earned. The Company incurred $0 and $24,00Rdise tax expense for the years ended Decemb@034, and December
31, 2013, respectively.

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or eggeotbe taken in the course of preparing its ¢ééxrns to determine
whether the tax positions are “more-likely-than®raftbeing sustained by the applicable tax autgofitax positions deemed to
meet a “more-likely-than-not” threshold would beaseded as a tax benefit or expense in the appbgadiod. Although the
Company files federal and state tax returns, itpntax jurisdiction is federal. The 2012 and 2@é&8eral tax years for the
Company remain subject to examination by the IatielRevenue Service.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 timepany had not recorded a liability for any ungured tax
positions. Management'’s evaluation of uncertainp@asitions may be subject to review and adjustraéatlater date based
upon factors including, but not limited to, an amirgg analysis of tax laws, regulations and inteiqtiens thereof. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and pemraltielated to income taxes, if applicable, in gelrend administrative
expenses. There were no such expenses for thegreded December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
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The Company has direct wholly owned subsidiarias lfave elected to be taxable entities. The Taxablesidiaries permit
the Company to hold equity investments in portfalionpanies which are “pass through” entities fargarposes and continue
to comply with the “source income” requirementstedmed in RIC tax provisions of the Code. The Tdg&ubsidiaries are not
consolidated with the Company for income tax pugsaend may generate income tax expense, bendfithamelated tax
assets and liabilities, as a result of their owimiprsf certain portfolio investments. The income ¢éxpense, or benefit, if any,
and related tax assets and liabilities are refteictéhe Company’s consolidated financial statement

The Taxable Subsidiaries use the liability methoddcounting for income taxes. Deferred tax asssddiabilities are
recorded for temporary differences between thd#esis of assets and liabilities and their repoai@dunts in the financial
statements, using statutory tax rates in effectrferyear in which the temporary differences argeeied to reverse. A valuation
allowance is provided against deferred tax assh&sit is more likely than not that some portiorabiof the deferred tax asset
will not be realized.

Taxable income generally differs from net incomefioancial reporting purposes due to temporary peananent
differences in the recognition of income and expsen3axable income generally excludes net unrehfippreciation or
depreciation, as investment gains or losses armoloided in taxable income until they are realized

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and Dece8thb2013, the Company recorded deferred incomexpense of
$288,122 and $0, respectively, related to the Tlax8hbsidiaries. In addition, as of December 31428nd December 31,
2013, the Company had a deferred tax liability 288122 and $0, respectively.

Earnings per Share

Basic per share calculations are computed utiliigweighted average number of shares of comnoak stutstanding for
the period. The Company has no common stock earitalAs a result, there is no difference betwelered earnings per
share and basic per share amounts.

Paid In Capital

The Company records the proceeds from the sats obmmon stock on a net basis to (i) capital sk (ii) paid in
capital in excess of par value, excluding all cossitins and marketing support fees.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdgssaued by the Financial Accounting Standards @{#&ASB”) or
other standards setting bodies that are adoptéldeb@ompany as of the specified effective date. ABU2013-08& inancial
Services — Investment Companies (Topic)348mendments to the Scope, Measurement and Disel&Rquirementaas
effective for an entity’s interim and annual refrogtperiods in the fiscal years beginning after @aber 15, 2013. Accordingly,
the Company has adopted the updated guidance #iaddsethat the impact is limited to our disclostequirements. In August
2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15 — Disclosafrdncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Comtie as a Going
Concern. In connection with the preparation ofrimbeand annual reports, Management will evaluatetivbr conditions or
events exist that raise substantial doubt abouettiey’s ability to continue as a going concerithivi one year after the date
that the financial statements are issued (or witime year after the date the financial statemartsailable to be issued, when
applicable), and, if so, disclose that fact. Additilly, Management must evaluate and disclose vehdthplans will alleviate
that doubt. The guidance is effective for the Conyplaeginning January 1, 2016. The Company belithaisthe impact of this
and other recently issued standards that are festtiee will not have a material impact on its colidated financial statements
upon adoption.
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Investment Advisory Agreement

The Company entered into an investment advisorgeagent with Stellus Capital. Pursuant to this agesg, the Company
has agreed to pay to Stellus Capital a base aferiaf 1.75% of gross assets, including assethpsed with borrowed funds
or other forms of leverage and excluding cash @sth @quivalents, and an annual incentive fee.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and Dece&tb2013 and for the period from inception (May 2812) to
December 31, 2012, the Company recorded an expenbase management fees of $5,202,990, $4,24260%527,034,
respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and Decer@beP013, respectively, $1,360,019 and $1,176,%8be payable to
Stellus Capital.

The incentive fee has two components, investmemnie and capital gains, as follows:

Investment Income Incentive Fee

The investment income component (“Investment Incémeentive Fee”) is calculated, and payable, quigrte arrears
based on the Company’s pre-incentive fee net invest income for the immediately preceding calempearter, subject to a
cumulative total return requirement and to defesfalon-cash amounts. The pre-incentive fee netstient income, which is
expressed as a rate of return on the value of tmep@ny’s net assets attributable to the Comparmyiseon stock, for the
immediately preceding calendar quarter, will ha&02 (which is 8.0% annualized) hurdle rate (atferred to as the
“Hurdle”). Pre-incentive fee net investment incomeans interest income, dividend income and anyr ategeme accrued
during the calendar quarter, minus the Companyésaimg expenses for the quarter excluding thenitiee fee. Pre-incentive
fee net investment income includes, in the casevafstments with a deferred interest feature (ascbriginal issue discount,
debt instruments with PIK interest and zero cougerurities), accrued income that the Company hiagatoeceived in cash.
The Advisor receives no incentive fee for any cdserguarter in which the Company’s pre-incentiverfet investment income
does not exceed the Hurdle. Subject to the cunveladital return requirement described below, theigar receives 100% of
the Company'’s pre-incentive fee net investmentimedor any calendar quarter with respect to thatiguo of the pre-incentive
net investment income for such quarter, if anyt éx@eeds the Hurdle but is less than 2.5% (wlEcDi0% annualized) of net
assets (also referred to as the “Catch-up”) and%@f the Company’s pre-incentive fee net investnrome for such
calendar quarter, if any, greater than 2.5% (10a@%ualized) of net assets.

The foregoing incentive fee is subject to a totaim requirement, which provides that no incentaéesin respect of the
Company’s pre-incentive fee net investment incosngayable except to the extent 20.0% of the cuiwelaket increase in net
assets resulting from operations over the thereotiand 11 preceding calendar quarters exceedsithelative incentive fees
accrued and/or paid for the 11 preceding quartersther words, any Investment Income Incentive thag¢is payable in a
calendar quarter is limited to the lesser of (iy&26f the amount by which the Company’s pre-incenfae net investment
income for such calendar quarter exceeds the 21 0%d) subject to the Catch-up, and (ii) (x) 20%ef cumulative net
increase in net assets resulting from operationthéthen current and 11 preceding quan@raus(y) the cumulative incentive
fees accrued and/or paid for the 11 preceding dalequarters. For the foregoing purpose, the “catiug net increase in net
assets resulting from operations” is the amoungoditive, of the sum of pre-incentive fee net stagent income, realized gains
and losses and unrealized appreciation and deficecE the Company for the then current and 1T@déng calendar quarters.
In addition, the Advisor is not paid the portionsefch incentive fee that is attributable to def@irgerest until the Company
actually receives such interest in cash.
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For the years ended December 31, 2014 and Dece3tb2013, the Company incurred $3,428,357 and $33538,
respectively, and an immaterial amount for theqeeffom inception (May 18,2012 to December 31, 2@f2nvestment
Income Incentive Fees. As of December 31, 20140mwkmber 31, 2013, $1,121,556 and $1,056,942, cteply, of such
incentive fees are payable to the Advisor, of wi$#ei5,577 and $641,516, respectively, are currgrajable (as explained
below). As of December 31, 2014 and December 31328205,979 and $109,959, respectively, of ingerfes incurred but
not paid by the Company were generated from defeénterest (i.e. PIK, certain discount accretiod deferred interest) and
are not payable until such amounts are receivedsh.

Capital Gains Incentive Fee

GAAP requires that the incentive fee accrual comrsidhe cumulative aggregate realized gains arsgé$osnd unrealized
capital appreciation or depreciation of investmanmtether financial instruments in the calculatias,an incentive fee would be
payable if such realized gains and losses and lizedacapital appreciation or depreciation werdized, even though such
realized gains and losses and unrealized capipaibajation or depreciation is not permitted to basidered in calculating the
fee actually payable under the investment manageaggaement (the “Capital Gains Incentive Fee"erEhcan be no
assurance that unrealized appreciation or depreciafll be realized in the future. Accordingly,dufee, as calculated and
accrued, would not necessarily be payable undentlestment management agreement, and may neysidhédased upon the
computation of incentive fees in subsequent peribdsthe years ended December 31, 2014 and Dec&hp2013 and for the
period from inception (May 18, 2012) to December&112, the Company incurred $(305,467), $305,46d,$0, respectively,
of incentive fees related to the Capital Gains iise Fee. As of December 31, 2014 and Decembe2(@®113, $0 and $305,467
of Capital Gains Incentive Fees were payable tcAiihdsor, subject to the limitations set forth b&lo

A portion of the Capital Gains Incentive Fee mayhgable to the Advisor on an annual basis. Thigoof the fee is
determined and payable in arrears as of the eedaf calendar year (or upon termination of thestnaent management
agreement, as of the termination date). This corpbis equal to 20.0% of the Company’s cumulatiygregate realized
capital gains from inception through the end of teendar year, computed net of the cumulativeegge realized capital
losses and cumulative aggregate unrealized cajg@fakciation through the end of such year. Theeagde amount of any
previously paid capital gains incentive fees istsadied from such capital gains incentive fee dated. As of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, no Capital Gains IheeRee was currently payable to the Advisor.

For the years ending December 31, 2012 and Decedih@013, the Advisor agreed to waive its incenfee to the extent
required to support an annualized dividend yiel®.6P%6 (to be paid on a quarterly basis) based emptite per share of our
common stock in connection with the Offering. Thavisor has entered into no such agreement witiCtimapany for periods
after December 31, 2013. While under no obligat@do so, the Advisor waived incentive fees of $9,226 for the year
ended December 31, 2014. Such waiver in no wayiénpthat the Advisor will waive incentive fees imyduture period. For
the year ended December 31, 2013, the Advisor wldiveestment Income Incentive Fees of $956,525aminmaterial
amount for the period from inception (May 18, 20f@pecember 31, 2012.
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The following tables summarize the components efiticentive fees discussed above:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Investment Income Incentive Fees Incurred $3,428,35  $3,511,37:
Capital Gains Incentive Fee Incurred (305,46 305,46
Incentive Fees Incurred (before waiver) $3,122,891  $3,816,84
Investment Income Incentive Fees Waived (1,399,22) (956,52))
Net Incentive Fee Expense $1,723,66. $2,860,31
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Investment Income Incentive Fee Currently Payable $ 91557 $ 641,51t
Investment Income Incentive Fee Deferred 205,97¢ 109,95¢
Capital Gains Incentive Fee Payable — 305,46°
Incentive Fees Payable $ 1,121,550 $ 1,056,94.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 timep@ny was due $0 and $43,450, respectively, froataded party
of Stellus Capital for reimbursement of expenseéd foa by the Company that were the responsibdityhe related party. The
amount due to the Company is included in the CadastEd Statements of Assets and Liabilities.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and Dece8tib2013 and for the period from inception (May 2812) to
December 31, 2012, the Company recorded an expelasimg to director fees of $374,509, $350,000@, 409,439,
respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and DecerBbeP013 $0 and $96,000, respectively, were payaidéing to director
fees.

We received exemptive relief from the SEC to ccestwvith investment funds managed by Stellus Claptiare doing so is
consistent with our investment strategy as weligdicable law (including the terms and conditiohshe exemptive order
issued by the SEC). Under the terms of the rekefmitting us to co-invest with other funds manabgdstellus Capital, a
“required majority” (as defined in Section 57(o)tbé 1940 Act) of our independent directors muskenzertain conclusions in
connection with a co-investment transaction, intlgd1) the terms of the proposed transactionpiticlg the consideration to
be paid, are reasonable and fair to us and ouklsddders and do not involve overreaching of uswrsiockholders on the part
of any person concerned and (2) the transactioarisistent with the interests of our stockholdei ia consistent with our
investment objectives and strategies. We interambtmvest, subject to the conditions included i& &xemptive order we
received from the SEC, with a private credit funanaged by Stellus Capital that has an investmeategly that is identical to
our investment strategy. We believe that such gestments may afford us additional investment opmities and an ability to
achieve greater diversification.

License Agreement

We have entered into a license agreement withuSt€hpital under which Stellus Capital has agreegtant us a non-
exclusive, royalty-free license to use the namelt& Capital.” Under this agreement, we have htrig use the “Stellus
Capital” name for so long as Stellus Capital or ohits affiliates remains our investment advigdther than with respect to
this limited license, we have no legal right to tBeéellus Capital” name. This license agreement sginain in effect for so long
as the investment advisory agreement with Stellysit@l is in effect.
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Administration Agreement

We have entered into an administration agreemeht Stellus Capital pursuant to which Stellus Capiidl furnish us with
office facilities and equipment and will provide wgh the clerical, bookkeeping, recordkeeping atfter administrative
services necessary to conduct day-to-day operatiémder this administration agreement, Stellus @apiill perform, or
oversee the performance of, our required adminigéraervices, which includes, among other thitgsng responsible for the
financial records which we are required to maintaid preparing reports to our stockholders andrtefited with the SEC.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and Dece8hb2013 and for the period from inception (May 2812) to
December 31, 2012, the Company recorded expensig)adf429, $443,632, and $62,716, respectivelgting to the
administration agreement. As of December 31, 20it¥Zecember 31, 2013, $208,643 and $135,170, riesplgcremained
payable to Stellus Capital relating to the admiat&n agreement.

Indemnifications

The investment advisory agreement provides thagrawillful misfeasance, bad faith or gross neglice in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the eskdisregard of its duties and obligations unueirtvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital and its officers, marmgmartners, agents, employees, controlling peraod members, and any
other person or entity affiliated with it, are ¢letil to indemnification from the Company for anyrdayes, liabilities, costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ feeaaralints reasonably paid in settlement) arising fiteerendering of Stellus
Capital’s services under the investment advisorgament or otherwise as our investment adviser.

NOTE 3 — DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions are generally declared by the Comfmhgard of directors each calendar quarter anogreized as
distribution liabilities on the ex-dividend datehd distribution frequency was changed from quarterimonthly as of January
20, 2014. The Company intends to distribute ndize@d gains (.e., net capital gains in excess of net capital Igsseany, at
least annually. The stockholder distributions,nf awill be determined by the board of directorsyAlistribution to
stockholders will be declared out of assets legalgilable for distribution.

The following table reflects the Company’s disttibns declared and paid or to be paid on its comstook:

Amount
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share
December 7, 2018) December 21, 201 December 27,201 $ 0.180(
March 7, 2013 March 21, 2013 March 28, 2013 $ 0.340(
June 7, 2013 June 21, 2013 June 28, 2013 $ 0.340(
August 21, 2013 September 5, 201 September 27,201 $ 0.340(
November 22, 201 December 9, 201: December 23,201 $ 0.340(
December 27, 2013 January 15, 2014 January 24,2014 $ 0.065(
January 20, 2014 January 31, 2014 February 14,2014 $ 0.113¢
January 20, 2014 February 28, 2014 March 14, 2014 $ 0.113¢
January 20, 2014 March 31, 2014 April 15, 2014 $ 0.113¢
April 17, 2014 April 30, 2014 May 15, 2014 $ 0.113¢
April 17, 2014 May 30, 2014 June 16, 2014 $ 0.113¢
April 17, 2014 June 30, 2014 July 15, 2014 $ 0.113¢
July 7, 2014 July 31, 2014 August 15,2014 $ 0.113¢
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Amount
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share
July 7, 2014 August 29, 2014 September 15,201 $ 0.113:
July 7, 2014 September 30, 201 October 15,2014 $ 0.113¢
October 15, 2014 October 31, 2014 November 14,201 $ 0.113¢
October 15, 2014 November 28, 201. December 15,201 $ 0.113:
October 15, 2014 December 31, 201 January 15,2015 $ 0.113¢

(1) The amount of the initial distribution was ebjitaan annualized dividend yield of 9.0% basedhenprice per share of our
common stock in connection with the Offering angrigportionately reduced to reflect the numberafdremaining in the
quarter after completion of the Offering.

Unless the stockholder elects to receive its dhigtions in cash, the Company intends to make sisttitbditions in
additional shares of the Company’s common stocleutite Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. Altftodistributions
paid in the form of additional shares of the Conymrommon stock will generally be subject to U&leral, state and local
taxes in the same manner as cash distributionesioxs participating in the Company’s dividend vestment plan will not
receive any corresponding cash distributions witlictv to pay any such applicable taxes. If a stolddroholds shares of the
Company’s common stock in the name of a brokeimantial intermediary, the stockholder should consaich broker or
financial intermediary regarding their electiorrézeive distributions in cash in lieu of shareshef Company’s common stock.
Any distributions reinvested through the issuanfcghares through the Company’s dividend reinvestrpkm will increase the
Company’s gross assets on which the base managéeeeamtd the incentive fee are determined andtpaidellus Capital. Of
the total distributions of $17,501,630 made to ldhatders through December 31, 2014, $15,689,142maie in cash,
$398,505 in 29,573 shares and the remainder ofLl31983 is accrued as of December 31, 2014.

NOTE 4 — PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE

In accordance with the authoritative guidance anva@ue measurements and disclosures under GARPCbmpany
discloses the fair value of its investments inexdnichy that prioritizes the inputs to valuatiochteiques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priorityt@djusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priorityrtoliservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Theagaiel establishes three
levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thahecessible at the measurement date for identinastricted
assets or liabilities;

Level 2 —Quoted prices in markets that are not considerds tactive or financial instruments for which sfgrnt inputs
are observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inputs that @t lsignificant to the fair value measurement andbservable.

The level of an asset or liability within the fa@mlue hierarchy is based on the lowest level ofiapyt that is significant to
the fair value measurement. However, the determoimatf what constitutes “observable” requires digant judgment by
management.

The Company considers whether the volume and Evattivity for the asset or liability have sigmidintly decreased and
identifies transactions that are not orderly iredatining fair value. Accordingly, if the Companytelamines that either the
volume and/or level of activity for an asset oblidy has significantly decreased (from normal ditions for that asset or
liability) or price quotations or observable inpate not associated with orderly transactions giased analysis and
management judgment will be
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required to estimate fair value. Valuation techeguch as an income approach might be appropoiatgoplement or replace
a market approach in those circumstances.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had investmar® iportfolio companies. The total cost and faiue of the

investments were $321,955,480 and $315,965,43dectsely. The composition of our investments aBefember 31, 2014
was as follows

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 76,188,95 $ 75,529,96
Senior Secured — Second Lien 102,353,43 101,556,89
Unsecured Debt 135,536,20 129,276,25
Equity 7,876,88 9,602,31Li
Total Investments $321,955,48 $ 315,965,43

At December 31, 2013, the Company had investmar2$ iportfolio companies. The total cost and faiue of the

investments were $277,004,466 and $277,504,510ectsely. The composition of our investments aBetember 31, 2013
was as follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 48,341,12 $ 48,745,76
Senior Secured — Second Lien 117,166,00 118,171,72
Unsecured Debt 107,318,51 106,219,59
Equity 4,178,82 4,367,42;
Total Investments $277,004,46 $ 277,504,51

The Company’s investment portfolio may contain k#mt are in the form of lines of credit or revnty credit facilities,
which require the Company to provide funding whequested by portfolio companies in accordance thighterms of the
underlying loan agreements. As of December 31, 20it¥December 31, 2013, the Company had threehaee $uch
investments with aggregate unfunded commitmen$l 6f892,150 and $20,942,150, respectively. The Gommaintains
sufficient liquidity to fund such unfunded loan cartments should the need arise.

The fair values of our investments disaggregatealtime three levels of the fair value hierarchydaagpon the lowest level
of significant input used in the valuation as ottBeber 31, 2014 are as follows:

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Securities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Senior Secured — First Lien $ = $ — $ 7552996 $ 75,529,96
Senior Secured — Second Lien — 8,372,501 93,184,39 101,556,89
Unsecured Debt — — 129,276,25 129,276,25
Equity —_ — 9,602,31 9,602,31!
Total Investments $ — $ 8,372,500 $307,592,93 $ 315,965,43
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The fair values of our investments disaggregatemitime three levels of the fair value hierarchydaagpon the lowest level
of significant input used in the valuation as ottBeber 31, 2013 are as follows:

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Securities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Senior Secured — First Lien $ — $ 12,104,67 $ 36,641,09 $ 48,745,76
Senior Secured — Second Lien — 21,084,27 97,087,45 118,171,72
Unsecured Debt — — 106,219,59 106,219,59
Equity — — 4,367,42. 4,367,42;
Total Investments $ — $ 33,188,94 $244,31556 $ 277,504,51

The aggregate values of Level 3 portfolio investta@manged during the year ended December 31, 2@l4s follows:

Senior Securec Senior Securec

Loans — Loans — Unsecured
First Lien Second Lien Debt Equity Total
Fair value at beginning of year $36,641,09 $97,087,45 $106,219,59 $ 4,367,42; $244,315,56
Purchases of investments 56,040,66 10,775,60 27,440,00 3,698,05 97,954,32
Payment-in-kind interest 147,71¢ — 582,31t — 730,03!
Sales and Redemptions (16,740,89)  (13,391,29) — —  (30,132,18)
Realized Gains 168,05: 87,50( — — 255,55:
Change in unrealized depreciation
included in earnings (976,92) (1,599,01)) (5,161,02) 1,536,83 (6,200,12)
Amortization of premium and accretioi
of discount, net 240,24! 224,16( 195,36 — 669,77:
Transfer from Level 2 0 — — — 0
Transfer to Level 2 — — — — —
Fair value at end of year $75,529,96 $93,184,39  $129,276,25 $ 9,602,31i $307,592,93
Change in unrealized depreciation on
Level 3 investments still held as of
December 31, 2014 $ (815,38) $ (1,579,13) $ (5,161,02) $ 1,536,84. $ (6,018,70)

Transfers are reflected at the value of the séesrdt the beginning of the period.
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The aggregate values of Level 3 portfolio investta@manged during the year ended December 31, 2@18s follows:

Senior Secured  Senior Secured

Loans — Loans — Unsecured
First Lien Second Lien Debt Equity Total
Fair value at beginning of period $ 44,014,21. $ 26,477,62 $111,125,13 $1,714,28' $183,331,25
Purchases of investments 25,858,52  104,999,97 20,158,73 2,464,54. 153,481,78
Sales and Redemptions (34,036,21) (25,253,12) (25,000,00) — (84,289,34)
Realized Gains 291,22¢ 203,12! 903,32: — 1,397,67
Change in unrealized depreciation
included in earnings 317,65: 572,53: (1,094,17) 188,59! (15,39¢)
Accretion of discount 195,69! 87,32 126,57¢ — 409,59!
Transfer from Level 2 — — — — —
Transfer to Level 2 —  (20,000,00) — — (10,000,00)
Fair value at end of period $ 36,641,009 $ 97,087,45 $106,219,59 $4,367,42; $244,315,56
Change in unrealized depreciation
Level 3 investments still held as
December 31, 2013 $ 31765 $ 572,53« $ (1,094,17) $ 188,59 $ (15,39¢)

Transfers are reflected at the value of the séesrdt the beginning of the period.
The following is a summary of geographical concatitn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3114

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
New York $ 45,358,67. $ 39,450,45 12.4%
Texas 36,732,71 36,903,83 11.68%
Canada 31,256,25 31,070,19 9.82%
Colorado 27,673,85 28,138,44 8.91%
Florida 24,551,44. 24,463,72 7.7%%
Massachusetts 22,357,01 22,855,75 7.25%
Minnesota 22,047,46 21,826,54 6.91%
Alabama 16,768,37 16,697,58 5.28%
California 15,750,28 15,750,28 4.98%
Indiana 14,059,57 13,951,68 4.42%
lllinois 14,035,05 13,916,80 4.4(%
Pennsylvania 9,713,561 9,525,05! 3.01%
New Jerse! 9,366,35. 8,833,03 2.8(%
Puerto Rico 8,695,87! 8,593,27 2.72%
Missouri 4,958,66- 4,927,511 1.56%
Kentucky 4,471,14. 4,902,49 1.55%

Washington 4,135,38! 4,135,38 1.31%



g

Arizona

Tennessee

3,550,72i 3,550,72i 1.12%
2,478,01! 2,468,67. 0.78%
$321,955,48 $315,965,43 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of geographical concatittn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3113:

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
New York $ 41,093,38 $ 39,601,59 14.27%
Colorado 36,412,35 37,108,66 13.3%
Minnesota 34,087,18 34,510,92 12.44%
Massachusetts 32,305,89 32,305,89 11.6%%
Canada 27,917,64 28,215,79 10.1%%
Texas 17,973,04 18,200,00 6.5€%
Florida 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.0%%
lllinois 14,008,78 14,115,23 5.0%%
Indiana 11,169,11 11,169,11 4.02%
New Jerse! 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Pennsylvania 9,669,69! 9,738,00! 3.51%
Puerto Rico 8,700,32 8,359,54. 3.01%
Missouri 7,925,24. 8,120,00! 2.9%%
Kentucky 4,659,65! 4,888,37. 1.7¢%
Virginia 2,514,92. 2,584,27. 0.92%
Georgia 1,480,11 1,500,001 0.54%

$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%

The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 31140

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
Software $ 41,302,04 $ 41,553,61 13.1%%
Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 35,732,64 36,045,79 11.47%
High Tech Industries 35,671,30 35,527,46 11.22%
Finance 34,879,61 35,404,97 11.21%
Media: Broadcasting & Subscription 29,309,45 29,252,04 9.2€%
Retail 25,116,63 24,583,31 7.7¢%
Telecommunications 18,770,96 18,435,80 5.8%%
Transportation: Cargo 17,898,67. 17,658,44 5.5%
Services: Business 16,910,42 16,822,69 5.32%
Services: Consumer 20,841,37 14,901,22 4.72%
Consumer Goods: Non-Durable 9,713,56! 9,525,05! 3.01%
Beverage, Food, & Tobacco 7,874,911 7,950,00! 2.52%

Transportation & Logistics 5,780,901 5,752,78; 1.82%



B LA LL LI LR~

Chemicals, Plastics, and Rubber
Services: Government

Hotel, Gaming, & Leisure
Energy: Oil & Gas

Construction & Building

4,796,40 4,797,79i 1.52%
3,995,02 4,003,96! 1.27%
3,550,72i 3,550,722 1.12%
2,861,641 2,828,56 0.9%
2,478,01! 2,468,67 0.78%
$321,955,48 $315,965,43 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 31120

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
Software $ 48,570,69 $ 48,805,89 17.5%
Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 35,707,71 35,874,46 12.9%
High Tech Industries 35,211,79 35,318,24 12.7%
Telecommunications 33,269,45 33,491,49 12.0%
Transportation: Cargo 17,883,75 18,181,90 6.55%
Beverage, Food, & Tobacco 16,689,79 17,000,00 6.15%
Services: Business 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.0<%
Media: Broadcasting & Subscription 13,339,96 13,532,50 4.88%
Finance 12,242,88 12,491,25 4.5(%
Services: Consumer 13,133,222 11,395,29 4.1(%
Retail 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Consumer Goods: Non-Durable 9,669,69! 9,738,00! 3.51%
Energy: Oil & Gas 9,538,73 9,700,00! 3.4<%
Metals & Mining 4,659,65! 4,888,37. 1.7¢%

$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%

The following tables are not intended to be alltisove, but, rather, provide a summary of the digant unobservable
inputs used to fair value our Level 3 portfolio @stments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Description: Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range (Average)(l) G

HY credit spreads, -0.8% to0 5.33% (0.74%
Risk free rates Mark  -0.27% to 0.18% (.04%);

Income/Market
First lien debt $ 75,529,96 approact? multiples 8x to 17x (11xy4
HY credit spreads, -1.98% to 2.52% (0.04¥%
Risk free rates Mark  -0.59% to 1.80% (.09%
Income/Market
Second lien debt $ 93,184,39 approacﬂz) multiples 7x to 22x (15x)
HY credit spreads,
Risk free rates Mark  -1.36% to 3.16% (0.23%
Income/Market -0.28% to 0.49% (0.08%
Unsecured debt $ 129,276,25 approacHz) multiples 10x to 16x (12x)
Underwriting
multiple/EBITDA
Equity investments $ 960231 Market approack’ Multiple 2x to 14x (10x)

Total Long Term Level 3
Investments $ 307,592,93

(1) Weighted average based on fair value as of mbee 31, 2014.



(2) Inclusive of not limited to (a) the market apach which is used to determine sufficient entsgpvialue, and (b) the income
approach which is based on discounting future fasfs using an appropriate market yield.

(3) The Company calculates the price of the loadibgounting future cash flows using an appropryaéd calculated as of the
valuation date. This yield is calculated basedhenldan’s yield at the original investment anddgiated as of the valuation
date based on: changes in comparable credit spfeadS&P LCD Leveraged Loan Index), changes infrise interest rati
(per swap rates), and changes in credit quality & estimated shadow rating). Significant movemenany of these
factors would result in a significantly lower (higf) fair value measurement. As an example, the gedAverage)” for first
lien debt instruments in the table above indic#tas the change in the HY spreads between theadaten closed and the
valuation date ranged from -1.98% (-198 basis gditat 2.52% (252 basis points). The average affelhges was 0.4%.
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(4) Median of LTM (last twelve months) EBITDA muites of comparable companies.

(5) The primary significant unobservable input usethe fair value measurement of the Company’stgduvestments is the
EBITDA multiple, or the Multiple. Significant inceses (decreases) in the Multiple in isolation woekllt in a significantl
higher (lower) fair value measurement. To deterniireeMultiple for the market approach, the Compemwsiders current
market trading and/or transaction multiple, poitf@ompany performance (financial ratios) relatiogoublic and private

peer companies and leverage levels, among othier§a€hanges in one or more of these factors aga a similar
directional change on other factors in determirthreyappropriate Multiple to use in the market appho

The following provides quantitative information alhd.evel 3 fair value measurements as of Decembg2®13:

Description: Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range (Average) (3
HY credit spreads, ~ -1.58% t0 .46% (-.95%,
Income/Market Risk free rates .00% to 0.17% (.04%)
First lien debt $ 36,641,09 approact? Market multiples 8x to 14x (10xf¥
HY credit spreads,
Risk free rates -1.41% to 1.40% ('68% |
Income/Market .04% to .81% (.21%)
Second lien debt $ 97,087,45 approacHz) Market multiples 8x to 18x (13x)(4)
HY credit spreads,  -1.27% 10 .2.79% (27%)
Income/Market Risk free rates -.42% to .62% (.15%)
Unsecured debt $ 106,219,59 approacHz) Market multiples 8x to 23x (14x)<4)
Underwriting
multiple/EBITDA
Equity investments $  4,367,42. Market approacl(15) Multiple 5x to 13x (12x)
Total Long Term Level 3
Investments

$ 244,315,56

(1) Weighted average based on fair value as of mbee 31, 2013.

(2) Inclusive of but not limited to (a) the marlagtproach which is used to determine sufficientrpnige value, and (b) the
income approach which is based on discounting éutash flows using an appropriate market yield.

(3) The Company calculates the price of the loadibgounting future cash flows using an appropryédé calculated as of the
valuation date. This yield is calculated basedhanldan’s yield at the original investment anddgiated as of the valuation
date based on: changes in comparable credit sp(gadBarclays high yield indexes), changes in risk free interates (pe
swap rates), and changes in credit quality (viestimated shadow rating). Significant movementsniy of these factors
would result in a significantly lower (higher) faialue measurement. As an example, the “Range &yedt for first lien
debt instruments in the table above indicatesttteathange in the High Yield spreads and the ris& fates between the d
a loan closed and the valuation date ranged fro&8% (-158 basis points) to .46% (46 basis poiftsg average of all
changes was -.95% (-95 basis points).

(4) Median of LTM EBITDA multiples of comparable mpanies.

(5) The primary significant unobservable input usethe fair value measurement of the Company’stgdguvestments is the
EBITDA multiple, or the Multiple. Significant inceses (decreases) in the Multiple in isolation woekllt in a significantl
higher (lower) fair value measurement. To deterniireeMultiple for the market approach, the Compemwsiders current
market trading and/or transaction multiple, poif@ompany performance (financial ratios) relatiogoublic and private
peer companies and leverage levels, among othier§a€hanges in one or more of these factors aga a similar
directional change on other factors in determirthrgyappropriate Multiple to use in the market applho
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NOTE 5 — EQUITY OFFERINGS AND RELATED EXPENSES

On June 5, 2014, we established an at-the-markgtgm through which we may sell, from time to tiaxel at our sole
discretion $50 million of our common stock. The geeds raised, the related underwriting fees, tfegin§ expenses and the
price at which these shares were issued from thiedgef June 5, 2014 through December 31, 2014sarfellows:

Average
Number of Gross Underwriting Offering Offering
Issuance of Common Stock Shares Proceeds fees Expenses Price
Quarter ended June 30, 2014 230,24: $ 3,334,47. $ 50,017 $ 17,467 $ 14.4¢
Quarter ended September 30, 201 121,12: 1,752,86 25,49 12,431 14.45

Quarter ended December 31, 2014 — — — — —

Total

351,36 $ 5,087,33! $ 7551 $ 29,90¢

The Company issued 29,573 shares of common staakgdihe year ended December 31, 2014 in connettitnthe
stockholder distribution reinvestment plan.

Number of Gross Share

Issuance of Common Stock Shares Value Price

January 24, 2014

2,600 $ 36,61¢ $ 14.0i

February 14, 2014 4,64¢ 64,12: 13.8(
March 14, 2014 3,251 45,23: 13.8¢
June 16, 2014 3,05¢ 41,51¢ 13.5¢
July 15, 2014 3,02¢ 41,89¢ 13.8¢
August 15, 2014 3,09( 41,69( 13.4¢
September 30, 2014 3,22¢ 42,03¢ 13.04
October 15, 2014 3,53¢ 42,40¢ 11.9¢
November 14, 201 3,131 42,98’ 13.7:2

Total

29,57: $ 398,50!

The Company issued 63,998 shares of common staakgdihe year ended December 31, 2013 in conneetitinthe
stockholder distribution reinvestment plan.

Number of Gross Share

Issuance of Common Stock Shares Proceeds Price

March 28, 2013

15,24¢ $ 214,70¢ $ 14.0¢

June 28, 2013 15,74° 225,18 14.3(
September 27, 2013 16,20: 229,91 14.1¢
December 22, 2013 16,80( 230,16: 13.7(

Total

63,99¢ $ 899,96
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NOTE 6 — NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS PERCOMMON SHARE

The following information sets forth the computatiof net increase (decrease) in net assets rag@ilim operations per
common share for the years ended December 31,&td Hecember 31, 2013 and for the period endedrbleee31, 2012.

For the period
from Inception

through
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $10,179,14 $17,544,99 $ 1,298,42.
Average common shares 12,281,17 12,059,29 12,035,02
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 08: $ 14t 3 0.11

NOTE 7 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is currently not subject to any maltéegal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is araterial legal
proceeding threatened against us. From time to, tiveenay be a party to certain legal proceedindbérordinary course of
business, including proceedings relating to themeiment of our rights under contracts with outtfotio companies. While the
outcome of these legal proceedings cannot be pesetiith certainty, we do not expect that thesegedings will have a
material effect upon our business, financial caadibr results of operations.

As of December 31, 2014 the Company had $10.9anithf unfunded commitments to provide debt finagdmthree of
our portfolio companies. As of December 31, 20E8Gompany had $20.9 million of unfunded commitmeatsrovide debt
financing to three of our portfolio companies.
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For the year

For the year

For the period
from Inception
(May 18, 2012)

ended ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Per Share Data:()
Net asset value at beginning of year/pe $ 14.5¢ $ 14.4¢ $ 15.0¢
Net investment incom 1.3¢ 1.3 0.11
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) (0.59) 0.0z (0.09)
Realized gain 0.0 0.0¢ —
Provision for taxes on unrealized appreciation on

investments (0.02) — —
Total from investment operations 0.8: 1.4t 0.1C
Issuance of common sharés — — —
Reinvestments of stockholder distributidfls — — 0.01
Sales load (0.0 — (0.47)
Offering costg?) — — (0.0%)
Stockholder distributions from:

Net investment income (1.32) (1.36) (0.1¢)

Net realized capital gains (0.12)
Other®) 0.01 — —
Net asset value at end of year/pel $ 13.9¢ $ 14.5¢ $ 14.4¢
Per share market value at end of year/period $ 11.7¢ $ 14.9¢ 16.3¢
Total return based on market valfe (13.09% 0.42% 10.4¢%
Weighted average shares outstanding 12,281,17 12,059,29 12,035,02
Ratio/Supplemental Data:
Net assets at end of year/per $173,949,45 $175,891,51 $173,845,95
Weighted average net assets $176,458,14 $175,398,66 $173,845,95
Annualized ratio of gross operating expenses to n

assets®) ©) (10) 9.92% 8.65% 5.4%%
Annualized ratio of net operating expenses to net

assets®) ) (10) 9.12% 7.65% 5.50%
Annualized ratio of interest expense and other fee

net asset®) 3.01% 1.7¢% 0.26%
Annualized ratio of net investment income before

waiver to net assef® (10) 8.4(% 8.11% 4.9%
Annualized ratio of net investment income to net

asset$® (10) 9.1%9% 9.1%% 4.9%
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Notes payabli $ 25,000,00 — —

Credit Facility payable $106,500,00 $110,000,00 $ 38,000,00
Short-term loan — $ 9,000,00 $ 45,000,94
SBA Debentures $ 16,250,00 — —
Asset coverage rati® 2.32> 2.48> 4.57x

(1) Financial highlights are based on weighted agershares outstanding as of period end.

(2) The per share impact of the Company’s issuahcemmon shares, reinvestment of stockholderidigions and offering
costs has an impact to net assets less than $erG&hare during the applicable period.
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NOTE 8 — FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - (continued)

(3) Includes the impact of different share amouwasts: result of calculating certain per share dasadb on weighted average
shares outstanding during the period and certaisipgre data based on the shares outstandingoasiodl end.

(4) Total return on market value is based on thengk in market price per share since the end giribe year and assumes
enroliment in the Company’s dividend reinvestmdahpThe total returns are not annualized.

(5) Financial highlights for periods of less thareg/ear are annualized, with exception of the ioni for taxes on the
unrealized gain on investments.

(6) Calculated as the lesser of purchases or daligied by average portfolio balance and is notuatined.

(7) Asset coverage ratio is equal to (i) the sum ohft)assets at the end of the period and (b) detail outstanding at the enc
the period, divided by (ii) total debt outstandatghe end of the period. SBA debentures are erddicom the numerator
and denominator at December 31, 2014.

(8) Gross operating expenses represent operatfrgnegs before the waiver of incentive fees.
(9) Net Operating expenses represent total operatipgreses net of the waiver of incentive fe

(10)These ratios include the impact of the provisianificome taxes related to unrealized gain on imaests of $288,122 for
the year ended December 31, 2014, which is naaiftl in net investment income, gross operatingmesgs and net
operating expenses.

NOTE 9 — CREDIT FACILITY

On November 7, 2012, the Company entered into ditracility with various lenders. SunTrust Banlorge of the lenders
and serves as administrative agent under the Gfadility. The Credit Facility originally providefdr borrowings in an
aggregate amount up to $115,000,000 on a comniitted and an accordion for an additional $35,0@f60a total facility
size of $150,000,000. On July 30, 2013, the Compeamiially exercised the accordion feature unde€Citedit Facility and
received additional commitments from the existiaghbgroup in the amount of $20,000,000 which inseeethe total
commitment to $135,000,000 under the facility. OayML6, 2014, the Company exercised the remaindgrecdiccordion
feature under its Credit Facility and received ddigonal commitment from a new participant in thenk group in the amount
of $15,000,000 which increased the total commitniei$150,000,000 under the Credit Facility.

On November 21, 2014, the Company entered intosh Amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Credit Fagilby and
among the Company, SunTrust Bank, as a lenderhenddministrative agent, and the lenders namedithefhe Amendment,
among other things, (i) extended the maturity détde Credit Facility from November 14, 2016 tot@xer 1, 2018; (ii)
extended the revolving period from November 12,2@lOctober 1, 2017; and (iii) reduced the applieanargin rate for
LIBOR-based loans from 3.00% per annum to 2.625¢@peum and reduced the applicable margin ratetfoar loans, which
are based on an alternative reference rate, @jerdl funds effective rate plus 0.50%, and (cy#te per annum equal to 1%
plus one-month LIBOR), from 2.00% per annum to 5%2per annum. The Amendment also reduced thelinijigregate
commitments under the Credit Facility to $120,000,(ut included an accordion feature allowing@uwenpany to increase the
aggregate commitments up to $195,000,000, sulgewtw or existing lenders agreeing to participaténe increase and other
customary conditions. There can be no assuranaesxfsting lenders will agree to such an increas¢éhat additional lenders
will join the Credit Facility to increase availabderrowings.

In addition, the Amendment provided for the prepatrin full of the pro rata portion of loans owitmState Street Bank
and Trust Company, which ceased to be a lenderdhderedit Facility.

The Company’s obligations to the lenders are selchiyea first priority security interest in its pfwfio of securities and cash
not held at the SBIC, but excluding short term siagents. The Credit Facility contains certain affitive and negative
covenants, including but not limited to: (i) maimiag a minimum liquidity
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NOTE 9 — CREDIT FACILITY — (continued)

test of at least 85% of adjusted borrowing bagem@intaining an asset coverage ratio of at |8a¥to 1.0, and (iii) maintaining
a minimum shareholder’s equity. As of December281L4, the Company was in compliance with these rcawes.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interssihject to the Company’s election, on a per anbasis equal to (i)
LIBOR plus 3.00% with no LIBOR floor or (ii) 2.00%lus an alternate base rate based on the highdst &frime Rate, Federal
Funds Rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plus 1.08&. Company pays unused commitment fees of 0.50%rpaum on the
unused lender commitments under the Credit Faclhtgrest is payable quarterly in arrears. Any ants borrowed under the
Credit Facility will mature, and all accrued andpaid interest thereunder will be due and payabidNovember 12, 2016.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,,500000 and $110,000,000 was outstanding undeCribeit
Facility, respectively. The carrying amount of #mount outstanding under the Credit Facility appnates its fair value. The
Company incurred $2,015,415 in connection with ivlitg the Credit Facility, which the Company hasaieled as prepaid loan
structure fees on its statement of asset anditiabiand is amortizing these fees over the lif¢ghefCredit Facility. During the
year ended December 31, 2013 the Company incua®td of $113,384 in connection with the $20,000,68®mitment
increase. During the year ended December 31, 20@4;ompany incurred additional costs of $77,748innection with the
final $15,000,000 commitment increase. Additionalle incurred $667,882 in connection with the Antaedt during the year
ended December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 20dDanember 31, 2013, $1,774,630 and $1,586,406abf grepaid loan
structure fees had yet to be amortized, respegtivel

For the year ended December 31, 2014 the weightedhge effective interest rate under the CreditliBawas
approximately 3.2% (approximately 3.9% includingneoitment fees on the unused portion and other fees for the Credit
Facility). Interest is paid quarterly in arrearfieTCompany recorded interest and fee expense @4945 for the year ended
December 31, 2014, of which $3,296,026 was intengsénse, $558,481 was amortization of loan febgrathe Credit
Facility, $191,516 related to commitment fees anuhused portion of the Credit Facility, and $48,83lated to loan
administration fees. The Company paid $3,607,978terest expense and unused commitment feesdorear ended
December 31, 2014. The average borrowings undeCtbdit Facility for the year ended December 31,2®ere
$103,714,726.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 the effeirtteeest rate under the Credit Facility was apprately 3.3%
(approximately 4.6% including commitment fees oa timused portion and other loan fees for the Creatitlity). Interest is
paid quarterly in arrears. The Company recordezté@st and fee expense of $3,123,701 for the yebaceDecember 31, 2013,
of which $2,276,571 was interest expense, $518pd¥amortization of loan fees paid on the Crediflfg, $279,042 related
to commitment fees on the unused portion of theliCFeacility, and $49,982 related to loan admirigtm fees. The Company
paid $2,377,282 in interest expense and unused domemt fees for the year ended December 31, 2048 .average
borrowings under the Credit Facility for the yeaded December 31, 2013 were $68,449,315.

For the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thrbudecember 31, 2012 the effective interest rateutite Credit Facility
was approximately 3.6% (approximately 8.5% inclgdbmmmitment fees on the unused portion and otaar fees for the
Credit Facility). The Company recorded interest Bealexpense of $282,629 for the period ended DeeeBi, 2012, of which
$202,864 was interest expense, $61,264 relatednbonitment fees on the unused portion of the Crealéflity and $18,501
related to other loan fees. The average borrowimgler the Credit Facility for the period ended Deber 31, 2012 were
$24,979,592.
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NOTE 10 — NOTES

On May 5, 2014, the Company closed a public offeoh$25.0 million in aggregate principal amoun6d50% notes (the
“Notes”). The Notes mature on April 30, 2019, analynbe redeemed in whole or in part at any timganftime to time at the
Company’s option on or after April 30, 2016. Thet®&bear interest at a rate of 6.50% per year payplarterly on February
15, May 15, August 15 and November 15, of each,y&aginning August 15, 2014. The net proceedsadCtbmpany from the
sale of the Notes, after underwriting discounts aeffiering expenses, were approximately $24.1 millibhe Company used all
of the net proceeds from this offering to repayeipn of the amount outstanding under the Creddility. As of December 31,
2014 the carrying amount of the Notes was approtatn&25.0 million. As of December 31, 2014 the failue of the Notes
was $25.1 million. The Company has listed the Notetew York Stock Exchange under the trading syf86Q". The fair
value of the Notes are based on the closing pfitieeosecurity, which is a Level 2 input under A8ZD due to the trading
volume.

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, veaiired $919,570 of fees which are being amortiaest the term of the
notes of which $828,956 remains to be amortizedigimtluded within deferred financing costs on teasolidated statements
of assets and liabilities.

For the period from May 5, 2014 to December 31 42@e Company incurred interest and fee expensbeoNotes of
$1,155,892, of which $1,065,278 was interest expeb®9,676 was amortization of loan fees paid erl\btes, and $938
related to administration fees. The company paki7#39 in interest expense on the Notes duringé¢ned.

The indenture and supplements thereto relatinged\totes contain certain covenants, including lotifimited to (i) a
requirement that the Company comply with the asse¢rage requirements of the 1940 Act or any ssorg®ovisions, and (ii)
a requirement to provide financial information e tholders of the notes and the trustee undenttenture if the Company
should no longer be subject to the reporting resménts under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nsended.

NOTE 11 — SBA DEBENTURES

As a BDC, we are only allowed to employ leveragthwextent that our asset coverage, as defindih940 Act, equals
at least 200% after giving effect to such leverddges amount of leverage that we employ at any tieggends on our
assessment of the market and other factors aintieeof any proposed borrowing.

On August 12, 2014 we obtained exemptive reliefiftbe SEC to permit us to exclude the debt of BEC3 P guaranteed
by the SBA from our 200% asset coverage test utidet 940 Act. The exemptive relief provides us vintreased flexibility
under the 200% asset coverage test by permittitmghiorrow up to $65 million (based on current dagpry capital of $32.5
million) more than it would otherwise be able tsait the receipt of this exemptive relief.

As of December 31, 2014, the SBIC subsidiary ha&iSillion in regulatory capital and had $16.25lio of SBA-
guaranteed debentures outstanding. These debeatersst to pool in March 2015 at which point aerest rate will be fixed.
The maturity date of these debentures is Marcl®252The principal amount of our SBA-guaranteedetilires is not required
to be paid prior to maturity but may be prepaidm time without penalty. The weighted average afined interim financing
rate on the outstanding debentures was 0.946%eMnere no debentures outstanding as of Decemb@033,

As of December 31, 2014, the carrying amount ofSBé&-guaranteed debentures approximated theiv&ire. The fair
values of the SBA-guaranteed debentures are detedhim accordance with ASC 820, which defines\falue in terms of the
price that would be paid to transfer a liabilityan orderly transaction between market participahtee measurement date
under current market conditions. The fair valu¢hef SBA-guaranteed debentures are estimated basednarket interest rates
for our own borrowings or entities with similar dierisk, adjusted for nonperformance risk, if aAy.December 31, 2014 the
SBA-guaranteed debentures would be deemed to bel Bewas defined in Note 4.
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NOTE 11 — SBA DEBENTURES - (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Companyred $719,063 in financing costs related toSB& debentures,
which were recorded as prepaid loan fees. As oebber 31, 2014, $681,947 of prepaid financing doatsyet to be
amortized.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the compopéiriterest, amortized deferred financing costighted average
stated interest rate and weighted average outsiguidibt balance for the SBA debentures were asasl

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

SBA Debentures interest $ 27,37
Amortization of deferred financing costs 37,11¢
Total interest and fees expense $ 64,48¢
Weighted average stated interest rate .94€%

As of December 31, 2014, no interest has beengrattie debentures.

NOTE 12 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)

The following table sets forth the results of opierss for the years ended December 31, 2014 andrbeer 31, 2013 and
for the period from Inception through December@112. Results for any quarter are not necessadlicative of results for the
full year or for any future quarter.

2014
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4
Total Investment Income (Loss) $ 7,849,241 $8,012,70¢ $7,822,49 $8,640,39
Net Investment Income (Los $3,761,04. $3,704,86. $5,250,49 $3,795,69
Net Increase in Net Assets from Operati $4,343,76. $2,711,56 $2,113,43 $1,010,38:
Total Investment Income (Loss) per shéte $ 065 $ 0.6¢ $ 0.6 $ 0.6¢
Net Investment Income (Loss) per sh(®) $ 031 $ 031 $ 0.4: $ 0.3¢
Net Increase in Net Assets from Operations
sharel® $ 0.3¢ $ 02z $ 017 $ 0.0¢
2013
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4
Total Investment Income (Loss) $ 6,446,441 $7,341,22 $7,917,63. $7,695,43
Net Investment Income (Los $3,687,38 $3,972,65 $4,133,99° $4,217,69
Net Increase in Net Assets from Operati $5,532,111 $4,477,59 $3,825,42 $3,709,86:
Total Investment Income (Loss) per shéte $ 054 $ 061 $ 0.6€ $ 0.6¢
Net Investment Income (Loss) per sh(®) $ 031 $ 03¢ $ 032 $ 0.3t
Net Increase in Net Assets from Operations
sharel® $ 0.46 $ 037 $ 03z $ 0.3C
2012
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4@
Total Investment Income (Loss) nfe $(126,62) $(264,99) $3,696,43
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NOTE 12 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED) — (continued)

(1) Per share amounts are calculated using weightexhge shares outstanding during the period.

(2) For the period from Inception through DecemBkr2012.
NOTE 13 — INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 ¢mepany had $92,489 and $945,186, respectivelyndistributed
ordinary income® Undistributed capital gains were $0 and $1,027892he years ended December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013, respectively. All of the undistributedioiary income as of December 31, 2014 will haventsistributed within the
required period of time such that the Company moll have to pay corporate-level U.S. federal inceaxeor the year ended
December 31, 2014. We will be subject to a 4% ndodgble U.S. federal excise tax on our undistéouincome to the extent
we did not distribute an amount equal to at 1886 ®f our net ordinary income plus 98.2% of ouritzdmain net income

attributable to the period. The Company has accapgudoximately $0 and $24,000, in U.S. federal sxtax for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 201 2catasyly.

Ordinary dividend distributions from a RIC do naiadjfy for the reduced maximum tax rate on quatifédvidend income
from domestic corporations, except to the exteat the RIC received the income in the form of dyadg dividends from

domestic corporations and qualified foreign corfiores. The tax character of distributions paidha years ended December
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Ordinary Income $17,090,97 $ 16,399,40
Quialified Dividends — —
Distributions of long-term capital gait3 410,66( —
Return of capital — —

Total distributions accrued or paid to common shad#ters $17,501,63 $ 16,399,40

(1) The Company’s taxable income for each periaghigstimate and will not be finally determinediluthe Company files its
tax return for each year. Therefore, final taxabt®me earned in each period, and the undistribotdishary income and
capital gains for each period carried forward fistrébution in the following period, may be differethan this estimate.

(2) Distributions of long-term capital gains of $4660 differs from distributions of net capital gsion the Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Net Assets because $18%¥&s short-term and therefore does not qualifydiog-term capital
gain treatment.
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NOTE 13 — INCOME TAXES - (continued)

At December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the compoménisdistributed earnings on a tax basis detdilldw differ from
the amounts reflected in the Company's Consolidatddnce Sheet as “Distributions in excess of metstment income” and
“Accumulated undistributed net realized gain.” Bi#nces for tax reporting arise for permanentlglttisved items, as well as
temporary differences in reporting primarily retatito the amortization of certain start-up and orgational costs and accrued
Capital Gains Incentive Fees.

December 31,

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 2012
Distributions in excess of net investmentincc $ (779,64) $ (1,262,65) $ (874,98)
Accumulated undistributed net realized gain — 1,027,39; —
Cumulative permanent differences related to
investment income 108,82: 66,96+ 1,122
Cumulative temporary differences related to
investment income 763,31( 1,113,48: 988,99

Accumulated undistributed taxable income  $ 92,48¢ $ 945,18t $ 115,13:

The aggregate gross unrealized appreciation anedagion, the net unrealized appreciation, andatigregate cost of the
Company’s portfolio company securities for fedénabme tax purposes as of December 31, 2014 andrbzer 31, 2013 were
as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Aggregate cost of portfolio securities for federalome tax purpose $321,955,48 $277,004,46

Gross unrealized appreciation of portfolio compaegurities 2,361,92! 2,585,42!
Gross unrealized depreciation of portfolio compaegurities (8,351,97) (2,085,48)

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of midf company
securities $ (5,990,04) $ 499,94

NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Investment Portfolio

The $7.5 million unfunded commitment to Empirix¢lrexpired on February 1, 2015.

Subsequent to December 31, 2014, the Company rhadellowing investments (at par):

On February 6, 2015, we made a $5.0 million investinin the second lien term loan of GK Holding. In

On February 12, 2015, we received full repaymendununsecured term loan of the Studer Group, Lt @aaresulting in total
proceeds of $16.9 million.

On February 19, 2015, we made a $10.0 million itest in the second lien term loan of NetMotion #éss, Inc. We also
invested $1.0 million in the company’s equity.

On March 4, 2015, we invested $4.5 million in tlebdtbr-in-possession financing of Binder & Binder.
On March 4, 2015, we made an additional $0.2 mmileguity investment in Skopos Financial Group, LLC.
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NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - (continued)

Credit Facility

The outstanding balance under the Credit FacitpfaMarch 4, 2015 was $108.0 million.

Dividends Declared

On January 22, 2015, the Company’s board of direateclared a regular monthly dividend for eacfiasfuary 2015,

2015 and March 2015 as follows:

Ex-Dividend Record Payment Amount
Declared: Date Date Date per Share
January 22, 2015 1/29/15 2/2/15 2/13/15 $ 0.113:
January 22, 2015 2/25/15 2127115 3/13/15 $ 0.113:
January 22, 2015 3/27/15 3/31/15 4/15/15 $ 0.113:
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with IndependeRegistered Public Accounting Firm on Accountingand
Financial Disclosure

None.

Item Controls and Procedures.
9A.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwwre

As of December 31, 2014 (the end of the period léy this report), we, including our Chief ExacatOfficer and Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectivenesshef design and operation of our disclosure conttntsprocedures (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) of the 1934 Act). Based on tatweation, our management, including our Chief Exme Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosuratcols and procedures were effective and provigadonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed in our pero8EC filings is recorded, processed, summarized-@ported within the time
periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, thatl such information is accumulated and commueitto our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief kirtial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely @éans regarding required
disclosure. However, in evaluating the disclosunetiols and procedures, management recognizeatyatontrols and
procedures, no matter how well designed and opraga provide only reasonable assurance of actyekie desired control
objectives, and management necessarily was requargoply its judgment in evaluating the cost-bé@nmefationship of possible
controls and procedures.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over incial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigla®ing as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), and forf@ening an assessment of the effectiveness ofriaterontrol over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014. Internal cordvelr financial reporting is a process designedbynder the supervision
of, our principal executive and principal financidficers, or persons performing similar functioasd effected by our Board of
Directors, management and other personnel, to geadasonable assurance regarding the reliabilfipancial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extepoaposes in accordance with generally accepteduating principles. Our
internal control over financial reporting includé®se policies and procedures that (i) pertaiméonbaintenance of records that
in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reftbet transactions and dispositions of assets afdh&pany; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrénagipts and expenditures are being made onlydordance with
authorizations; and (iii) provide reasonable assteaegarding prevention or timely detection ofutharized acquisition, use,
or disposition of our assets that could have a nizdteffect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étisstatements.
Therefore, even those systems determined to betigecan provide only reasonable assurance witheret to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

Management performed an assessment of the effaetigeof our internal control over financial repugtas of December
31, 2013 based upon the criteria set forth in hrdk€Control — Integrated Framework issued by then@ittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSB3gsed on our assessment, management determinexuthaternal
control over financial reporting was effective december 31, 2013.

(c) Report of the Independent Registered Public Agnting Firm

This annual report on Form 10-K does not includatestation report of our independent registerddlip accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reportivde were not required to have, nor have we, ertjageindependent
registered public accounting firm to perform anitaflinternal control over financial reporting guant to the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permib psdvide only management'’s report in this annapbrt on Form 10-K.

117




TABLE OF CONTENTS

(d) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Repting

There have been no changes in our internal cootel financing reporting that occurred during therth fiscal quarter of
2014 that have materially affected, or are readgritdely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il

We will file a definitive Proxy Statement for oud25 Annual Meeting of Stockholders with the SEQspant to
Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after the @& our fiscal year. Accordingly, certain infortizen required by Part 1l has
been omitted under General Instruction G(3) toameual report on Form 10-K. Only those sectionsusfdefinitive Proxy
Statement that specifically address the itemsas#t herein are incorporated by reference.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by Item 10 is hereby inmoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfysgal year.

We have adopted a code of business conduct aras ¢ftat applies to our directors, officers and eygés. This code of
ethics is published on our websitenatw.stelluscapital.comWe intend to disclose any future amendmentsrtesaivers from,
this code of conduct within four business dayshefwaiver or amendment through a website posting.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby immoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfysgal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by Item 12 is hereby immoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

a. Documents Filed as Part of this Report

The following financial statements are set forthtém 8:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing 77
Consolidated Statements of Assets and LiabilittesfaDecember 31, 2014 and Decembe
31,2013 78
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the ye@ded December 31, 2014 and 2013
the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) throughcBmber 31, 2012 79
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assethdoyears ended December 31, 201
and 2014 and the period from Inception (May 18,2Qfrough December 31, 2012 80
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yea@ited December 31, 2014 and 2013
the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) throughcBmber 31, 2012 81
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of DeceB8he2014 and December 31, 2013 83
Notes to Financial Statemet 90
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b. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet or hereby incorporated by reference to exbipitviously filed with the
SEC:

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement (Incorporateceference to Exhibit (a)(1) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-&(Rb. 333184195), filed on October 23, 201

3.3 Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (b){d}he Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed on October 2812).

4.1 Form of Stock Certificate (Incorporated by referete Exhibit (d) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filedOctober 23, 2012).

4.2 Form of Indenture (Incorporated by reference toikixlid)(2) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-189938, filaduhry 29, 2014).

10.1 Form of Investment Advisory Agreement between Regyig and Stellus Capital Management, LLC

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (g)(1) to Begistrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2
(File No. 333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.2 Custodian Agreement between Registrant and Steget®ank and Trust Company (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (j) to the Registrant’s Bé&@tion Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.3 Administration Agreement between Registrant and&t€apital Management, LLC (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (k)(1) to the Registrasgistration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

104 Dividend Reinvestment Plan (Incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit (e) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 3331195), filed on October 23, 2012).
10.5 Form of License Agreement between the RegistrathtSiallus Capital Management (Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit (k)(2) to the Registrafsgistration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.6 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regig and the directors (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit (k)(3) to the Registrant’s Régtion Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.7 Form of Purchase Agreement between the Registbat,Shaw Direct Capital Portfolios, L.L.C.
and DC Funding SPV, L.L.C. (Incorporated by refeeto Exhibit (k)(4) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 3331195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.8 Form of Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreemembrgg the Registrant and SunTrust Bank
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (k)(5) to fRegistrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2
(File No. 333-184195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.9 Form of Guarantee and Security Agreement amongéggstrant and SunTrust Bank (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (k)(6) to the Registrasgistration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.12 Form of Letter Agreement between the Registrari, Bhaw Direct Capital Portfolios, L.L.C. and
DC Funding SPV, L.L.C. (Incorporated by referenz&xhibit (k)(9) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 3331195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.13 Commitment Increase Letter Agreement between RagistCadence Bank, N.A., State Street E
and Trust Company, Amegy Bank, N.A. and SunTrustkB#ncorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form @#e No. 814-00971), filed on July 30, 2013).

10.14 First Amendment to Senior Revolving Credit Agreetr@mong the Registrant and Suntrust Bank
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tregRtrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
814-00971), filed on November 21, 2014).
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11.1 Computation of Per Share Earnings (included imibtes to the audited financial statements
contained in this report).

14.1 Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to ExHif){1) to the Registrarg’Registration Stateme
on Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed on OctoB8; 2012).

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant and jurisdictionnabrporation/organizations:
Stellus Capital SBIC, LP — Delaware
SKP Blocker I, Inc. — Delaware
ERC Blocker I, Inc. — Delaware
APE Blocker I, Inc. — Delaware
HUF Blocker I, Inc. — Delaware
Hollander Blocker I, Inc. — Delaware

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pguant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley AOOR2.

*  Filed herewith.

c. Financial statement schedules

No financial statement schedules are filed herelgttause (1) such schedules are not required thé2hformation has
been presented in the aforementioned financiatrsiants.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usidgeed, thereunto duly authorized.

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Date: March 9, 2015 /s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the @gpand on the dates indicated.

Date: March 9, 2015 /s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date: March 9, 2015 /s/ W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer
and Secretary
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

Date: March 9, 2015 /s/ Dean D’Angelo

Dean D’Angelo
Director

Date: March 9, 2015 /s/ Joshua T. Davis

Joshua T. Davis

Director
Date: March 9, 2015 /s/ J. Tim Arnoult
J. Tim Arnoult
Director
Date: March 9, 2015 /sl Bruce R. Bilger

Bruce R. Bilger
Director

Date: March 9, 2015 /sl Paul Keglevic

Paul Keglevic
Director

Date: March 9, 2015 /s! William C. Repko

William C. Repko
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Exhibit 31.1

I, Robert T. Ladd, Chief Executive Officer of StedICapital Investment Corporation certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f6tellus Capital Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvwesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}jLl&nd internal control over financial reportifas defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for iagistrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

(c) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaéses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesvmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated this 9" day of March 2015.

By: /s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

I, W. Todd Huskinson, Chief Financial Officer ofeBuis Capital Investment Corporation certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f6tellus Capital Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvwesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15¢r the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

(c) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an amaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaéses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated this 9" day of March 2015.

By: /s/ W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. 1350)

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1@tKe “Report”) of Stellus Capital Investment Corgion (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on the date hereof, |, Roberiadd| the Chief Executive
Officer of the Registrant, hereby certify, to thesbof my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of
operations of the Registrant.

/s/ Robert T. Ladd
Name

Robert T. Ladd
Date: March 9, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. 1350)

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1(tKe “Report”) of Stellus Capital Investment Corgion (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on the date hereof, I, W. Toddkldgen, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Registrant, hereby certify the best of my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of
operations of the Registrant.

/s/ W. Todd Huskinson
Name:

W. Todd Huskinson
Date: March 9, 2015




